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PART I

The statements contained in this annual report omF10XK, including under the section titled "Managemetiscussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” aritler sections of this annual report, include ford-looking statements within the meaning
of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, asraled, and Section 21E of the Securities ExchangefA934, as amended, including,
without limitation, statements regarding our or aaenagement's expectations, hopes, beliefs, intentr strategies regarding the future. The
words "believe,” "may,"” "will," "estimate," "contire," "anticipate,” "intend,” "expect," "plan" andhsilar expressions may identify forward-
looking statements, but the absence of these vaarels not mean that a statement is not forward-togpKrhe forward-looking statements
contained in this annual report are based on ourent expectations and beliefs concerning futureeti@ments and their potential effects on
us. There can be no assurance that future develofnadfecting us will be those that we have anditgd. These forward-looking statements
involve a number of risks, uncertainties (sometittvare beyond our control) or other assumptidmat imay cause actual results or
performance to be materially different from thogpressed or implied by these forw-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties
include, but are not limited to, those factors dixd in the section titled "Risk Factors." Shoolte or more of these risks or uncertainties
materialize, or should any of our assumptions prioeerrect, actual results may vary in material pests from those projected in these
forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligationpibate or revise any forward-looking statementstiver as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise, exceptnay be required under applicable securities laws.

ITEM 1: BUSINESS
Our Business—An Overview

We design, develop and market proprietaeglical devices used to help physicians diagnosdraatidiseases of the nervous system such
as neuropathies, which are disorders of the pergbherves and parts of the spine, and neurovasdigarders such as diabetic retinopathy.
are also developing medical devices designed tesbd to provide regional anesthesia and pain dofiinadate, our focus has been on prod
that help physicians with the diagnosis or detectibneuropathies and neurovascular disorders. &Ve two product lines cleared by the
United States Food and Drug Administration, or FE#at are currently being marketed primarily to gibians and clinics, including the NC-
stat System for the assessment of neuropathietharidigiScope for the detection of eye disordechsas diabetic retinopathy.

Neuropathies are diseases of the peripheraks and parts of the spine that frequentiycavsed by or associated with diabetes, low back
pain and carpal tunnel syndrome, or CTS, as waltlaesr clinical disorders. We believe that our opathy diagnostic system, the NC-stat
System, improves the quality and efficiency of @aticare by offering all physicians the abilitydiagnose patients with neuropathies at the
point-of-service, that is, in the physician's offiat the time the patient is examined, resultingarier and more accurate detection, greater
patient comfort and convenience, and, in many ¢asgsoved clinical and economic outcomes. The N&-System has been on the market
since May 1999 and is used in over 5,500 physitiaffises and clinics in the United States. Ovee omillion patients have had nerve
conduction tests performed using the NC-stat SysWmare currently developing a traditional nergaduction system, the ADVANCE
System, designed to help physicians with the diaignaf neuropathies and have filed a 510(k) apptinawvith the FDA. The ADVANCE
System is expected to provide physicians with eyreter clinical functionality and is expected ®rharketed to specialists such as
neurologists as well as primary care physicians.

Neuropathies traditionally have been evalddy simple clinical examination by the primagre physician, and, in some cases,
subsequently diagnosed by a nerve conduction stndyneedle




electromyography, or NCS/nEMG, procedure perforimgd neurologist or physician in a related spegiaittheir clinical staff. We estimate
that there are approximately two million traditibfNCS/nEMG procedures currently performed each jyretie United States. We believe that
use of traditional NCS/nEMG procedures is limitgd (i) the need to obtain a referral to a neurdofgir the procedure and the resulting delay
in availability of diagnostic information; (2) theconvenience and discomfort of these procedurethopatient; and (3) the expense to the
patient and third-party payer. We anticipate thatadvantages and increased availability of a pafiservice product offering such as the NC-
stat System could increase the number of nerveurdioth studies performed. Based on our analys@uokent data, we estimate that the
potential market size for point-of-service nervadaoction studies in the diabetes, low back pain@h8 markets in the aggregate could be
greater than 9.5 million annual patient testsnestied to be more than $1.0 billion annually intheted States. We believe there is potentially
a large market opportunity for our nerve conducpooduct line in the international markets and eeently launched the N&tat System in th
U.K. on a limited basis.

Diabetic retinopathy is a common neurovisotomplication of diabetes and is the leadingseanf blindness among working age adults.
On December 26, 2007, we acquired substantiallgfahe assets and assumed certain liabilitiesyeflél Imaging, Inc., or EyeTel, whose
product, the DigiScope, is a retinal imaging systigsigned for use at the point-of-service in pryr@diabetes care physician offices and
optometry clinics for the detection of diabetidmepathy and certain other eye disorders. Prewougt had obtained an exclusive sales and
marketing license to the DigiScope from EyeTeltfar primary diabetes care market. If abnormaliiesdetected using the DigiScope, the
patient can then be referred to an ophthalmoldgistreatment if deemed necessary. It is recommeibgethe American Diabetes Association,
or ADA, that all patients with diabetes receiveammual dilated eye examination, which may be peréat using the DigiScope, to determine if
there are any abnormalities. There are approximatemillion people in the United States with ditgseaccording to the ADA and only
approximately 50% comply with the recommendatiohdee an annual eye examination. We believe thabvduct such as the DigiScope in
primary diabetes care physician offices and optoyr@inics could potentially lead to an increasetia level of testing and result in the earlier
detection of eye disorders in patients with diabe@urrently, there are approximately 190 physigigactices and clinics in the United States
using the DigiScope.

Our goal is to become the leading provimfénnovative, proprietary, high gross margin medlidevices that provide comprehensive
solutions to help physicians with the diagnosis ttadtment of patients with diseases of the nerggagem, including neuropathies, and
neurovascular disorders and provide solutionsdgianal anesthesia and pain control. We believieathiacore technologies can be leveraged
into additional diagnostic and therapeutic products

One of the areas we are leveraging our mtenology into is the minimally invasive delivesfycommercially available drugs and other
therapeutic agents using a proprietary deliveryesydor regional anesthesia, pain control and rib&ttnent of neuropathies. We are current
the clinical stage of development of a nerve laedion system, which we refer to as NAVIGATOR, axgect to submit a 510(k) application
to the FDA in the second half of 2008.

We are also pursuing product developmebttsffocused on neural repair and regenerationavéen the early stages of developing a
product for the treatment of peripheral nerve iigsiby promoting nerve regeneration through elegitstimulation. We are pursuing these
product development efforts through a joint venestablished in February 2008 with Cyberkineticsitdeechnology Systems, Inc., or
Cyberkinetics, a medical device company focusethertreatment of neurological conditions. This pratds in the preclinical stage of
development. In November 2007, prior to the fororatf the joint venture, we entered into a stratedfiance with Cyberkinetics through an
investment of $2.5 million in shares of Cyberkinsttcommon stock. (See Strategic Alliance.)
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We sell our products through a sales fofcapproximately fifty regional sales managersefiegional sales directors and a national sales
director for sales of our products to physiciancef$ and clinics.

Our revenues declined 19.2% to $44.6 millim2007, after increasing 61.1% to $55.2 millinr2006 from $34.3 million in 2005. The
decline in revenues was primarily attributable halienges experienced with reimbursement of neovelgction studies performed using the
NC-stat System. The American Medical AssociationABIA, CPT Editorial Panel ("the CPT Panel") has beeviewing the reimbursement
coding for nerve conduction studies and recentlyim&ebruary 2008 to consider various proposal$éesth by a work group formed by the
CPT Panel. At this meeting, we believe that the ®GRel approved a new Category IIl CPT Code foveneonduction studies performed us
equipment with certain automated features suchaslC-stat System. Unless we are able to succhsshadllenge this decision, a new
Category Il CPT Code would likely be publishedliny 2008 and become effective in January 200Q\dfCPT Panel ultimately implements a
Category Il CPT code, this is likely to have a eratl and adverse impact on our business giventtislikely to result in limited or no
Medicare reimbursement since there is the potethizIno specified reimbursement values would k&asd to such codes and they do not
automatically appear on the Medicare physiciarsfdedule. This could also adversely impact reindgment by other third party payers and
could have an adverse and material impact on sanrees and results of operations.

The majority of our revenues in 2007 weseived from sales of the NC-stat System and appratély 88% of our revenues were
attributable to sales of the disposable biosernbatsphysicians use to perform nerve conductiots twgh our NC-stat System. We recorded a
net loss of $8.4 million in 2007 compared with meome of $4.3 million in 2006 and net income o#$3800 in 2005. Our net loss in 2007 \
a result of the decline in revenues and an increasperating expenses.

Neuropathies

Disorders of the nerves are broadly desdriy the term neuropathies. There are two bapestgf neuropathies, those that are focal, or
localized in nature, and those that are systenticaFheuropathies are typically caused by a comsjme®f one or more specific nerves.
Systemic neuropathies are typically caused by alnodit disturbance that results in widespread danagerves throughout the body. The
most common clinical conditions associated withropathies include:

. Diabetes. Diabetes is a disease in which the body eithesdmt produce sufficient quantities of insulirdoes not properly us
insulin. Insulin is a hormone that is needed toveohsugar, starches and other food into energgletéor daily body function.
Diabetes often results in a high level of glucasthe blood, called hyperglycemia. Chronic hypetgipia is associated with
complications of diabetes including nerve, eye kiddey disease. The most common form of diabetlsterd nerve disease is a
systemic neuropathy called diabetic peripheral oygatthy, or DPN. The symptoms of DPN include imphiensation or pain in
the feet and hands. The ADA estimates that 6090% @f people with diabetes are affected by DPNyoalgh a majority of
these individuals are unaware of their nerve diséasause they have no symptoms. DPN, if left ymtised and unmanaged,
can result in the development of lower extremityens and, in severe cases, amputation. It is estirizy the ADA that over
75% of all foot amputations are in patients withND®ther neuropathies may be present in as maB@%sof patients with
diabetes, including CTS, radiculopathy and chrami@ammatory demyelinating polyneuropathy, or CIDP.

. Low back pain Low back pain can have many causes. When low paitkhas a neurological source, it is often facalature
and associated with pain that radiates from theetdvack region into the leg, called sciatica. Imeaases, the patient may also
experience loss of




sensation and weakness in the lower leg. In addbacases, these symptoms can become disabling.yfi@ams result from
pressure on the nerve roots, the precursors afahee, as they exit the spine. The source of thesurre is usually part of an
intervertebral disc that is displaced from its nattocation between the vertebral bodies. Theserdiéss are often called
herniated or ruptured discs.

. CTS. CTS, is caused by swelling of the tendons tleatetrse the wrist alongside the median nerve. Thidlewtendon:
compress the median nerve, resulting in damadeetoerve that leads to numbness in the first tfingers of the hand,
weakness in the thumb, and occasionally wrist @mdifpain. CTS is the most common focal neuropathy.

. Other medical conditions associated with neuropegt Common chronic disorders such as obesity, rhenithatthritis anc
spinal stenosis, or narrowing of the spinal caaad,commonly associated with neuropathies. In thesglicated cases, it is
particularly important for the physician to confimnexclude neuropathies in order to develop effedteatment programs.

. Nerve damage caused by chemother A number of widely used chemotherapeutic agem$axic to nerves. Unfortunatel
by the time patients report symptoms, significagnve damage has often already occurred.

Limitations of Traditional Methods for Detecting Neuropathies

Neuropathies have traditionally been evadaising clinical and diagnostic methods but tlaeeelimitations to these methods. The clir
examination is qualitative rather than quantitativés subjective and it does not often detectgligical or early stage disease. Traditional n
conduction studies and NCS/nEMG procedures ar@peed under a referral to a neurologist and tHerral process can result in delays and
inconvenience for the patient, higher expense assl df control of the patient's care by the ref@rphysician. Traditional procedures are
complex and are therefore only performed by a smathiber of physicians, such as neurologists, aadesting is therefore not generally
widely available. In addition, traditional procedamrmay be painful if an NEMG procedure is involgatte the physician will insert needles i
the patient's muscles often in close proximityh® site of pain.

NeuroMetrix Solution/NC-stat System

The NeuroMetrix point-of-service neurodiagtic solution is known as the NC-stat System. Nifestat System is comprised of:
(1) disposable single use biosensors that are ghiage-invasively on the patient's body, (2) the st&device and related components and
(3) the NC-stat docking station, an optional deviw enables the physician to transmit data tooo@all Information System. The onCall
Information System formulates the data it recefeesach test into a detailed report that is serthé physician via facsimile or e-mail in three
to four minutes on average and provides raw dadarg#ormation for the physician to consider alonighvthe clinical examination of the patie
and other information in diagnosing a patient'sditton. The NC-stat System assists the physiciamajidly and accurately examining the
patient in a manner that may be cost-effectivaterpatient and third-party payer.

. Biosensors The biosensors are single use,-adhesive, nen-specific, electrodes that are placed on the bodycannected t
the NC-stat device. Through the use of a specidlid and a digital thermometer, both of which@retained within the
biosensors, nerve signals are converted to eléctdata that can be received and displayed by thestdt device. Currently, we
sell biosensors for assessment of nerve functidhémmedian and ulnar nerves in the upper extremitr the diagnosis of CTS
and for assessment of the nerve function in pefptibial and sural nerves in the lower extremitiesthe diagnosis of DPN and
low back conditions.




The biosensors are designed to be positioned dogota common anatomical landmarks with a confijorathat facilitates
correct placement. We designed the biosensorsas¢héty could be applied with minimal training bymbers of a physician's
clinical staff. In a typical nerve conduction studyultiple nerves are evaluated and multiple bissemare used according to
general guidelines established by the Center fadibééd and Medicare Services, or CMS, and physiagsociations.

. NC-stat device The NC-stat device is designed for efficient use by thgsptian or a member of the physician's clinicaffs
The NC-stat device can only be operated with cosdmsors. This instrument customizes and calibthgetest for each patient,
analyzes neurophysiological signals collected fthenbiosensor and displays the pertinent resul&ndiquid crystal display, or
LCD screen immediately at the conclusion of eaalveneonduction study. It also stores data from ipl@tpatients for optional
transmission to the onCall Information System. Wée aell optional related components that allowtf@r testing of long nerve
segments, such as those between the elbow andowttst knee and foot. The NC-stat device contsdrfisvare that performs all
the control and analysis algorithms necessary iy cait a nerve conduction study. A complete nexweduction study may be
performed with just the device and the biosensdnsther device for the assessment of potentialopathic conditions, the
ADVANCE System, is under 510(k) review by the FDA.

NC-stat docking station and onCall Information 8pst The NC-stat docking station is an optional deviw fuutomatically
transmits data from the NC-stat device via teleghlore, such as those used by facsimile machindgbgtonCall Information
System that we maintain. The data is automatigaligessed by the onCall Information System anckdtor a central database,
and a detailed computer generated report is créateghch patient that is then sent to the physicia facsimile or e-mail in
three to four minutes on average. The report iredutie raw waveform data, comparisons to an agestaedj and height-adjusted
normal range population, study reference tabletaxidsummaries of the study, which provides add#lanformation and a
convenient summary of the study to assist the phgsin the diagnosis of the patient. Although $hely data presented in the
onCall Information System report can be generatadually by the physician using the numerical meaments displayed by t
NC-stat device, the report is a convenient andddginct. Whether using the information from th&€ah Information System
report or the NC-stat device display, the actuaicl interpretation of the NC-stat System residtalways performed by the
physician ordering the study. The onCall Informatiystem can also provide daily, monthly and quigrteports to customers.
These reports provide assistance in correct sublmiésr third-party reimbursement and assist ichag overall clinical
utilization. The onCall Information System generadl available 24 hours per day, seven days pekwdéhough purchase of
the NC-stat docking station and utilization of tmeCall Information System are entirely optional, bedieve substantially all of
our customers use this system in all studies tlegact with the NC-stat System. We currently havecard of over three
million individual nerve tests within the onCallftmmation System database. We believe that th@inétion provides us with
the ability to continually improve our products govide our customers with a very high level o$tcumer service and value.
During the fourth quarter of 2006, at the requéshe FDA, we submitted a 510(k) filing relatinggortions of the onCall
Information System currently in use. Dependinglmautcome of the FDA's review, we may be requioemhodify or remove
the aspects of the onCall Information System thatader review, which may make the NC-stat Systere difficult to use by
physicians. We are currently in the process ofardmg to the second additional information requleat we have received fro
the FDA relating to this filing.

Recognizing the opportunity created by whatbelieve are the limitations of traditional diagtic methods coupled with the availability
of current and potential new treatments for centednropathies,




NeuroMetrix has developed the \-stat System for the performance of non-invasive@eonduction studies at the point-of-service. Our
proprietary technology provides physicians withiraoffice diagnostic system that assists physiciargerforming rapid and accurate
examinations that may be cost-effective for thégpdtand third-party payer. We believe that the $tat-System represents a significant
advance in neurological diagnostics and offersgrovement over traditional diagnostic proceduréh the following benefits:

. Facilitates performance of nerve conduction studiethe poin-of-service. The complexity and high capital cost of traditib
diagnostic methods generally have limited theirtaseeurologists and physicians in related spdeglive believe the features
of the NC-stat System facilitate the performanceearize conduction studies within the offices ofidewange of physicians,
including primary care and specialist physiciangaBowing nerve conduction studies to be perforrmethe primary care or
specialist physician's office, the patient can dwbe expense and inconvenience of a referral visiditionally, the NC-stat
System enables primary care and specialist physidiaretain greater control over their patientglipinating the need to refer
them out for a traditional NCS/nEMG procedure.

. Provides a cost-effective diagnostic toolVe believe that the NC-stat System could potéyptiaduce the cost to the patient and
third-party payer of many nerve conduction studigss belief is based on our observation that wihese procedures are
performed by the physician with primary clinicagpensibility for the patient, the study is moresdied so that generally fewer
nerves are tested without compromising accuracythAgost to thirgsarty payers for nerve conduction studies is typidaased
on the number of nerves tested, use of the NCSststem can result in lower costs to patients aind-fharty payers. When an
NnEMG procedure is also performed, the cost canvbe higher.

. Requires minimal capital investmentVe sell the NGstat System, with equivalent technical specifigaito the more expensi
traditional instruments, for a list price of appiroately $6,000, compared with $15,000 to $40,00GHe cost of traditional
NCS/nEMG equipment. We believe the lower capitat @f the NC-stat System will aid in the expansidmerve conduction
studies beyond neurologist offices.

. Simple to operate.The biosensors are designed for ease in placembith allows a wide range of physician office gmrmel
to administer the technical portion of the studgemthe supervision of a physician. The NC-staiaeutilizes software
algorithms that perform each step of a nerve cotolustudy in a reliable manner, with embedded rmattion technology that
addresses and minimizes the technical trainingirepents for performing nerve conduction studiesilevalso ensuring that tt
end results are accurate and reliable. We belleate in combination, these features allow accuaatereliable nerve conduction
studies to be performed in 15 to 30 minutes onayer

. Patien-friendly, nor-invasive procedure The NC-stat System allows for reduced patient discomforirdy the nerve conducti
study by minimizing the magnitude of the electristinulus to the nerve via a proprietary patiergesfic calibration procedure.
We believe that in most cases, the sophisticaggthbprocessing and automation capabilities oN@estat System provide
sufficient diagnostic information to eliminate theed for an NCS/nEMG procedure. This saves thematie discomfort, stress
and risk of this invasive procedure.

Neurovascular Disease

Diabetic retinopathy is a neurovasculaedse and is one of the most serious complicatibdmbetes. Diabetic retinopathy is the leading
cause of blindness in adults age 20 to 65. Microwias complications caused by diabetes can leaetittopathy and if untreated can result in
vision loss and even blindness. Twenty years disggnosis nearly all patients with Type | diabdiage some degree
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of diabetic retinopathy and 60% of all patientshwitype Il diabetes have some degree of retinopa&tsn though many may not have
symptoms.

Over time, diabetes affects the circulaygtem of the retina. The earliest phase of theadie is known as background diabetic
retinopathy. In this phase, the arteries in thmmadbecome weakened and leak, forming small, #ethiemorrhages. These leaking vessels ofter
lead to swelling or edema in the retina and deexassion. The next stage is known as proliferatiiabetic retinopathy. In this stage,
circulation problems cause areas of the retinaetmime oxygen-deprived, or ischemic. New, fragitssels develop as the circulatory system
attempts to maintain adequate oxygen levels withérretina. This is called neovascularization. Utfioately, these delicate vessels
hemorrhage easily. Blood may leak into the retimé \dtreous, causing spots or floaters, along wébreased vision. In the later phases of the
disease, continued abnormal vessel growth andissae may cause serious problems such as re8tedhinent and glaucoma. Ultimately, if
untreated, diabetic retinopathy can lead to losgsién or blindness.

The traditional approach to the detectibretinopathy in patients with diabetes is a refeto an eye specialist, such as an
ophthalmologist, for an assessment. In spite ofésemmendation by the ADA that all patients withlegtes have an annual dilated eye
examination, only approximately 50% of these pasieme actually complying and being tested on amalbasis. Treatments such as laser
surgery are available for patients diagnosed wigthetic retinopathy and the earlier the condit®détected the more likely a favorable
outcome.

The DigiScope

The DigiScope was developed by EyeTelimichl partnership with the Wilmer Opthalmologidastitute at Johns Hopkins University for
the risk assessment of retinopathy. We acquiredtanbally all of the assets and assumed certainilities of EyeTel, including all rights to the
DigiScope, on December 26, 2007.

The DigiScope has a fully integrated digiteadus camera which allows for the capture ohhigiality dilated retinal images in
approximately ten minutes. The test is performegrimary care physicians' offices, optometry clingmd vision centers and the images
obtained are sent electronically to the Wilmer EgleReading Center and are read by retinal spetsalitie results are reviewed by the
physician or optometrist and a referral will be maad the eye specialist, such as an ophthalmo|dfdinically relevant abnormalities are
detected. The test using the DigiScope can beyeadihinistered by the physician's clinical staflenthe supervision of the physician and
requires minimal training. The DigiScope systeragl-prompting, has a touch screen and audible fmresmple operation. The DigiScope
examination is acceptable as an annual diabetiexgmination under the Health Plan Employer Dathlaformation Set, or HEDIS, 2004
technical specifications.

Market Opportunity
NC-stat System

The sensitivity of the nervous system tdahelic and mechanical damage, compounded byniitelil regenerative ability, creates a me
opportunity for a medical device that can assigtdmt-of-service diagnoses of neuropathies in ameathat is coseffective for the patient ar
third-party payer. We believe that the availabitifypoint-of-service nerve conduction studies welult in earlier detection of neuropathies,
leading to earlier therapeutic intervention andnany cases, improved clinical and economic outsoMé& believe that use of traditional
NCS/nEMG procedures is limited by the referral psscand the resulting delay in availability of diagtic information, the inconvenience ¢
discomfort of these methods for the patient, ardetkpense to the patient and third-party payer.@licy is to promote and support the
utilization of nerve conduction studies in a mansteictly consistent with prevailing guidelines the medically appropriate use of this
diagnostic




procedure. We estimate that there are approximateymillion traditional NCS/nEMG procedures curtigrperformed each year in the United
States. The most common indication for which thed#& System has been used historically is CTS. @p&sented approximately 40% of
total nerve conduction testing by our customer20@7, while DPN and low back pain represented #iarize of the testing performed. Based
on our analysis of current patient data, we estritzt the potential for point-of-service nerve adaction studies in the diabetes, low back pain
and CTS markets in the aggregate could be grdsard.5 million annual patient tests, estimateldeanore than $1.0 billion annually for our
disposable biosensors, in the United States. Homvevarket size is difficult to predict, and we cahassure you that our estimates will prov
be correct. We believe that additional applicatioha point-of-service product offering such as i@-stat System, including the clinical
assessment of patients with neuropathies caused &gsociated with other clinical disorders, cduldher increase this potential market size.
We believe a potential opportunity in the interaaél markets exists for the NC-stat System. Wentdcéaunched the NC-stat System into the
U.K. on a limited basis through a local distribuédmedical device products.

DigiScope

The high level of incidence of diabetidmepathy and its serious complications creates ken@pportunity for a device that can be used
by primary care physicians and endocrinologiste@$as optometrists at the point-of-service fag garly detection of diabetic retinopathy.
There are estimated to be 21.0 million people énlinited States with diabetes and this total isetenl to grow. Diabetic retinopathy is the
leading cause of blindness in adults age 20 td®®&nty years after diagnosis nearly all patienthWiype | diabetes have some degree of
diabetic retinopathy and 60% of all patients witp& Il diabetes have some degree of retinopathsn €vough many may not have symptoms.
The ADA recommends an annual dilated eye examindtioall patients with diabetes. In spite of ttisommendation, only approximately
50% of patients with diabetes actually receive mmual eye examination. This has created an oppoytior such testing to be performed in
primary care physician or endocrinologist officelaptometry clinics and vision centers since tipeents with diabetes are routinely seen by
these care providers.

Market Size

We estimate that there are approximatdyndllion traditional NCS/nEMG procedures currenpigrformed each year in the United Sta
This estimate is based on (1) data from a Cente®itease Control and Prevention, or CDC, repoit996 regarding NCS/nEMG procedures
ordered or performed during ambulatory patientsiand (2) data from a 2001 CMS report regardinglivke reimbursement. We anticipate
that the advantages and increased availabilityoaftpf-service products such as the NC-stat Systeaid potentially increase the number of
nerve conduction studies performed.

. We estimate the potential DPN market for a poirservice product offering such as the Ntat System could be over six mill
annual patient testd’he number of individuals with diabetes in the BdiStates was estimated to be 21.0 million, or 700%e
population. Among this group, approximately 6.0limil were undiagnosed. According to the CDC, tteeeabout 26.0 million
annual patient visits to office-based physiciansdiabetes. We anticipate that the increasing fatusarly detection and
prevention of the chronic complications of diabet@lead to increased nerve conduction studiefBN. We believe that the
estimated 50% rate of annual foot examinationsairepts known to have diabetes is a reasonable&stifor the addressable
testing market in diabetes. If these examinatioaseweplaced by a nerve conduction study, or aeneswnduction study were
added to the examination, the diabetes arena weplésent an opportunity for over six million anhN&-stat System patient
tests. The number of Americans with diabetes igepted to more than double over the next 40 to
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50 years. At the present time, there are no cuyremrketed pharmaceuticals targeted specificalPRN, and therefore nerve
conduction studies are performed on a selectivis lrasrder to address specific clinical issues @mnprovide differential
diagnosis. If a targeted therapy for DPN were sssftdly developed and marketed, we believe theahtesting would further
increase. Based on current clinical trial activitig do not believe there are any therapies for EiRiMlappear to have an
opportunity for commercial launch within the newbtyears.

We estimate the potential low back pain markeafpoin-of-service product offering such as the-stat System could be
great as three million annual patient tedtew back pain is one of the most common medicatit@ns in the United States.
Back disorders account for over one-quarter ofiaiifatal occupational injuries and illnesses teatilt in days away from work.
According to the CDC, there are about nine milléamual patient visits to office-based physiciarsc#jcally for low back
symptoms. The CDC further estimates that abouttbing-of office visits are initial visits, at whidime we believe utilization of
the NC-stat System is most likely. We thus antitdpghat there may be as many as approximately thiien testing
opportunities for nerve conduction testing relatetbw back pain for a point-of-service productesffig such as the NC-stat
System. We believe that the number of testing dppdfes may be even higher, as there are mangmtatthat visit physicians
for symptoms and medical conditions that must Ilfferdintiated from sciatica, such as leg and foatpms, rheumatoid
arthritis and diabetes.

We estimate the potential CTS market for a poirgentiice product offering such as the NC-stat Systeuld be as great as
650,000 annual patient tes8TS is a significant occupational issue, as therder results in the most days away from work
among all major disabling workplace injuries arddggses. In a health care survey published inahenadl of the American
Medical Association, approximately 14% of adultgsoeed symptoms characteristic of CTS. It was fertstimated that 2.5%
adults have true CTS, which could be confirmed lyiaal examination and nerve conduction studidssTs equivalent to
approximately five million individuals in the UnideStates. Over 350,000 surgeries are performedadigriar CTS. The surgical
procedure is called a carpal tunnel release, or.@Adst third-party payers require a nerve conduncsitudy prior to authorizing
CTR surgery. According to the CDC, there are mbanttwo million annual visits to office-based pltyans for which CTS is
the primary diagnosis. The CDC estimates that aboetthird of CTS-related office visits are initiasits, at which time we
believe utilization of a point-of-service nerve doiction product offering is most likely. As a reswe estimate that there may
be as many as 650,000 testing opportunities faimrt{f-service product offering such as the NG-Sigstem related to CTS.
We further believe that this estimate is conseveatas there are many patients that visit physicfanhand and wrist pain, or
medical conditions with a high association with CSi8h as rheumatoid arthritis, diabetes and ohaafeyalso anticipate that 1
high costs of CTS-related workers' compensatiomslaould motivate employers to increasingly ugeiat-of-service product
offering such as the NC-stat System to pre-scredmzonitor employees for CTS.

Based on the data outlined above, we eggithat the potential market size for a point-af+&ee product offering such as the NC-stat
System for nerve conduction studies in the diahét@sback pain and CTS markets in the aggregatédoe greater than 9.5 million annual
patient tests in the United States. We estimatetiigapotential market for a point-of-service prodaffering such as the NC-stat System could
be more than $1.0 billion annually in the Unitedt8s.

We estimate that the size of the markeafpoint-of-service product such as the DigiScapetfe detection of diabetic retinopathy could
be nearly $700 million. There are estimated to h@ 2illion people in the United States with digseand it is estimated that 15.0 million have
actually been diagnosed with diabetes. The Ameriziabetes Association recommends an annual eye
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examination for all people with diabetes. Usingaanual eye examination fee of $45 per patient,répsesents a potential market size of ne
$700 million.

Market size is difficult to predict, and wannot assure you that our estimates will provgetaorrect. We believe that additional
applications of a point-of-service product offesrguch as the NC-stat System and the DigiScopel dorther increase this market size.
Additionally, although we have not yet quantifiée tsize of the market, we believe a potential idonal market opportunity exists for the
NC-stat System and for the DigiScope. The potentiaketaopportunity is dependent on a number of factocluding favorable reimburseme
by third-party payers. There are no assurancegtildtparty payers will reimburse for an increaslavel of nerve conduction studies at
present levels or at all. Additionally, as thereénaeen a number of adverse developments relatitigetreimbursement for nerve conduction
studies performed with the NC-stat System, ouiitgid access this market opportunity may be lihite

Clinical Studies and Clinical Validation

The performance of the NC-stat System le@s [substantiated in clinical studies that we tsangorted, the results of which have been
published in peer-reviewed medical journals or @nésd at major medical conferences.

. In studies published in the April 2000 issue ofJournal of Occupational & Environmental Medici, the September 2000 is:
of Neurology and Clinical Neurophysiologyd the May 2004 issue of theurnal of Hand Surgerythe correlation between the
results generated by the NC-stat System and toaditiherve conduction studies in measuring nermetion of 198 patients was
examined. The correlation was equivalent to thahébbetween different neurologists performing tiadal nerve conduction
studies.

. A study published in the December 2002 issuBpmifieevaluated the ability of the NC-stat System to cieteurological
impairment in 25 patients with sciatica, confirm®dMRI and clinical examination. The diagnostic @@y of the NC-stat
System was equivalent to traditional NCS/nEMG pdares as documented in several other publishedestud

. In a study published in the August 20@erican Journal of Orthopedigghe clinical utility of the NCstat System was asses
in 72 patients with CTS. The NC-stat System wasifbio have a high correlation with traditional ledtory testing. The NGtat
System also measured statistically significant mrpment in median nerve function six months follegvCTR surgery.

. In a study published in the August 20D&betes Care the NC-stat System was shown to be comparahldeneentional nerve
conduction testing in a group of 72 patients witibétes tested for DPN.

. In a study published in the December 2@&betes Technology and Therapeutitise use of the NC-stat System in 1,400
patients with diabetes in 28 primary care/endodoigy clinics was assessed in a prospective opegl-tbdy. The NC-stat
System identified nerve conduction abnormalitieg5f6 of patients, and over 50% had results suggesfidiabetic
polyneuropathy. The NC-stat System identified megfuil levels of neuropathy in patients within AD&commended blood
glucose control and in those newly diagnosed wighetes.

. In a study published in the January 2(Physiological Measuremen, the validity of N(-stat System lower extremity ner
measurements was assessed in 60 patients referaéddterans Administration electrodiagnostic lalbary. The authors
concluded "This study shows that the technologyl tsethe NC-stat System for studying the peronedl@osterior tibial nerves
compares favorably.... with that obtained with ttiadal EMG equipment used under neurologist suigerm."
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. In the Janual-February 200°Journal of the American Board of Family Medic, a retrospective blinded study of -stat
System utilization by 613 family medicine, primamgre, and internal medicine physician practicesceaslucted. Over a two-
week period 1,190 patients underwent NCS for evminaf CTS. A total of 31% of tested limbs yieldedrmal results, 53%
indicated CTS, and the remaining studies identififeer neuropathies. The authors concluded "Thidystlemonstrated that
point-ofservice NCS by physicians for CTS was applied forapriate patient subpopulations, was performeattordance wit
evidence-based testing parameters, and generd¢edmediagnostic outcomes."

. An article published in the Winter 2007 issuePerspectives on Biological Medici, contrasted our nerve conduction st
technology with traditional NCS/nEMG proceduresamined the ways in which computer-based electrodistic equipment
serves as a disruptive innovation, addressed clygkethat need to be overcome to support widespagtion of the new
technology, and discussed the opposition genelatéid use among stakeholders in traditional NCSIGE

. A study published in the November/December 2007eis¥ Electromyography and Clinical Neurophysiologyamined 34
patients with clinical findings consistent withuaribosacral radiculopathy, or LSR, who had both @eonduction study with
NCS/nEMG and a NC-stat System based multi-paraneétetrodiagnostic study. The study concluded 'tB&tX
[electrodiagnostic] information other than NCS/nEM#&h be important in the evaluation of patienthwidssible LSR."

. In a study published in the March 2008 issu®iabetes Care 72 consecutive patients with diabetes underwédulif a
neurological examination and a concurrent evaludtio nine standard electrophysiological parametsisg conventional nerve
conduction studies (the reference standard) arairg-pf-care device (NC-stat System). Based orsthdy results, the authors
concluded that "A novel point-of-care device [N@tsBystem] has reasonable diagnostic accuracyhaisdhay represent a
sufficiently accurate alternative for detecting thifuse electrophysiological criteria necessarynake the diagnosis of diabetic
sensorimotor polyneuropathy.”

. A study published in the March 2008 issudlofirnal of Diabetes Science and Technolagsglyzed 63,779 nerve conduction
studies performed by more than 3,400 physiciantjpegusing the NC-stat System. For over 70% op#teents, the specific
diagnostic question of the presence of diabetigrmiropathy was addressed by nerve conductionestwdth evidence-based
criteria. The rate of diabetic polyneuropathy waisnid to be comparable to levels seen by acadeettremyography
laboratories. This study demonstrated that nermelection studies using computer-based electrodgtgnequipment was a
suitable tool for the diagnosis of diabetic polyropathy in large populations.

We continue to support well-designed chhi@search studies utilizing the NC-stat Systea #ne designed to demonstrate its clinical
accuracy and cost-effectiveness. In addition, séwainical studies and trials have been perfornaedi, others are underway, in which the NC-
stat System is used to measure changes in nerggdnnThe NC-stat System was utilized by Eli Liltya clinical trial of Cymbalta for the
treatment of pain associated with DPN.

The performance of the DigiScope has bedidated in clinical studies, the results of whidve been published in peer-reviewed medical
journals as highlighted belo

. In a study published in the May 2002 issuénwiestigational Ophthalmology and Visual Scientge conclusions drawn were
that "the DigiScope fulfills the instrumental recpments for a practical and cost-effective toddquire data needed to identify
diabetic patients who must be referred to an eye specialist.” The study further concluded that'fhigiScope may help
reduce the risk of vision loss in......individualeo currently do not undergo an annual eye exanoinit
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. In a study of over 2,700 patients published in @828sue oTelemedicine and-Health,the conclusions were that t
"DigiScope can be used in the primary care settirigentify patients with diabetes not currentlydenthe care of an eye
specialist who require referral to an ophthalmaoépr evaluation and management of retinopathy."

Customers

We market our products directly to primagye and specialist physicians and clinics. We fdregin marketing the DigiScope to
optometrists in 2008. The NC-stat System provide@sgry care physicians and other physicians inclgdirthopedic surgeons,
endocrinologists, rheumatologists, and pain medipinysicians, who previously were not performingeave conduction study at the point-of-
service or were referring these patients to a rlegist for a traditional NCS/nEMG procedure, witlprduct that can potentially improve the
care of their patients and with a potential newsewf revenues. As of December 31, 2007, we had $%00 active NC-stat customers. No
single customer accounted for more than 10% ofexenues in 2007, 2006 or 2005.

Currently, there are approximately 190 eosdrs using the DigiScope. We launched our salésranketing efforts for this product in the
first quarter of 2007.

Strategic Alliance

In November 2007, we entered into a stiataljance with Cyberkinetics, a medical devicengany focused on neurological conditions.
We made an investment of $2.5 million in share€yiferkinetics common stock and agreed to negdti&éerms of a joint venture with
Cyberkinetics. In February 2008, we formed PNIRrigtesral Nerve Injury Repair) LLC, a joint ventuséth initial ownership of 50% by
NeuroMetrix and 50% by Cyberkinetics, and entergd & Collaboration Agreement and Operating Agregméth them. The focus of the jo
venture is on the development and commercializaifanproduct for the treatment of peripheral nényery using the Andara™ OFS™
(Oscillating Frequency Stimulation) technology tised by Cyberkinetics from Purdue University andgisther technologies to be develog
The Andara OFS technology utilizes an oscillatiteg&ical field to stimulate the regeneration glired nerves and has been shown in initial
human clinical studies to provide a statisticalgngficant improvement in sensory and motor funetad patients with acute spinal cord injuri

Together with Cyberkinetics, we are in pieclinical stage of development of this produdijch we expect will require the filing of a
premarket approval application, or PMA, with theA-Jnder the terms of our joint venture agreemeitit @yberkinetics, we have agreed to
fund the first $2.0 million of program costs undleg joint venture and any required funding beydrainitial $2.0 million will be shared
equally by NeuroMetrix and Cyberkinetics. Cyberkiog has agreed to contribute the Andara OFS tdogp@nd certain additional
technology, know-how and intellectual property. €siinetics will manufacture products commercializedier the agreement and we have
received sales and marketing rights to all prodostemercialized under the joint venture. The twmpanies have agreed to charge the joint
venture at actual cost for all expenses associgitadthe manufacturing of the products commercedizinder the agreement and all expenses
associated with the sales and marketing of theymtsccommercialized.

There are estimated to be approximately@mDperipheral nerve injuries annually and itefidved that at least 100,000 of these injuries
could benefit from electrical stimulation to progideural repair and regeneration. It is believed tthe market opportunity for a therapeutic for
peripheral nerve injury is substantial.

As part of the strategic alliance, Neurolifealso received a right of first negotiation the commercialization and distribution rights in
North America to a product under development by&kimetics for the treatment of acute spinal cojdry using the Andara OFS technolo
This right
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expires on December 31, 2008. Cyberkinetics had fil Humanitarian Device Exemption, or HDE, with BDA for this product, since there
are fewer than 4,000 patients who could potentiadliyefit from the Andara OFS product. The prodocisists of a device which is implantec
close proximity to the spine and a series of etelets which are attached to the spine above anavlibisite of the spinal cord injury. The
implant remains in place for approximately 15 weaRd is then removed. The market opportunity ferAlmdara OFS device for acute spinal
cord injury is believed to be as large as $150iomlannually. There are no assurances that Cytetikmwill receive FDA approval of their
HDE filing and there are no assurances that webeilable to successfully obtain the commercialirasind distribution rights to the product.

We also obtained a first right of negotiatio acquire Cyberkinetics and this right expoadDecember 31, 2008.
Geographic Information

Substantially all of our assets, revenuasexpenses for the years ended December 31, 2008,and 2005 were located at or derived
from operations in the United States. As a reduthe launch of the NC-stat System in the Unitedd¢iom, which has been on a limited basis
to date, we had initial revenues from sales outsideUnited States beginning in the third quarfe2G®7.

Sales, Marketing and Distribution

Currently, we employ 50 regional sales ngans, 5 regional sales directors and a nationaekgditector who sell directly to physician
practices. During 2007, we terminated the relatiqpswe had with independent sales agencies inwudational firms such as Physician
Sales & Service and Henry Schein, Inc. Our prodatsprimarily marketed and distributed within theited States, although we initiated st
efforts in the United Kingdom during the third gtearof 2007.

We launched our sales and marketing effortthe DigiScope product for the detection oftdific retinopathy in the first quarter of 2007.
This product is being sold directly to primary détds care physicians through our sales force. TigiSEbpe is being marketed to our installed
base of NC-stat System customers and to potentially physician office customers. We obtained atusiwe sales and marketing license to
the DigiScope from EyeTel in the fourth quarteR606 for the primary diabetes care market and aeduiubstantially all of the assets and
assumed certain liabilities of EyeTel on Deceml&r2D07, expanding the market opportunity intoghtometry clinic and vision center
market. We recently launched our sales and maxkefiforts for the DigiScope into the optometry metrlEyeTel had conducted pilot studies
in a number of vision centers at Wal-Mart stores, [Eyes clinics and CostCo clinics. Our sales f@lems to market the DigiScope to these
vision centers starting in 2008 once a comprehersies and marketing strategy has been developed.

We invest significant efforts in technicainical and business practices training for agional sales managers. We also require each
representative to attend periodic sales and pradaicing programs. The efforts of our regionaksamnanagers are enhanced by proprietary
software tools that are accessed via a secure t@ehdiich we refer to as the sales portal. Thisgbgives our sales personnel access to real
time customer sales and product usage informat@mous applications to help identify and close rmwiness and marketing materials. The
portal also provides customer relationship managefioactions.

We generally market our products direatiyptimary care and specialist physicians. The NE-8ystem provides primary care and
specialist physicians, who previously were not enfiing a nerve conduction study at the point-of4ser or were referring these patients to a
neurologist for a traditional NCS/nEMG proceduréhve product that can potentially improve the cafréheir patients and with a potential r
source of revenues. We believe that there are itapbmarketing advantages of the NC-stat Systera.NQstat System can potentially helg
accelerate the diagnosis
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of neuropathies by allowing primary care and spgestiphysicians to perform a nerve conduction statlhe point-ofservice rather than havii
to make a referral to a neurologist. We also masketproducts at various industry conferences deoto accelerate the market awareness of
our products, and market adoption for our products.

We are evaluating our options for salesrmadketing of our products outside the United Stae will likely use distributors in these
foreign markets given their direct understandingadh relevant market and the unique requiremdrgsling products in each market.
Consistent with this strategy, we recently launcbedsales efforts for the N&at System on a limited basis into the United idiom through
distributor of medical device products, represantnr initial commercial sales in Europe. We expgedell our products such as the NC-stat
System in Europe through distributors who will &té@aventory and ship product and bill directly tastomers.

We generally invoice products purchasedinycustomers directly to physician offices andeottustomers. Our regional managers are
compensated by a combination of base salary, cosionis and goal-based bonus compensation.

Our success is highly dependent on ouitald maintain our direct sales force. In markatisside the United States, we may be unable to
enter into agreements with qualified distributonscommercially reasonable terms or at all and we nwd be successful in maintaining the
existing sales and marketing infrastructure we tdexeloped. Even if we are able to enter into agesgs with distributors outside the United
States, these parties may not commit the necesssoyrces to effectively market and sell our prasloc ultimately be successful in selling «
products.

Promotion and sales of medical devicesal® highly regulated not only by the FDA, but atgothe Federal Trade Commission, and,
outside the United States, by other internatiowalids, and are subject to federal and state fraddabuse enforcement activities.

We have products in development that, @cegsfully commercialized, may require us to dgv@leeparate specialized sales force to call
on anesthesiologists or other specialists.

Manufacturing and Supply

We rely on outside contractors for the nfaowre and servicing of our products and their gonents, and we do not currently maintain
alternative manufacturing sources for the NC-stanitor, docking station or biosensors, the DigiSzop any other finished goods products. In
outsourcing, we target companies that meet FD/Arivational Organization for Standardization, or |80d other quality standards supported
by internal policies and procedures. Supplier pertnce is maintained and managed through a coreeatition program ensuring all product
requirements are met or exceeded. We believe thasefacturing relationships minimize our capitaldstment, provide us with
manufacturing expertise and help control costs.

Following the receipt of products or prodaomponents from our third-party manufacturers caeduct the necessary inspection and
packaging and labeling at our corporate headqusafiéeility. We may consider manufacturing certaioducts or product components
internally, if and when demand or quality requirensemake it appropriate to do so. We currently hawvelans to manufacture any products or
product components internally.

We seek to obtain products from our martufaes in order to maintain sufficient inventorysatisfy our customer obligations. We did not
experience any inventory shortages on any estaaliphoducts in 2007, although we did experienceesdefays in production with Parlex
Corporation, or Parlex, the manufacturer of ousbitsors. If our third-party manufacturers are umébimanufacture our products to keep up
with demand, we would not meet expectations fortuginess.
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Parlex has been manufacturing our NC-steemsors since early 1999. In August 2006, weredtimto a mutually exclusive
manufacturing and supply agreement with Parlexyamsto which Parlex will manufacture and supplyi$o and we will purchase from Parl:
at agreed upon prices per unit, all of our requéets of biosensors for resale in the United Statader the agreement, Parlex has agreed |
manufacture biosensors to be used to measure cemdeiction for any other company during the terrthefagreement and, in some cases, for
a period of one year thereafter. Either party nesgninate the agreement at any time upon not less 1B months prior written notice, provided
that neither party may terminate the agreement poidugust 2, 2008. Parlex manufactures our bissemat a facility in Massachusetts and
also has the ability to perform certain manufaciyisteps for our biosensors at a second site b@atine United Kingdom. We have been
working closely with Parlex on certain productigsues they have experienced which we believe rgtaterily to the transition of
manufacturing of our biosensors to a new facilipgi@ted by Parlex. We have experienced an incirdbe number of biosensors that have
produced a usable result when used by our custoanerfave been working to resolve this issue watheR.

Sunburst EMS, Inc., or Sunburst, has beanufacturing our NC-stat monitors and docking stetisince November 2005. We signed a
formal supply agreement with Sunburst during 2G@¥&lie continued manufacturing and supply of oagdbstic devices. Sunburst
manufactures the current generation of the NCeb#afnostic devices and the ADVANCE System at difgéh Massachusetts.

The DigiScope is manufactured by TopZorecibnics, Inc., or TopZone, a manufacturer locatedhina. We currently purchase
DigiScopes from TopZone through purchase ordererahan a formal manufacturing agreement.

We and our third-party manufacturers aggstered with the FDA and subject to compliancenidDA quality system regulations. We are
also ISO registered and undergo frequent qualiyesy audits by European agencies. The NC-stati8yatel the DigiScope are cleared for
marketing within the United States and Canada,thadNC-stat System is also approved for marketirtpé European Union, although to date
our sales have been primarily in the United Stabes.facility and the facilities of our manufacttsare subject to periodic inspections by
regulatory authorities, and may undergo complidgnspections conducted by the FDA and corresponsiatg agencies. We were inspected by
the FDA in May 2003. During its inspection, the Fx&ued a Form 483, which is a notice of inspeabbservations. Two minor items were
identified and the corrective actions for both wiaigated prior to the completion of the audit.élfesponses provided to the FDA were dee
adequate and no further action has been requesteiregistered device manufacturer, we and oumfaaturers will undergo regularly
scheduled FDA quality system inspections. Howeaddijtional FDA inspections may occur if deemed seaey by the FDA.

Products Under Development and Research and Develognt

Our research and development efforts aredfed in the near term on further enhancing owstiegi products, which includes developing
the ADVANCE System and new nerve conduction el@gsy as well as developing the NAVIGATOR platfoargystem for the minimally
invasive delivery of drugs and other therapeutierdasg for regional anesthesia, pain control and lweatment of neuropathies by both speci
physicians and primary care physicians.

Our research and development staff consfs8 people, including seven who hold Ph.D. obMlegrees. Our research and development
group has extensive experience in neurophysiolbigynedical instrumentation, signal processing, lddival sensors, optics and information
systems. These individuals work closely with ourkeg&ing group, our clinical support group (led ba@ard-certified neurologist), our
scientific advisors and our customers to desigmlycts that are intended to improve clinical outceme
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Devices for Regional Anesthesia, Pain Control drelTreatment of Neuropathi

In pursuit of our objective to develop meadidevices that provide solutions for the diageesid treatment of patients with nervous sy:
disorders, including neuropathies, and neurovascdis@ases and that provide solutions for regianakthesia and pain control, we are
expanding our product base beyond the diagnostitaaand into the treatment arena. We believe tiratare technology can be adapted and
extended to provide minimally invasive approacloeserve localization and specifically to providgiomal anesthesia, pain control and
treatments for neuropathies. We are developind\tW&IGATOR platform, a proprietary neuro-electricalidance system, that is designed to
help physician's position drug delivery devicessas hypodermic needles and catheters safely doklyjin very close proximity to specific
nerves to optimize the therapeutic benefit.

The use of nerve localization instrumentatind needles is a standard of care for nervék lpmredures which are increasingly the
preferred form of anesthesia for many surgical edoces, particularly within orthopedics. This céfie@ively provide the physician with
confirmation that the needle is in the proper lmratind can optimize the efficacy of anesthetidvaey.

We believe that neuropathies, that arelfiocaature, can be safely and effectively treatettugs can be delivered near the disease site
without damaging the nerve in the process. Sontkeasfe types of treatments are performed todaythleytare performed manually by a limit
number of physicians. Our NAVIGATOR developmentgrnam includes the design of a product versionweabelieve will reduce the risk
involved in providing these treatments.

Current approaches to regional anesthesianarve block include ultrasound and some alteraaipproaches to nerve localization.
Clinical studies have been performed by third parthat demonstrate that the two approaches, altnalsand nerve stimulation, are
comparable. The limitations of ultrasound inclulde fact that a high level of expertise and trainggequired, there is no objective evidence
that a nerve has been successfully blocked, amd thay be difficulty in visualizing the tip of tligjection needle. While the current generation
of nerve localization technology is generally effiee, it is limited with respect to both accuragydausability and confirmation of the
effectiveness of the treatment is subjective. Basediscussions with anesthesiologists, we belieaethere is a need for improvements in
nerve localization products that may be provideabyNAVIGATOR platform.

After establishing our technology in anesih, we plan to proceed into the broader marketdtect clinical conditions such as the
treatment and management of CTS and common padrayres.

We expect that our NAVIGATOR products widsemble our diagnostic products in that there lvéglthree key components:

. consumables that will include proprietary nervealagmation and drug delivery needl¢
. electrodes and other disposables;
. an electronic instrument linked to our onCall Imf@tion System.

There are no assurances that our devicesdomnal anesthesia, pain control and the treatmieneuropathies will be successfully
developed, receive 510(k) clearance from the FDéthat, if launched, sales and marketing effortilvei successful.

NCS/nEMG Systen

We have an ongoing program of making endar@nts and improvements to our nerve conductiodyats. We are developing new
biosensors and associated software for the megliapfiropriate testing of additional nerves. We halge developed a more advanced
diagnostic device, the ADVANCE System, for which sedmitted a 510(K) filing to the FDA in 2007.
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The ADVANCE System has a number of impdrtanovations and features:

. Key technical and engineering specifications thatslieve meet or exceed those of other electradstg devices on the
market.
. Advanced signal processing algorithms that propidgsicians with high quality and detailed nervedugtion data to

incorporate into their diagnostic assessment. We fiked two patents on these algorithms.

. A user interface consisting of a high resolutiofoctouch screen that allows physicians and theifaal staff to conduc
accurate nerve conduction studies and other elfiaynostic tests in a straightforward manner. Tisisr interface provides for
real-time data review including waveforms.

. Compatibility with existing disposables and withanelectrode sets that we develop in the fut

. The capability to support the performance of nEM@ls.
Neural Repair and Regeneration

In February 2008, we formed PNIR (PeriphBlierve Injury Repair) LLC, a joint venture with Bgrkinetics. The focus of the joint
venture is on the development and commercializaifanproduct for the treatment of peripheral nenjery using the Andara OFS technology
licensed by Cyberkinetics from Purdue Universitg aising other technologies to be developed withénjoint venture. The Andara OFS
technology utilizes electrical stimulation for tregeneration of injured nerves. Together with Ckivestics, we are in the preclinical stage of
development of this product, which we expect véljuire the filing of a PMA with the FDA.

There are estimated to be approximately@@peripheral nerve injuries annually and itetidved that at least 100,000 of these injuries
could benefit from electrical stimulation to progideural repair and regeneration. It is believed tine market opportunity for a therapeutic for
peripheral nerve injury could be substantial.

As part of the strategic alliance with Cgldeetics, we also received a right of first negtian for the commercialization and distribution
rights in North America to a product under develepirby Cyberkinetics for the treatment of acut@abptord injury using the Andara OFS
technology. This right expires on December 31, 2@®erkinetics has filed an HDE with the FDA fbist product, since there are fewer than
4,000 patients who could potentially benefit frdme Andara OFS product. The product consists ofvicdevhich is implanted in close
proximity to the spine and a series of electrodbEware attached to the spine above and belowith®f the spinal cord injury. The implant
remains in place for approximately 15 weeks arttiés removed. The market opportunity for the Andars device for acute spinal cord
injury is believed to be approximately $150 milliannually. There are no assurances that Cyber&meiil receive FDA approval of their
HDE filing and there are no assurances that webeilble to successfully obtain the sales and rtiagkgghts to the product.

NEUROMetrix®, NC-stat®, ADVANCE™, DigiScofieand onCall® are trademarks of ours. Andara™ aR&U are registered
trademarks of Cyberkinetics.

During 2007, 2006 and 2005, we spent $4l8om $5.0 million and $3.8 million, respectivelpn research and development.
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Competition

We consider the primary competition for M@-stat System to be traditional NCS/NEMG procedutes. success depends in large par
convincing physicians to adopt the NC-stat Systemrder to perform nerve conduction studies aptiat-of-service.

There are a number of companies thatsalittonal NCS/NnEMG equipment, typically to neurgikts. These companies include Cardinal
Healthcare (acquired Viasys Healthcare Inc. in 20CG&dwell Laboratories, Inc and Natus (acquiretlInc. in 2007). Cardinal Healthcare
has substantially greater financial resources #ado, and they have established a reputation affeative worldwide distribution channel
medical instruments to neurologists and other mhgss. Xltec, Inc. launched a product for the paifiservice nerve conduction studies ma
in 2006 and subsequently announced that they wighelnawing this product from the market. We are maf one additional company,
Neumed Inc., that markets a nerve conduction ssydiem to the poi-of-service market.

We believe that among systems marketethfoperformance of nerve conduction studies todaly, the NC-stat System provides the
level of diagnostic accuracy, the level of automatind the ease of use required for successfutiadioa of the point-of-service market. We
also believe that the reporting and data repositangtions provided by the onCall Information Systelthough entirely optional, provide our
customers who use this service with added valuggheot matched by other currently marketed préslud/e further believe that the expand
database of nerve conduction study data capturedebgnCall Information System facilitates our @pito improve the performance of the NC-
stat System. We believe that the size of our da@bad ongoing improvements provide us with a B@ant competitive advantage.

There are a number of companies that gelpenent for the detection of eye disorders sucti@setic retinopathy. These companies, such
as Optos plc, sell primarily to the ophthalmologigtrket rather than to the primary care, endoooigpplnd optometry markets.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of patents, trades, copyrights, trade secrets and other intelf@giroperty laws, nondisclosure agreements
and other measures to protect our proprietary oy, intellectual property rights and know-howe\Wold issued utility patents covering a
number of important aspects of our MGt System. We believe that in order to have apetitive advantage, we must develop and maintad
proprietary aspects of our technologies. We aldd o exclusive license with Johns Hopkins Unitgrd manufacture, use and sell the
DigiScope pursuant to a patent held by the unitsetBat will remain in-force until 2018. Currenthye require our employees, consultants and
advisors to execute confidentiality agreementoimection with their employment, consulting or adwvy relationships with us, where
appropriate. We also require our employees, caanstsltand advisors, who we expect to work on oudymets, to agree to disclose and assign to
us all inventions conceived during the work dawedeped using our property or which relate to ousibess. Despite any measures taken to
protect our intellectual property, unauthorizedtiparmay attempt to copy aspects of our producte obtain and use information that we
regard as proprietary.

Patents

As of December 31, 2007, we had 16 issu&l patents, 21 issued foreign patents and 38 pgmditent applications, including 25 U.S.
applications, 4 International PCT applications 8rfdreign national applications. We also hold adlesive license from the Massaschusetts
Instiitute of Technology to two issued U.S. patertd two issued foreign patents. We hold an exddulstense to one U.S. patent and 5 foreign
patents held by Johns Hopkins University to mantufac use and sell
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the DigiScope. The license also covers one additipanding foreign patent application. The issued pending patents that we own and
license cover, among other things:

. Nerve conduction biosensors and related methods;

. Nerve conduction hardwar

. Algorithms for performing and analyzing nerve coadtilon studies
. NC-stat System industrial design; and

. Opthalmic imaging service with certain capabiliti

Our issued design patents begin to expiDil5, and our issued utility patents begin tarexip 2017. In particular, seven of our issued
U.S. utility patents covering important aspectswf current products will expire on the same dat2d17. Although the patent protection for
material aspects of our products covered by thenslaf the patents will be lost at that time, wediadditional patents and patent applications
directed to other novel inventions that will haxstgnt terms extending beyond 2017.

The medical device industry is charactetilzg the existence of a large number of patentdrugient litigation based on allegations of
patent infringement. Patent litigation can invobgamplex factual and legal questions, and its outc@uncertain. Any claim relating to
infringement of patents that is successfully assegaigainst us may require us to pay substantiahdasi Even if we were to prevail, any
litigation could be costly and time-consuming anolnd divert the attention of our management andgexgonnel from our business
operations. Our success will also depend in padwmot infringing patents issued to others, idolg our competitors and potential
competitors. If our products are found to infrirtge patents of others, our development, manufaetodesale of these potential products could
be severely restricted or prohibited. In addition; competitors may independently develop simiéahnhologies. Because of the importance of
our patent portfolio to our business, we may losekat share to our competitors if we fail to protear intellectual property rights.

As the number of entrants into our marketéases, the possibility of a patent infringenwdgitn against us grows. Although we have not
received notice of any claims, and are not awaaedhbr products infringe other parties' patents @uogrietary rights, our products and meth
may be covered by U.S. patents held by our congpstitn addition, our competitors may assert thaire products we may market infringe
their patents.

A patent infringement suit brought agaumsimay force us or any strategic partners or lieess$o stop or delay developing, manufacturing
or selling potential products that are claimedtfoinge a third-party's intellectual property, wisdehat party grants us rights to use its
intellectual property. In such cases, we may beired to obtain licenses to patents or proprietayiyts of others in order to continue to
commercialize our products. However, we may ncaliie to obtain any licenses required under anyngate proprietary rights of third parties
on acceptable terms, or at all. Even if we were &blobtain rights to the third-party's intelledtpeoperty, these rights may be non-exclusive,
thereby giving our competitors access to the samedieéctual property. Ultimately, we may be unaidleommercialize some of our potential
products or may have to cease some of our busapesations as a result of patent infringement ddaiwhich could severely harm our
business.

Trademarks

We hold domestic registrations for the saflEUROMETRIX, NC-STAT, onCall and DIGISCOPE. Weahold certain foreign
trademark registration's for the marks NEUROMETRI NC-STAT. Andara OFS (Oscillating Field StimoRtis a registered trademark of
Cyberkinetics.
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Third -Party Reimbursement

Reimbursement from third-party payers israportant element of success for medical prodogtepanies. We anticipate that sales
volumes and prices of our products will continudéodependent in large part on the availabilityeifhbursement for our customers from third-
party payers and on policies issued by governmeagi@hcies. Third-party payers include governmepragrams such as Medicare and
Medicaid, private insurance plans, and workers'pemsation plans. These organizations may deny ageeaand refuse reimbursement for a
diagnostic procedure or specific product such asheuropathy diagnostic system, the NC-stat Sysifetimey determine that the diagnostic test
or product was not medically appropriate, reasaabhecessary. Tests will be considered not miyliemsonable or necessary if they are
deemed "investigational” (i.e. there is insufficiemidence of efficacy or accuracy.) The third-parayers may also attempt to place limitations
on the types of physicians that can perform spetjfies of diagnostic procedures. Also, third-padyers are increasingly challenging the
prices charged for medical products and servicemtérnational markets, reimbursement and healhgayment systems vary significantly by
country, and many countries have instituted paymeiings on specific product lines and proceduvés.cannot assure you that procedures
using our products will be considered medicallysmeable and necessary for a specific indicatiaat,abir products will be considered cost-
effective by third-party payers, that proceduregqrened using our products will be reimbursed gsasate procedures under existing
reimbursement codes, that an adequate level obresement will be available or that the third-parayyers' coverage and reimbursement
policies will not adversely affect our ability telsour products profitably.

As our presence in the market has expandediave experienced and are likely to continuexggerience an increased focus from third-
party payers and governmental agencies regardegeimbursement of nerve conduction studies peddrosing the NC-stat System and an
increased focus from these organizations regatti@grofessional requirements for performing neweduction studies in general. A number
of third-party payers, including commercial payéraye taken and may continue to take the positigrobreimbursing our customers for their
use of the NC-stat System.

There are sixteen organizations servinigpea insurance carriers that, on behalf of Medicarocess claims submitted by physician
practice groups and other healthcare providerseatablish what are called local coverage deterioingtor LCDs. In the absence of a posil
issued by Medicare at the national level, the L&Baed by these local insurance carriers governdihebursement of procedures performed
using medical devices such as the NC-stat Systemn@the second half of 2006 and in 2007, seMecal Medicare carriers issued draft
LCDs, final LCDs or coding articles specificallydréssing coverage and reimbursement policies uvddicare for nerve conduction studies
performed using the NC-stat System or other autecha¢rve conduction equipment. Several of theséecaindicated that they will not
reimburse physicians under Medicare for nerve cotidio studies performed using the NC-stat Systedeuthe three existing Current
Procedural Terminology, or CPT, codes for convergimerve conduction studies (95900, 95903 and #6590t rather that physicians must
submit claims for reimbursement for these proceslureler a miscellaneous CPT code (95999), in wtaske the local carriers may determine
the level of reimbursement to be paid, if any. @®Biles are used in the submission of claims to émsuincluding the Center for Medicaid and
Medicare Services, for reimbursement for medicalises. CPT codes are assigned, maintained anseeay the CPT Editorial Panel
administered by the AMA. There are three local Mad# carriers with final LCDs, one local Medicaeerer with a draft LCD, and one local
Medicare carrier with a coding article which addresverage and reimbursement policies under Meslficamerve conduction studies
performed using the NGtat System. One additional Medicare carrier, wihiati previously issued a final LCD, reversed tpesition effective
June 30, 2007. In certain regions impacted by theisgbursement decisions, our customers have experd lower levels of reimbursement
and higher levels of claims denials. If physicidosnot receive adequate reimbursement under theeli@aeous CPT code from those local
carriers, our existing customers may continuertatlor curtail their use of
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the NC-stat System and we may be unable to ob&ainaustomers, both of which could materially andeaglely impact our revenues and
profitability.

The AMA formed a work group in early 20@7examine the reimbursement coding of nerve cofmlustudies and nerve conduction
equipment, including the NC-stat System. The figdiof this committee were presented to the AMA @&elfiorial Panel at a meeting in
February 2008. During the CPT Panel meeting, sépeoaosals for new Category | CPT codes, whichegalty are included in the Medicare
physician fee schedule and are assigned specé#igtbursement values, were presented by the chagpgiof the work group and were
supported by several physician societies. In gjditais, the only proposal voted on was for theatiol of a new Category Il CPT code, which
generally would not be included on the Medicaregitign fee schedule and would not generally havasaigned reimbursement value, for
nerve conduction studies performed using equipméhtcertain automated features such as the NCSststem. At this meeting, we believe
that the CPT Panel approved a new Category Il CBde for nerve conduction studies performed usipgpement with certain automated
features such as the NC-stat System. Unless webéado successfully challenge this decision, a @ategory |1l CPT Code would likely be
published in July 2008 and become effective in aan@2009. In the event that a Category Ill CPT csdeublished which describes nerve
conduction studies performed with the NC-stat Systewould likely result in limited or no Medicareimbursement for such studies as a
result of the potential that no specified reimboreat values would be assigned to these codesisThkely to adversely impact reimbursem
by other third party payers and is likely to haneaalverse and material impact on our revenuesesdts of operations.

The LCDs and coding articles issued byliidedicare carriers have also addressed a numhahef issues, including (1) the background
and training of physicians supervising or perforgnirerve conduction studies, (2) the level of tragniequirements for technicians performir
nerve conduction study, (3) whether nerve condadists should be required to be performed conemtiytwith a needle electromyography
procedure and (4) whether the NC-stat System igpaoable to conventional nerve conduction testingm@yent. We do not believe that these
LCDs prohibit physicians from receiving reimbursernender Medicare for medically necessary nervelaotion studies performed using the
NC-stat System. However, these LCDs do appear torgetead at limiting access to perform and/or reirsbarent for nerve conduction stud
In certain cases, these LCDs are being interp@t@dplemented in a manner that impacts the allitghysicians to receive reimbursement
under Medicare, including lower levels of reimbungamt and an increase in the number of claims beémged, for nerve conduction studies
performed using the NC-stat System, which is hagingdverse impact on our revenues.

Additionally, a significant number of comroml payers, including the majority of regionauBICross Blue Shield carriers, and other
major private payers, have adopted general polini#isating that they will not provide reimbursenhéor the use of the NC-stat System. These
general policies are not followed in every situatiand may be impacted by other factors such asfgparrangements with insured persons or
physicians and any local or regional policies themgers have in place; however, we believe thesergépolicies are negatively impacting the
use of the NC-stat System by existing customersoamdales to new customers, both of which arertgpan adverse impact on our revenues.
These commercial payers have cited various redsotiseir reimbursement policies, including, amantpers, that the NC-stat System is
experimental and investigational. We have been conmicating with these payers, directly, through customers or through our network of
reimbursement consultants, to attempt to addressabncerns. Third-party payers may also impogeirements on physicians to submit
additional paperwork supporting the medical net¢gsdinerve conduction studies performed usingNkestat System. We believe these
requirements are negatively impacting the use ®Ng-stat System by existing customers and ous $alaew customers, both of which are
having an adverse impact on our revenues.
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Additional third-party payers, includingcldl Medicare carriers and commercial payers, cpatdntially take a position that could reduce
or eliminate the reimbursement for the M@t System and could have the impact of detetrgage by our customers and could have an ac
impact on our revenues.

We believe that eye scans performed usiadigiScope are being reimbursed by the majofityiod-party payers. Many commercial
payers have policies in place providing for reinrgament for the use of the DigiScope and many detipayers have published favorable
articles about the DigiScope in their newslettelswever, several Medicare carriers have issued Hebs and coding articles that require a
diagnosis of pre-existing retinal disease and/diromily reimburse for fundus photography, a higbpecialized form of medical imaging, when
performed in conjunction with an eye examinatiorfgrened by an eye specialist. There are no assasahat other Medicare carriers will not
issue similar draft LCDs, final LCDs or coding akéis restricting the reimbursement for the usénefigiScope. We believe that eye
examinations performed on patients covered by Medicepresented less than 25% of our DigiScopentegein 2007. However, the
restrictions on reimbursement by Medicare carendd have an adverse impact on our ability to goenwDigiScope revenues in future
periods.

In the optometry clinic market, we may hetas dependent on reimbursement by third paitiee snany of the screenings performed in
these clinics using the DigiScope are paid for atygmts out of pocket. The more comprehensive festormed in the optometry clinics using
the DigiScope are submitted for reimbursement amdhbility to penetrate this market and grow owereues will be dependent on favorable
reimbursement from third-party payers.

In the United States, some insured indialdare receiving their medical care through madagee programs, which monitor and often
require pre-approval of the services that a memlilereceive. Some managed care programs are pdkigproviders on a per capita basis,
which puts the providers at financial risk for gervices provided to their patients by paying th@seiders a predetermined payment per
member per month, and consequently, may limit thingness of these providers to use our products.

We believe that the overall escalating odshedical products and services has led to, aid¢dentinue to lead to, increased pressures on
the healthcare industry to reduce the costs ofymisdand services. We cannot assure you that plairy- reimbursement and coverage will be
available or adequate, or that future legislatiegulation, or reimbursement policies of third-ggrayers will not adversely affect the demand
for our products or our ability to sell these protduon a profitable basis. The unavailability aadequacy of third-party payer coverage or
reimbursement could have a material adverse effeciur business, operating results and financiadlition. In addition, we believe that
pressure is being applied on payer organizatiorgplegialists, such as neurologists, who perforuiticanal nerve conduction studies and view
the NC-stat System as competitive with their bussne

FDA and Other Governmental Regulation
FDA Regulatior

Our products are medical devices subjeektensive regulation by the FDA under the U.S.dfald~ood, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, or
FDCA, and the regulations promulgated thereto, @ as other regulatory bodies in the U.S. and atbrd he FDA classifies medical devices
into one of three classes on the basis of the alsnleemed necessary to reasonably ensure thefy safd effectiveness:

. Class |, requiring general controls, including llidog device listing, reporting and, for some protiy adherence to got
manufacturing practices through the FDA's qualjtstam regulations and pre-market notification;
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. Class Il, requiring general controls and specialtiads, which may include performance standardspoa-market surveillance
and

. Class lll, requiring general controls and PMA, whioay include post-approval conditions and postketasurveillance.

Before being introduced into the market, mwwducts must obtain market clearance or apprbvalgh the 510(k) pre-market notification
process, thele novareview process or the PMA process.

510(k) Pre-Market Notification Process

To obtain 510(k) clearance, we must sulangite-market notification demonstrating that thepeised device is substantially equivalent in
intended use, safety and effectiveness to a legaisketed Class | or Il medical device or to a €ldisdevice marketed prior to May 28, 1976
for which the FDA has not yet required the subnoissif a PMA application. In some cases, we mayebeired to perform clinical trials to
support a claim of substantial equivalence. Ifichhtrials are required, we must submit an apgilicefor an investigational device exemption,
or IDE, which must be cleared by the FDA priortie start of a clinical investigation, unless theide and clinical investigation are considered
non-significant risk by the FDA or are exempt frtéime IDE requirements. It generally takes three m®ftom the date of the pre-market
notification submission to obtain 510(k) clearartng, it can be significantly longer.

After a medical device receives 510(k) de@ae, any modification that could significantlyeat its safety or effectiveness, or that would
constitute a major change in its intended use,iresja new 510(k) clearance or could reqdeenovaclassification or PMA. The FDA allows
each company to make this determination, but th& E&n review the decision. If the FDA disagreeshweitcompany's decision not to seek
FDA authorization, the FDA may require the comptmgeek 510(k) clearance or PMA. The FDA also emjuire the company to cease
marketing and/or recall the medical device in goestntil 510(k) clearancele novcclassification or PMA is obtained or take othel@tt

De Novo Review Proce

If a previously unclassified medical devites not qualify for the 510(k) pre-market notfion process because there is no predicate
device to which it is substantially equivalent, afithe device may be adequately regulated thrayegteral controls or special controls, the
device may be eligible fate novaclassification through what is called tle novareview process. In order to use theenovareview process, a
company must receive a letter from the FDA statitad, because the device has been found not stibfitaaquivalent to a legally marketed
Class | or Il medical device or to a Class Il devimarketed prior to May 28, 1976 for which the FB&s not yet required the submission of a
PMA application, it has been placed into ClassAfter receiving this letter, the company, withi@ 8ays, must submit to the FDA a reques!
de novcclassification into Class | or 1. The FDA then t@&&days in which to classify the device. If theA-Brantsde novaclassification, the
device will be placed into either Class | or Clsand allowed to be marketed. If a product issslfied into Class | or Il through thie novo
review process, then that device may serve asdicate device for subsequent 510(k) pre-markefinations.

PMA Proces:

If a medical device does not qualify foe $110(k) pre-market notification process and iseligiible for clearance through tke novo
review process, a company must file a PMA applicatifhe PMA process generally requires more exterggie-filing testing than is required
in the 510(K) pre-market notification process andhre costly, lengthy and uncertain. The PMA pssagan take one to three years or longer,
from the time the PMA application is filed with tR®A. The PMA process requires the company to pthaethere is a reasonable assurance
of the safety and
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effectiveness of the device to the FDA's satistercthrough extensive submissions, including preicdil and clinical trial data, and information
about the device, its design, manufacture, labelimtjcomponents. Before granting PMA, the FDA galhealso performs an on-site
inspection of manufacturing facilities for the puotito ensure compliance with the FDA's qualitytegsregulations.

If FDA grants PMA, the approved indicatianay be more limited than those originally sougtaddition, FDA's approval order may
include post-approval conditions that the FDA bed®necessary to ensure the safety and effectiverfidse device, including, among other
things, restrictions on labeling, promotion, sald distribution and post-market study requiremeRésglure to comply with the post-approval
conditions can result in adverse enforcement origigtrative actions, including the withdrawal okthpproval. After any PMA, a new PMA
application or application supplement may be rezflin the event of modifications to the devicelatseling, intended use or indication, or its
manufacturing process that affect safety and éffexcess.

Pos-Approval Obligations

After a device is placed on the market, atous regulatory requirements continue to applgs€éhnclude:

. the FDA's Quality System Regulation, or QSR, whigtjuires manufacturers, including third-party mactidrers, to follow
stringent design, testing, control, documentatiot @ther quality assurance procedures during pées of the manufacturing
process;

. labeling regulations and FDA prohibitions agaif&t promotion of products for uncleared or unappdayses (known as off-

label uses), as well as requirements to providewate information on both risks and benefits;

. medical device reporting, or MDR, regulations, whiequire that manufacturers report to FDA if trisrice may have caused
or contributed to a death or serious injury or mradtioned in a way that would likely cause or cimite to a death or serious
injury if the malfunction were to recur;

. correction and removal reporting regulations, whietuire that manufacturers report to the FDA figddrections and device
recalls or removals if undertaken to reduce atashealth posed by the device or to remedy a varatf the FDCA caused by
the device which may present a risk to health;

. post-market surveillance regulations, which applZtass Il or Il devices if the FDA has issuedmstamarket surveillance ord:
and the failure of the device would be reasonakbty to have serious adverse health consequetieeslevice is expected to
have significant use in the pediatric populatitw, device is intended to be implanted in the hubrady for more than one year,
or the device is intended to be used to suppaststain life and to be used outside a user fagility

. regular and for cause inspections by FDA to revaemvanufacturer's facilities and their compliancthaipplicable FDA
requirements; and

. the FDA's recall authority, whereby it can askpaier, device manufacturers to recall from the rebgkproduct that is in
violation of governing laws and regulations.
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NC-stat System

The NC-stat System has received six 51€f@grances as a Class Il medical device, thedfrathich was received in 1998, and the most
recent (KO60584) in July 2006. The NC-stat Systas the following intended use, as stated in thet neagnt 510(k) clearance:

"The NeuroMetrix NC-stat is intended to stimulatel aneasure neuromuscular signals that are usefdidgnosing and evaluating
systemic and entrapment neuropathies."

We believe that this intended use is caestsvith the manner in which the NC-stat Systemésketed and used by our customers.

As noted above, during the fourth quarfe2@06, at the request of the FDA, we submitted &(K) filing relating to portions of the onCall
Information System that are currently in use. Wee@rnrently in the process of responding to thesdadditional information request that we
have received from the FDA relating to this filifguring the first quarter of 2007, we also subndlitsee510(k) for the ADVANCE System,
which is also pending review by the FDA.

DigiScope

The DigiScope received a 510(k) clearat@®0205) as a Class Il medical device in March 1888 the indications for use statement is
as follows:

"The DigiScope is indicated for use as an ophtheloaimera for individuals where examination of tinedus for pathologies is
requested.”

Manufacturing Facilities

The facilities utilized by Parlex and Surdiutwo of our contract manufacturers, to supply groducts have each been inspected by FDA
in the past, and observations were noted. There nefindings that involved a significant violatiohregulatory requirements. The responses
to these observations have been accepted by FRwarbelieve that we are in substantial compliamite the QSR. Like all manufacturers,
we expect our contract manufacturers to be insgdntd=-DA again in the future. If FDA finds signiiot violations, we could be subject to
fines, recalls, requirements to halt manufactudngther administrative or judicial sanctions. Topg, our contract manufacturer for the
DigiScope in China, has not been inspected by bw.F

U.S. Anti-Kickback and False Claims Laws

In the United States, there are federalstatk anti-kickback laws that prohibit the offgayment, solicitation or receipt of kickbacks,
bribes or other remuneration, whether direct oiréad, overt or covert, in cash or in kind, inteddamong other things, to induce the purchase
or recommendation of healthcare products and sesvi?/hile the federal law applies only to prodwustd services for which payment may be
made by a federal healthcare program, the state taay apply regardless of whether any public heafthfunds are involved. Violations of
these laws can lead to severe civil and criminabfiees, including exclusion from participationfederal healthcare programs. These laws are
potentially applicable to manufacturers of medie¥ices, such as us, and to hospitals, physiciati®ther potential purchasers of medical
devices. Other provisions of state and federaldaavide civil and criminal penalties for presenting causing to be presented, to third-party
payers for reimbursement, claims that are faldeamdulent, or which are for items or services thate not provided as claimed. Under the
federal civil False Claims Act, in addition to agts initiated by federal law enforcement authasitibe statute authorizes "qui tam™ actions to
be brought on behalf of the federal government pyivaate party in certain circumstances and, ifcessful, that private party can share in any
monetary recovery. Any challenge by federal orestatforcement officials or others under these lanedding the current investigation by the
Office of Inspector
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General, or OIG, within the Department of Healtkd #luman Services and by the United States Depattaiehustice, or DOJ, could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finarmgatlition and results of operations. As descrilpechore detail in the section titled "Legal
Proceedings," we are currently subject to invetitga by the OIG and the DOJ of various aspectuofpractices related to the NC-stat
System.

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, we had a totdl4¥ employees. Of the total employees, 33 weresearch and development, 75 in sales and
marketing and 35 in general and administrativeisesv One employee holds both M.D. and Ph.D. degste additional employees hold Ph
degrees and one additional employee holds an Mebrez.

Our employees are not represented by a lation and are not subject to a collective bargagimgreement. We have never experienced a
work stoppage. We believe our relations with oupkyees are good.

Available Information

We were organized as a corporation in tateof Delaware in 1996. Access to our Annual Repo Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendsrterthese reports filed with or furnished to 8exurities and Exchange Commission,
or SEC, may be obtained through the Investor Relatsection of our website at www.neurometrix.cor@stor as soon as reasonably prac
after we electronically file or furnish these refsofWe do not charge for access to and viewingedé reports. Information on our Investor
Relations page and on our website is not partisfAhnual Report on Form 10-K or any of our otheciities filings unless specifically
incorporated herein by reference. In addition,ghblic may read and copy any materials that wewith the SEC at the SEC's Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, 20649. The public may obtain information on tipemtion of the Public Reference
Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Alsa,fitings with the SEC may be accessed throughSEE's Electronic Data Gathering,
Analysis and Retrieval system at www.sec.gov. ftements made in any of our securities filingsluding all forward-looking statements or
information, are made as of the date of the doctiinerhich the statement is included, and we doassume or undertake any obligation to
update any of those statements or documents unkesse required to do so by law.
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ITEM 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following risk&lall other information contained in this Annuagrt on Form 10-K and our other
public filings before making any investment decisiwith respect to our common stock. If any ofotlewing risks occurs, our busines
prospects, reputation, results of operations oafficial condition could be harmed. In that case,ttlaeling price of our common stock cot
decline, and our stockholders could lose all ortpartheir investment. This Annual Report also aord forward-looking statements that
involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual resalsild differ materially from those anticipatedtire forward-looking statements as a result of
specific factors, including the risks describeddwebnd elsewhere in this Annual Report.

We have incurred significant operating losses sindaception and cannot assure you that we will agaiachieve profitability.

The extent of our future operating incoméogses is highly uncertain, and we may not be &bleach and sustain profitability. We have
incurred significant cumulative net losses sinceinception, including net losses of approximat&®/9 million in 2003 and $4.7 million in
2004. In 2005 and 2006, we recorded net incomgpifaximately $249,000 and $4.3 million, respectivélowever, we incurred a net loss of
approximately $8.4 million in 2007 as a result afexline in revenues and increases in operatingresgs. At December 31, 2007, we had an
accumulated deficit of approximately $62.1 millidkle cannot assure you that we will be able to rgaofitability again and sustain
profitability.

If physicians or other healthcare providers are unale to obtain sufficient reimbursement from third-party healthcare payers for
procedures performed using our products, the adoptin of our products and our future product sales wilbe severely harmed.

Widespread adoption of our products byrtteglical community is unlikely to occur if physicgdo not receive sufficient reimbursement
from third-party payers for performing procedursgg our products. If physicians are unable to iokadequate reimbursement for procedures
performed using our products, we may be unableltmar products and our business would sufferifigantly. Additionally, even if these
procedures are reimbursed by third-party payensgerseé changes in payers' policies toward reimbues¢fior the procedures would harm our
ability to market and sell our products. Third-ggsayers include those governmental programs ssiéiealicare and Medicaid, workers'
compensation programs, private health insurersofimet organizations. These organizations may dewxgrage if they determine that a
procedure was not reasonable or necessary, forggaihits use was not considered medically appate, or was experimental, or was
performed for an unapproved indication. In additieome health care systems are moving towards redreagge arrangements in which they
contract to provide comprehensive healthcare foteal cost per person, irrespective of the amoticoe actually provided. These providers,
in an effort to control healthcare costs, are iasiegly challenging the prices charged for medicatucts and services and, in some instances,
have pressured medical suppliers to lower thetegrilf we are pressured to lower our prices, euemues may decline and our profitability
could be harmed. CMS guidelines set the reimbursenages for procedures covered by Medicare. Fuegelatory action by CMS or other
governmental agencies or negative clinical resuliy diminish reimbursement payments to physicianpé&rforming procedures using our
products. Medicaid reimbursement differs from statstate, and some state Medicaid programs maseiroburse physicians for performing
procedures using our products in an adequate amibantll. Additionally, some private payers dat fiollow the CMS and Medicaid
guidelines and may reimburse for only a portiothefse procedures or not at all. We are unabledadigirwhat changes will be made in the
reimbursement methods used by private or goverrah#nitd-party payers.

During the second half of 2006 and in 2G&%eral local Medicare carriers issued draft Ldbg| LCDs or coding articles particularly
addressing coverage and reimbursement policiesrunde
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Medicare for nerve conduction studies performedgitiie NC-stat System. Several of these carrielisated that they will not reimburse
physicians under Medicare for nerve conductionistigerformed using the NC-stat System under tle=tbxisting Current Procedural
Terminology, or CPT, codes for conventional nergaduction studies (95900, 95903 and 95904), whiokiige for levels of reimbursement
fixed by the Center for Medicaid and Medicare Segsi or CMS, but rather that physicians must sublaitns for reimbursement for these
procedures under a miscellaneous CPT code (9580@8)ich case the local carriers may determindekiel of reimbursement to be paid, if
any. Currently, there are three local Medicareieesmwith final LCDs, one local Medicare carrieithva draft LCD, and one local Medicare
carrier with a coding article which address coveragd reimbursement policies under Medicare foveneonduction studies performed using
the NC-stat System. One additional Medicare camwich had previously issued a final LCD, reveriegr position effective June 30, 2007.
In certain regions impacted by these reimbursemecisions, our customers have experienced loweifdef reimbursement and higher levels
of claims denials. If physicians do not receivecqadde reimbursement under the miscellaneous CPé& fcoth those local carriers, our existing
customers may continue to limit or curtail theiewud the NC-stat System and we may be unable frohew customers, both of which could
materially and adversely impact our revenues aofitpbility.

The AMA formed a work group in early 20@7examine the reimbursement coding of nerve cofmlustudies and nerve conduction
equipment, including the NC-stat System. The figdiof this committee were presented to the AMA E&elitorial Panel at a meeting in
February 2008. During the CPT Panel meeting, sépeoaosals for new Category | CPT codes, whichegalty are included in the Medicare
physician fee schedule and are assigned specé#igtbursement values, were presented by the chagpgiof the work group and were
supported by several physician societies. In gyitais, the only proposal voted on was for theatiom of a new Category Ill CPT code, which
generally would not be included on the Medicaregitign fee schedule and would not generally havasaigned reimbursement value. At this
meeting, we believe that the CPT Panel approvesiva@ategory IIl CPT Code for nerve conduction stagherformed using equipment with
certain automated features such as the NC-stagi@y&inless we are able to successfully challenigedttision, a new Category Il CPT Code
would likely be published in July 2008 and becorffective in January 2009. In the event that a Catedil CPT code is published which
describes nerve conduction studies performed WihNC-stat System, it would likely result in lindter no Medicare reimbursement for such
studies as a result of the potential that no sggecieimbursement values would be assigned to ttades. This could also adversely impact
reimbursement by other third party payers and cbalte an adverse and material impact on our regesue results of operations.

The LCDs and coding articles issued bylidedicare carriers have also addressed a numhahef issues, including (1) the background
and training of physicians supervising or perforgnirerve conduction studies, (2) the level of tragniequirements for technicians performir
nerve conduction study, (3) whether nerve condundsts should be required to be performed coneantiytwith a needle electromyography
procedure and (4) whether the NC-stat System igpaoable to conventional nerve conduction testingm@yent. We do not believe that these
LCDs prohibit physicians from receiving reimbursernender Medicare for medically necessary nervelaotion studies performed using the
NC-stat System. However, these LCDs do appear torbeted at limiting access to perform and/or reirsborent for nerve conduction stud
In certain cases, these LCDs are being interp@t@dplemented in a manner that impacts the allitghysicians to receive reimbursement
under Medicare, including lower levels of reimbungamt and an increase in the number of claims beémged, for nerve conduction studies
performed using the NC-stat System, which are lpaimadverse impact on our revenues.

Additionally, a significant number of comroml payers, including the majority of regionaulBlICross Blue Shield carriers, and other
major private payers, have adopted policies indigathat they will not provide reimbursement foe tlise of the NC-stat System. These
commercial payers have cited
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various reasons for their reimbursement policiegluiding, among others, that the M@t System is experimental and investigational .aiéeir
the process of communicating with these payersgctlir, through our customers or through our netwairkeimbursement consultants, to
attempt to address their concerns. Thiedty payers may also impose requirements on playsico submit additional paperwork supporting
medical necessity of nerve conduction studies peréa using the NC-stat System. We believe thesg@in@ggents are negatively impacting the
use of the NC-stat System by existing customersoamdales to new customers, both of which arerfgpan adverse impact on our revenues.

Additional third-party payers, includingcldl Medicare carriers and commercial payers, cpaténtially take a position that could reduce
or eliminate the reimbursement for the Nt System and could have the impact of detetrgage by our customers and could have an ac
impact on our revenues.

If physicians do not receive access toagetuate reimbursement under the miscellaneouscG&S from those local carriers that
currently, or in the future, require proceduredgraned using the NC-stat System to be submittexgugiat code, or if the AMA publishes a
Category Il CPT code for nerve conduction stugiesormed using equipment such as the §&-System, our existing customers may lim
curtail their use of the NC-stat System, we mayhable to obtain new customers and we may faceasang pricing pressure, all of which
could materially adversely impact our business@ndrevenues and profitability, in particular. et LCDs recently adopted or reimbursement
determinations adopted in the future relating sarimbursement of nerve conduction studies pldd&ianal restrictions or qualifications on
the performance of these procedures generallyingulse NC-stat System, our business, revenuepaniidability could be materially
adversely affected. Additionally, in the short-tetime uncertainty caused by these recent changether future changes, in third-party payers'
reimbursement policies regarding nerve conductiodies may cause existing customers to reduce ulseiof the NGstat System and potent
new customers to defer a decision or decline tolmasge the NC-stat System, which could materialyeeskly affect our business. We are
expending and anticipate continuing to expend suihisti resources to address potential reimburseissmes with third-party payers.
Widespread adoption of the NC-stat System by théicabcommunity is unlikely to occur if physiciade not receive satisfactory
reimbursement from third-party payers for procedyerformed with the NC-stat System.

Many Medicare regions, including those aetting for 30 of the 50 states, allow examinatiaaig the DigiScope to be reimbursed or
basis of a general diabetes diagnosis. All or plstx states require a diagnosis of pre-existgtinal disease before reimbursement for an
examination using the DigiScope and another sbestaill only reimburse for fundus photography wipenformed in conjunction with an eye
exam performed by an ophthalmologist or optomet@$the latter, a Medicare carrier for four of #ig states issued informal directives
curtailing reimbursement in the second quarterQff72 Also during this period, regional Medicarerigas covering all or parts of nine other
states issued proposed LCDs indicating that theyldvonly reimburse for retinal photography, inclgli'telescreening,” when performed
concurrently with a personal examination by an balmhologist or optometrist and that digital imagsygtems used for the detection of
diabetic retinopathy, which acquire images andsmgihthem to a remote area for interpretation cargsidered screening and do not meet
Medicare's reasonable and necessary criteria ifmbregsement. Although this decision does not hameaterial impact on our current business,
we can offer no assurance that other Medicareerarwill not propose and adopt similar no coverdgeasions.

We may be unable to expand the market for the NC-at System, which would limit our ability to increase our revenues.

We believe that the drawbacks of traditlarexve conduction studies, including those relatethe referral process, and the limited
treatment options for DPN, have limited the numiifemerve conduction studies that are performed.deorffuture growth, we are relying, in
part, on increased use
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of nerve conduction studies. A number of factonslddimit the increased use of nerve conductiomligtsiand the NC-stat System, including:

. third-party payers challenging, or the threat afciiparty payers challenging, the necessity oféased levels of nerve
conduction studies;

. third-party payers reducing or eliminating reimbursenfenprocedures performed by physicians using thi-stat System

. unfavorable experiences by physicians using th-stat System

. physicians' reluctance to alter their existing picas; and

. the failure of other companies' existing drug depeient programs to produce an effective treatnm@mdDPN, which may limi

the perceived need and the actual use of thesfd€System in connection with this disease, aatkthy limit or delay our grow!
in the DPN market, which we have estimated to lrdargest potential market for our NC-stat System.

If we are unable to expand the marketlierNICstat System, our ability to increase our revenudsw limited and our business prospt
will be adversely affected.

Under-utilization of the DigiScope by customers mayegatively affect our cash flow and potential prafability.

We lease our DigiScopes to our customedsrefain title to the device. We generate revenlesigh an initial installation fee, ongoing
rental fees and per patient examination fees. Ab,sue are responsible for all the costs of Digisoplaced with our customers and a
significant portion of our recovery of these cdsises place over time as we collect rental angpgent fees. If our customers fail to utilize or
under-utilize the DigiScopes, we may not be ablestmver all of our production costs and our cmiv find potential profitability will be
negatively affected.

We may not be able to accurately predict the sizef the market for our products.

We may not be able to accurately predietsize of the market for our products. Neuropattreditionally have been diagnosed by an
NCS/nEMG procedure, performed by a neurologisthysirian in a related specialty. We estimate thate are approximately 2.0 millic
traditional NCS/nEMG procedures performed each jretlve United States. However, we anticipate thatadvantages and increased
availability of point-of-service nerve conductioroduct offerings could significantly increase thember of nerve conduction studies
performed if satisfactory third-party reimbursemisndvailable. Based on our analysis of currerd,dat estimate that the potential market size
for point-of-service nerve conduction product offigs such as the NC-stat System in the diabeteshbézk pain and CTS markets in the
aggregate could be greater than 9.5 million anpatént tests. This represents a significant ireea the size of the market for nerve
conduction studies and is based upon a numbesahggtions and estimates, which themselves mayeatburate. For example, we have
assumed that all initial office visits for low bapkin may represent an opportunity for use of tlkedtht System, and we have estimated that ar
annual testing rate of 50% for all individuals diaged with diabetes represents the potential aslalbes market in diabetes. We estimate that
the size of the market for a point-eérvice product for the detection of diabetic regpiathy could be nearly $700 million. There arenaated tc
be 21 million people in the United States with @itds and it is estimated that 15 million have distireen diagnosed with diabetes. Using an
eye examination fee of $45 per patient, this regssa potential market size of nearly $700 milliglarket size is difficult to predict, and we
cannot assure you that our assumptions or estimaltgsrove to be correct. The industry and martteta in this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
on which we have based our assumptions and estirofifature market size, may be inaccurate or ingere, and we have not independently
verified those data. If our estimates of the sidethe markets for our products is incorrect, ooteptial revenue growth may be limited.
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If we are unable to successfully sell our product® primary care, specialist physicians and other hadthcare providers, our ability to
increase our revenues will be limited.

We are focusing our sales and marketingresfifor the NC-stat System on primary care andigfist physicians and the DigiScope on
primary care physicians, endocrinologists and optoists. As these physicians and other healthcandgers traditionally have not been
targeted by companies selling equipment used tomemerve conduction studies or eye scans, wefaagydifficulties in selling our products
to them. Particularly, we may be unable to convithese physicians that our products provide effeaiternatives or useful supplements to
existing testing methods. In addition, these phigag may be reluctant to make the capital investmeguired to purchase the NC-stat System
or use the DigiScope and alter their existing pecast If we are unable to successfully sell oudpiis to primary care and specialist physici
our ability to increase our revenues will be selyelienited.

We are dependent on several single source manufaotus to produce the NC-stat System and the DigiScepand any changes in the
relationships with these manufacturers could prevenus from delivering products to our customers in d¢imely manner and may
adversely impact our future revenues or costs.

We rely on two third-party manufacturersitanufacture all of the components of the NC-syate&3n and one third-party manufacturer to
produce all of the components of the DigiScopghievent that our manufacturers cease to manuéastifficient quantities of our products in
a timely manner and on terms acceptable to us, ewgdibe forced to locate alternate manufacturedslitonally, if our manufacturers
experience a failure in their production process,umable to obtain sufficient quantities of thenponents necessary to manufacture our
products or otherwise fail to meet our quality rieginents, we may be forced to delay the manufa@nodesale of our products or locate an
alternative manufacturer. We may be unable to saitable alternative manufacturers for our présiyzarticularly our NGstat biosensors, f
which the manufacturing process is relatively spiegdd, on terms acceptable to us, or at all. W teatered into an exclusive manufacturing
and supply agreements with Parlex for the manufaaitithe NC-stat biosensors, and Sunburst fontarufacture of our NC-stat monitors and
docking stations. TopZone manufactures DigiScopea purchase order basis, rather than pursuanbtwaterm contract. TopZone contracts
with Xintian Fine Optical Instrument Corporatiom, Xintian, in Guiyang, China for the optical heddite DigiScope, which is the most
complex and important sutBmponent of the DigiScope. If Xintian were to failprovide optical heads for the DigiScope prottugtwe woulc
be required to find alternative suppliers of ogtle@ads. Since most of the components are standtite shelf optical materials, we believe
could find alternative suppliers, but we could ergrece a temporary reduction in supply and an eseen cost for the DigiScope. In addition,
we rely on TopZone to provide certain hardware softivare development services. The loss of theséces would likely delay and increase
the cost of our research and development efforts.

In addition, because TopZone is organizeti@erates in China, we will be subject to busimesks associated with foreign operations,
including:

. failure to fulfill Chinese regulatory requirementsmanufacture DigiScopes or other future prodt
. adapting to the differing business practices and lim China;

. limited protection for intellectual property rights China;

. costs of enforcing contractual obligations in Chi

. political instability and unexpected changes inalpatic and trade relationships;

. currency exchange rate fluctuations; and

. potentially adverse tax consequen
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We do occasionally experience transiengimory shortages on new products during the intiatluction ramp-up phase. If any of the
changes in our relationships with these manufadluae described above occurs, our ability to supptycustomers will be severely limited
until we are able to engage an alternate manufactur if applicable, resolve any quality issuethvaiur existing manufacturer. This situation
could prevent us from delivering products to oustomers in a timely manner, lead to decreased eaiesreased costs, or harm our reputa
with our customers.

If our manufacturers are unable to supply us with a adequate supply of products as we expand our maeks, we could lose customers,
our potential future growth could be limited and our business could be harmed.

In order for us to successfully expand lusiness within the United States and internatlgnaur contract manufacturers must be able to
provide us with our products in substantial quégitin compliance with regulatory requirementsa@cordance with agreed upon
specifications, at acceptable cost and on a tita$ys. Our potential future growth could strain aibdity of our manufacturers to deliver
products and obtain materials and components ficerft quantities. Manufacturers often experiedigculties in scaling up production,
including problems with production yields and gtyationtrol and assurance. If we are unable to olsafficient quantities of high quality
products to meet customer demand on a timely basigould lose customers, our growth may be liméed our business could be harmed.

We currently rely entirely on sales of the productghat comprise the NC-stat System to generate a ssitantial portion of our revenues,
and any factors that negatively impact our sales dhese products could significantly reduce our ahiy to generate revenues.

We introduced the NC-stat System to theketsn May 1999. We derive substantially all of eevenues from sales of the products that
comprise the NC-stat System, and we expect thes sdlthese products will continue to constituterajority of our sales for the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, our ability to generate revesus reliant on our ability to market and sell gineducts that comprise the NC-stat System,
particularly the disposable biosensors, sales aftwaccounted for approximately 86-88% of our togslenues in each of the past three years.
Our sales of these products may be negatively itegdmy many factors, including:

. changes in reimbursement rates or policies reldtraur products by thirparty payers

. decisions made by the AMA CPT Editorial Panel iatato the reimbursement of nerve conduction stugerformed using tr
NC-stat System;

. the failure of the market to accept our produ

. manufacturing problem:

. claims that our products infringe on patent rightsther intellectual property rights owned by atparties;
. adverse regulatory or legal actions relating toproducts;

. competitive pricing and related factors; ¢

. results of clinical studies relating to our produat our competitors' produc

If any of these events occurs, our abtlitgjenerate revenues could be significantly reduced

The patent rights we rely upon to protect the intdectual property underlying our products may not beadequate, which could enable
third parties to use our technology and would harnmour ability to compete in the market.

Our success will depend in part on ourightib develop or acquire commercially valuablegmatrights and to protect these rights
adequately. Our patent position is generally uagernd involves
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complex legal and factual questions. The riskswargkrtainties that we face with respect to ourmtatand other related rights include the
following:

. the pending patent applications we have filed avliich we have exclusive rights may not resulssuied patents or may take
longer than we expect to result in issued patents;

. the claims of any patents that are issued may mige meaningful protection;

. we may not be able to develop additional proprietachnologies that are patentable;

. other parties may challenge patents, patent clampsitent applications licensed or issued to ug;
. other companies may design around technologiesawe patented, licensed or develog

We also may not be able to protect ourrgaights effectively in some foreign countriesr lovariety of reasons, we may decide not to
file for patent protection. Our patent rights urgieg our products may not be adequate, and oumpetitors or customers may design around
our proprietary technologies or independently depelimilar or alternative technologies or produbts are equal or superior to our technol
and products without infringing on any of our pateghts. In addition, the patents licensed or éskto us may not provide a competitive
advantage. If any of these events were to occurability to compete in the market would be harmed.

We depend on a patent licensed to us by Johns Hopisi University as well as other contractual relatioships with the Wilmer Eye
Institute.

We possess our rights with respect to titerg underlying the DigiScope through a paterngng agreement with Johns Hopkins
University. The license agreement generally grastexclusive rights with respect to the patentjexilio certain rights retained by Johns
Hopkins University for non-profit research purpaddewever, if we determine not to seek patent @taia in any given country, Johns
Hopkins University may seek patent protection aoghnise any resulting patents to third parties betise exploit such patents for its own
exclusive benefit. Currently, we are the excludizensee with respect to patents issued in theddriftates, China, Indonesia, Australia, Israel,
Hong Kong and Mexico. We have determined not t& gegent protection in Canada or the European Urtthough Johns Hopkins
University has agreed that nonetheless we maynretailusive rights in those jurisdictions. Our démi not to seek patent protection in Canada
and the European Union could negatively impactadnility to compete in those jurisdictions.

Under the license agreement, we are redjtiirgpay Johns Hopkins University royalties randiragn three to three and one-half percent of
our net collected revenues, exclusive of instaltafees, on a quarterly basis. In the event thabmach the licensing agreement, including as a
result of the failure to make required royalty pays to Johns Hopkins University, or the failurexercise commercially reasonable efforts to
commercialize the technology, we could lose then#ing rights to the DigiScope technology.

Also, since Johns Hopkins University issemademic institution, our license agreement with glubject to the federal Bayh-Dole Act,
pursuant to which the federal government has celitaited rights to use the technology and everetjuire us to grant a license to one or more
third parties if we are not fully developing theti@ology.

In addition to the licensing agreement,hage also entered into an agreement with the Wilyer Institute at Johns Hopkins University
pursuant to which the Wilmer Eye Institute receid&gtal scans from physicians using the DigiScapd eye specialists employed by the
Wilmer Eye Institute analyze the images. Within4Bthours after receipt of the images, the eye ajists provide a report to the physician \
performed the eye scan indicating the results @fktan. If the Wilmer Eye Institute could not con@ to perform this service to our customers
in a timely manner, our ability to generate revenfiem the DigiScope could be adversely impacted.

34




We also may benefit from contractual relaships with Johns Hopkins University in the aréeesearch and development. Johns Hopkins
University conducts certain research projects, &ahlly outside sources, involving the DigiScope.Mdee contractual commitments to support
these research projects and if results are positigenay benefit indirectly from the studies ane plublication of the results. However, it may
be necessary in the future for us to increaseesgarch and development budget to conduct ongoiadditional research.

Other rights and measures we have taken to protecur intellectual property may not be adequate, whih would harm our ability to
compete in the market.

In addition to patents, we rely on a comalion of trade secrets, copyright and trademarlsJawnfidentiality, nondisclosure and
assignment of invention agreements and other atin@rhprovisions and technical measures to pratectntellectual property rights. In
particular, we have sought no patent protectiortfertechnology and algorithms we use in our onlB&dirmation System and the technology
and algorithms we use in connection with the Digi8t We rely on trade secrets to protect this mmédron. While we currently require
employees, consultants and other third partiesitereénto confidentiality, non-disclosure or assigamt of invention agreements or a
combination thereof where appropriate, any of tllefing could still occur:

. the agreements may be breact

. we may have inadequate remedies for any bre

. trade secrets and other proprietary informatioriccbe disclosed to our competitors; or

. others may independently develop substantially\edent proprietary information and techniques ¢reptvise gain access to ¢

trade secrets or disclose such technologies.

If, for any of the above reasons, our ietglial property is disclosed or misappropriated,auld harm our ability to protect our rights and
our competitive position.

We may need to initiate lawsuits to protect or enfice our patents and other intellectual property richts, which could be expensive and,
if we lose, could cause us to lose some of our iifeetual property rights, which would harm our ability to compete in the market.

We rely on patents to protect a portiolowf intellectual property and our competitive piosit Patent law relating to the scope of clairr
the technology fields in which we operate is glblving and, consequently, patent positions inntieglical device industry are generally
uncertain. In order to protect or enforce our patights, we may initiate patent litigation agaitistd parties, such as infringement suits or
interference proceedings. Litigation may be neagdsa

. assert claims of infringemer

. enforce our patents;

. protect our trade secrets or know-how; or

. determine the enforceability, scope and validityhaf proprietary rights of othet

Any lawsuits that we initiate could be empiwe, take significant time and divert managemseattention from other business concerns.
Litigation also puts our patents at risk of beingalidated or interpreted narrowly and our pat@miaations at risk of not issuing. Additional
we may provoke third parties to assert claims agjais. We may not prevail in any lawsuits that migate and the damages or other remedies
awarded, if any, may not be commercially valuable occurrence of any of these events could hambasiness, our ability to compete in
market or our reputation.
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Claims that our products infringe on the proprietary rights of others could adversely affect our abitiy to sell our products and increase
our costs.

Substantial litigation over intellectuabperty rights exists in the medical device indusiife expect that our products could be
increasingly subject to third-party infringemeraiahs as the number of competitors grows and thetifumality of products and technology in
different industry segments overlap. Third partiesy currently have, or may eventually be issuetgra on which our products or
technologies may infringe. Any of these third pestmight make a claim of infringement against usy Atigation regardless of its impact
would likely result in the expenditure of signifidfinancial resources and the diversion of managgistime and resources. In addition,
litigation in which we are accused of infringememy cause negative publicity, adversely impactmeosve customers, cause product
shipment delays or require us to develop non-igfrig technology, make substantial payments to théndies, or enter into royalty or license
agreements, which may not be available on acceptabhs, or at all. If a successful claim of inlgment were made against us and we could
not develop non-infringing technology or license thfringed or similar technology on a timely arabteffective basis, our revenues may
decrease substantially and we could be exposddriisant liability.

We are subject to extensive regulation by the FDAyhich could restrict the sales and marketing of théNC-stat System and could cause
us to incur significant costs.

We sell medical devices that are subjeetxtensive regulation in the United States by thé For manufacturing, labeling, sale,
promotion, distribution and shipping. Before a mawedical device, or a new use of or claim for arstxg product, can be marketed in the
United States, it must first receive 510(k) cleamgrgrant of @le novaclassification or pre-marketing approval from tHeA; unless an
exemption applies. Medical devices may be marketdy for the indications for which they are apprdwe cleared. We may also be required
to obtain a new 510(k) clearancedar novcclassification or PMA for significant postarket modifications to our products including ches tc
the intended use. Each of these processes carpbasixe and lengthy. The FDA's process for grarBih@(k) clearance usually takes
approximately three months, but it can be signifitalonger. The process for obtainidg novoclassification involves a level of scrutiny
similar to the 510(k) clearance process, but mgyire more data. The process for obtaining PMA iglmmore costly and uncertain and it
generally takes from one to three years, or lorfgem the time the application is filed with the RD

Our clearances can be rescinded if safegffectiveness problems develop. Further, we naybe able to obtain additional 510(k)
clearances or premarket approvals for new prodarchsr modifications to, or additional indicatiofa, our existing products in a timely
fashion, or at all. Delays in obtaining future cheeces or approvals would adversely affect ouiitsthid introduce new or enhanced products in
a timely manner, which in turn would harm our revemnd future profitability. We have made modificas to our devices in the past and may
make additional modifications in the future that bedieve do not or will not require additional al@aces or approvals. If the FDA disagrees,
and requires new clearances or approvals for ttdifioations, we may be required to recall and tipgharketing the modified devices. If any
of these events occur or if the FDA takes otheriaghtnative or judicial actions, we may not be atdgrovide our customers with the quantity
of products they require on a timely basis, ouutafion could be harmed, and we could lose custemed suffer reduced revenues and
increased costs. In particular, our business cbelddversely impacted in the event that we do biatin 510(k) clearance for the ADVANCE
System or the portions of the onCall Informatiorst8yn that are the subject of our 510(k) filinghie fourth quarter of 2006. Because the
portions of the onCall Information System underi@evare currently in use, if the FDA does not clieam, we may be required to modify or
remove the portions of the onCall Information Sgsthat are under review. Any such modificationsldanake the NC-stat System more
difficult to use by physicians, which could advdysenpact our ability to generate revenues from
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the NC-stat System, or more expensive for us teatpeEither of these could have a material advierpact on our business.

We also are subject to numerous post-miaike¢gulatory requirements, including quality gystregulations, which relate to the design,
manufacture, packaging, labeling, storage, ingtalleand servicing of our products, labeling regjolas, medical device reporting regulations
and correction and removal reporting regulationg. f@ilure or the failure by any manufacturer of puoducts to comply with applicable
regulatory requirements could result in enforcenaetibn by the FDA, which may include any of thédwing sanctions:

. warning letters, fines, injunctions, product seegjrconsent decrees and civil penalties;

. requiring repair, replacement, refunds, notificati@r recall of our products;

. imposing operating restrictions, suspension ordwh of production

. refusing our requests for 510(k) clearance or PMAew products, new intended uses, or modificationsxisting products
. rescinding 510(k) clearances or withdrawing PMAat tieve already been granted; and

. criminal prosecution.

If any of these events were to occur, tb@yld harm our reputation, our ability to generateenues and our profitability.

Also, from time to time, legislation is intluced into Congress that could significantly @eathe statutory provisions governing the
approval, manufacturing and marketing of medicaidks. In addition, FDA regulations and guidance@ten revised or reinterpreted by the
agency in ways that may significantly affect ousimess and our products. It is impossible to ptesdiether legislative changes will be
enacted, or FDA regulations, guidance or interpieia changed, and what the impact of such chaiifgesy, may be.

If we or the manufacturers of our products fail tocomply with the FDA's quality system regulations, he manufacturing and
distribution of our products could be interrupted, and our product sales and operating results couldusfer.

We and our contract manufacturers are requb comply with the FDA's quality system regiadlas, which is a complex regulatory
scheme that covers the procedures and documentdtiba design, testing, production, control, qyadissurance, labeling, packaging,
sterilization, storage and shipping of our deviddse FDA enforces its quality system regulationstigh periodic inspections. We cannot
assure you that our facilities or the facilitiestod manufacturers of our products would pass atwré quality system inspection. If our or any
of the facilities of the manufacturers of our protiufail a quality system inspection, the manufactuor distribution of our products could be
interrupted and our operations disrupted. Failareke adequate and timely corrective action ipaase to an adverse quality system
inspection could result in a suspension or shutdofaeur packaging and labeling operations and fferations of the manufacturers of our
products or a recall of our products, or other adstiative or judicial sanctions. If any of theseets occurs, we may not be able to provide
customers with the quantity of products they regoin a timely basis, our reputation could be harraad we could lose customers and suffer
reduced revenues and increased costs.
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Our products may be subject to recalls even afteraceiving FDA clearance or approval, which would han our reputation, business anc
financial results.

We are subject to the medical device répgegulations, which require us to report to Bi®A if our products may have caused or
contributed to a death or serious injury, or hawafamctioned in a way that would likely cause onttute to a death or serious injury if the
malfunction were to occur. We are also subjechédorrection and removal reporting regulationsicivinequire us to report to the FDA any
field corrections and device recalls or removad the undertake to reduce a risk to health posatidyevice or to remedy a violation of the
FDCA caused by the device which may present atoiglealth. In addition, the FDA and similar goveemtal bodies in other countries have
the authority to require the recall of our produttiere is a reasonable probability that the piigl would cause serious adverse health
consequences or death. A government-mandated wntaoy recall by us could occur as a result of nfaeturing defects, labeling deficiencies,
packaging defects or other failures to comply \aitiplicable regulations. Any recall would divert mgement attention and financial resources
and harm our reputation with customers. A recalblming the NC-stat System would be particularlyrhéul to our business and financial
results because the products that comprise thet&tGSgstem currently produce substantially all @f eevenues.

We are subject to federal and state laws prohibitig "kickbacks" and false or fraudulent claims, which, if violated, could subject us to
substantial penalties. Additionally, any challengéo or investigation into our practices under thesdaws could cause adverse publicity
and be costly to respond to, and thus could harm @lbusiness.

A federal law commonly known as the Medé¢itedicaid anti-kickback law, and several simil@ts laws, prohibit any remuneration that
is intended to induce physicians or others eitbeeter patients or to acquire or arrange for coremend the acquisition of healthcare prod
or services. These laws constrain a medical dexdogpany's sales, marketing and other promotiortalities by limiting the kinds of business
relationships and financial arrangements, includialgs programs we may have with hospitals, praysscor other potential purchasers of
medical devices. Other federal and state laws gdéiggrohibit individuals or entities from knowingpresenting, or causing to be presented,
claims for payment to Medicare, Medicaid or otherd-party payers that are false or fraudulenfooitems or services that were not provided
as claimed. From time to time, we may provide cgdind billing information as product support toghasers of our products. Anti-kickback
and false claims laws prescribe civil and crimipahalties for noncompliance, which can be quitestariial including exclusion from
participation in federal healthcare programs. melient that we are found to have violated thess &a determine to settle a claim that we |
done so, our business may be materially adverstdgtad as a result of any payments required tmaee, restrictions on our future operations
or actions required to be taken, damage to oumnkssireputation or adverse publicity in conneatiith such a finding or settlement or other
adverse effects relating thereto. Additionally, @@ unsuccessful challenge or investigation intoppactices could cause adverse publicity,
and be costly to respond to, and thus could hambuosiness and results of operations.

In the second quarter of 2006, we recetvadbpoena from the Office of Inspector GeneraDI@, of the Department of Health and
Human Services requesting documents from us inexdion with an investigation of potential violat®of the federal anttiickback statute ar
False Claims Act. In addition, on June 21, 2007 reeeived a subpoena from the U.S. Attorney's &ffiic the District of Massachusetts
requesting documents from us in connection witinaastigation by the U.S. Department of JusticeD@®J. We understand that the DOJ is
investigating various aspects of our practicegirejao the NC-stat System, including sales andketarg practices. We are cooperating with
both investigations. During 2007, we formed a Sple€Committee of our Board of Directors to providesight of an ongoing independent
review of our sales and marketing practices amliofcontinuing cooperation with the DOJ and OlGeistigations. We cannot predict the
ultimate outcome
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of these investigations. We are unable to determimen these matters will be resolved, whether aujtianal areas of inquiry will be opened,
or any outcome of this matter. Any negative findimg this matter could result in fines, penalt@sprogram exclusions, which could have a
material adverse effect on our financial conditi@sults of operations and cash flows. We may ialsar significant costs in responding to, ¢
defending our company in these investigations, Whimuld also have a material adverse effect orfinancial condition, results of operations
and cash flows.

If we are found to have violated laws protecting th confidentiality of patient health information, we could be subject to civil or criminal
penalties, which could increase our liabilities andharm our reputation or our business.

There are a number of federal and stats [awtecting the confidentiality of individuallyedtifiable patient health information, including
patient records, and restricting the use and discof that protected information. In particutae U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services promulgated patient privacy rules underHkalth Insurance Portability and Accountabilitgt Af 1996, or HIPAA. These privacy
rules protect medical records and other persoratth@formation by limiting their use and disclesugiving individuals the right to access,
amend and seek accounting of their own health imédion and limiting most use and disclosures oftheaformation to the minimum amount
reasonably necessary to accomplish the intendgzbper Although we do not believe that we are stlijethe HIPAA rules, the exact scope of
these rules has not been clearly established. Hredound to be in violation of the privacy rulexder HIPAA, we could be subject to civil or
criminal penalties, which could increase our ligieit and harm our reputation or our business.

The use of our products could result in product lidility claims that could be expensive, damage oureputation and harm our business.

Our business exposes us to an inherenbfipltential product liability claims related toetmanufacturing, marketing and sale of medical
devices. The medical device industry historicalig lveen litigious, and we face financial exposongroduct liability claims if the use of our
products were to cause or contribute to injuryeattl. In particular, the NC-stat System may beeqtéide to claims of injury because it
involves the electric stimulation of a patient'sves. Additionally, because the DigiScope testglfabetic retinopathy, which is a condition 1
can lead to loss of vision or blindness if untrdatee could be subject to claims of injury relattogany actual or claimed inadequacy, error or
malfunction of the DigiScope in testing for thisnciition or the Wilmer-EyeTel Reading Center in riegdhe results of the test performed by
the DigiScope and communicating them to the phgsicAlthough we maintain product liability insuranior our products and other
commercial insurance, the coverage limits of tipdieies may not be adequate to cover future claksssales and use of our products
increase, we may be unable to maintain sufficieatpct liability or other commercial insurance ateptable terms or at reasonable costs, anc
this insurance may not provide us with adequate@me against potential liabilities. A successlaine brought against us in excess of, or
outside of, our insurance coverage could have anahtdverse effect on our financial condition aesults of operations. A product liability
claim, regardless of its merit or eventual outcooweild result in substantial costs to us, a sulistativersion of management attention and
adverse publicity. A product liability claim couddso harm our reputation and result in a declineeienues and an increase in expenses.

Our products are complex in design, and defects mayot be discovered prior to shipment to customersyhich could result in warranty
obligations or product liability or other claims, reducing our revenues and increasing our costs anibilities.

We depend upon third parties for the mactuf@ of our products. Our products, particulanlly bC-stat biosensors, require a significant
degree of technical expertise to produce. If these
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manufacturers fail to produce our products to dpmation, or if the manufacturers use defectiveemats or workmanship in the manufacturing
process, the reliability and performance of ourdpiais will be compromised.

If our products contain defects that carbetepaired quickly, easily and inexpensively,nay experience:

. loss of customer orders and delay in order fulidir

. damage to our brand reputatic

. increased cost of our warranty program due to procepair or replacemer

. inability to attract new customers;

. diversion of resources from our manufacturing aesarch and development departments into our settejsartment; and
. legal action

The occurrence of any one or more of tliedoing could harm our reputation and materialjuee our revenues and increase our costs
and liabilities.

If we lose any of our officers or key employees, oumanagement and technical expertise could be weaked significantly.

Our success largely depends on the skikiserience and efforts of our officers, includirtggBN. Gozani, M.D., Ph.D., our founder and
President and Chief Executive Officer; Gary L. Gmgg our Chief Operating Officer; Guy Daniello, dsenior Vice President of Information
Technology; Michael Williams, Ph.D., our Senior ¥iBresident of Engineering; W. Bradford Smith, Ghief Financial Officer; and our other
key employees. We maintain a $5.0 million key pedgie insurance policy on Dr. Gozani, for whictet@ompany is the beneficiary, but do
maintain key person life insurance policies cowgr@my of our other employees. The loss of any ofafficers or key employees could weaken
our management and technical expertise signifigaartti harm our business.

If we are unable to recruit, hire and retain skilled and experienced personnel, our ability to managand expand our business will be
harmed, which would impair our future revenues andprofitability.

We are a small company with only 143 emetsyas of December 31, 2007, and our ability &imetur skilled labor force and our succ
in attracting and hiring new skilled employees Wi a critical factor in determining our future feemance. We may not be able to meet our
future hiring needs or retain existing personnattipularly given the challenges our business basntly faced. We will face challenges and
risks in hiring, training, managing and retainimgmeering and sales and marketing employees, hasvindependent regional sales agencies
and sales representatives, most of whom are getuigedly dispersed and must be trained in the usebemefits of our products. Failure to
attract and retain personnel, particularly techréca sales and marketing personnel, would matgitiarm our ability to compete effectively
and grow our business.

If we do not effectively manage our future potentibgrowth, our business resources may become straidewe may not be able to deliver
our products in a timely manner and our results ofoperations may be adversely affected.

Future potential growth of our business meyvide challenges to our organization and maairstour management and operations. We
may misjudge the amount of time or resources tlilhbe required to effectively manage any anticgghor unanticipated growth in our
business or we may not be able to attract, hireratain sufficient personnel to meet our needsefcannot scale our
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business appropriately, maintain control over esperor otherwise adapt to anticipated and unaat®ipgrowth, our business resources may
become strained, we may not be able to delivepordiucts in a timely manner and our results of afi@ns may be adversely affected.

If we are unable to successfully expand, develop dmetain our sales force, our revenues may declineur future revenue growth may be
limited and our expenses may increase.

As of December 31, 2007, we employed agprately 50 regional sales managers, five regioal@ssdirectors and a national sales
director. We are highly dependent on our regioaldsmanagers to generate our revenues. Our abilityild and develop a strong sales force
will be affected by a number of factors, including:

. our ability to attract, integrate and motivate sglersonnel;

. our ability to effectively train our sales forc

. the ability of our sales force to sell an increasathber of product:

. the length of time it takes new sales personnbkttome productive;

. the competition we face from other companies iimbiand retaining sales personnel;

. our ability to effectively manage a mi-location sales organizatio

. our ability to enter into agreements with prospertnembers of our sales force on commercially resisie terms; and

. our ability to get our independent sales ageneis, may sell products of multiple companies, to notrihe necessary resour

to effectively market and sell our products.

If we are unable to successfully build, élep and retain a strong sales force, our revemagsdecline, our revenue growth may be lim
and our expenses may increase.

Failure to develop or enter into relationships to ell products other than our existing products or ehance our existing products could
have an adverse effect on our business prospects.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, #jerity of our revenues were derived from sellihg NCstat System. Our future business
financial success will depend, in part, on ourigbtb continue to introduce or sell new produatsl apgraded products into the marketplace.
Developing new products and upgrades to existimfature products imposes burdens on our reseatii@velopment department and our
management. This process is costly, and we camsot@you that we will be able to successfully tigvaew products or enhance the NC-stat
System or any of our other current or future prasiud/e also may not be able to enter into relatigpsswith other companies to sell additional
products. In addition, as we develop the markebtorproducts, future competitors may develop éedir product features earlier than we do,
which could make our competitors' products lesseagjve or more effective than our products andaceemder our products obsolete or
unmarketable. If our product development efforts amsuccessful, we will have incurred significamsts without recognizing the expected
benefits and our business prospects may suffer.

We currently compete, and may in the future need t@ompete, against other medical device companiestlvpotentially greater
resources, more established distribution channelsnd other competitive advantages, and the successtbése competitors may harm our
ability to generate revenues.

We currently do, and in the future may neecompete directly and indirectly with a numbéother companies that enjoy significant
competitive advantages over us. Currently, in thiatpof-service market, we indirectly compete withmpanies that sell traditional
NCS/nEMG equipment. In this market, these compagiesndirect competitors because the equipmertsbl traditionally ha:
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been used by neurologists, who rely upon and seekttin referrals from primary care and speciglstsicians to perform the same types of
tests that may be performed by primary care andialig physicians using the NC-stat System. Addiilly, in selling the NC-stat System to
neurologists, which is not a market we historichllywe focused on, we compete directly with the camgs that sell traditional NCS/nEMG
equipment. There are a number of companies thataditional NCS/nEMG equipment including Carditgalthcare, having acquired Viasys
Healthcare Inc. in 2007, Cadwell Laboratories, brtd Natus, having acquired Xltec, Inc. in 2007diidnally, we are aware of one company,
Neumed, Inc., that markets a nerve conduction ssydiem to the poi-of-service market. Of these companies, CardinalliHeare, in
particular, enjoys significant competitive advamsgncluding:

. greater resources for product development, salgsremketing;

. more established distribution networ

. greater name recognitio

. more established relationships with health caréegsionals, customers and third-party payers; and

. additional lines of products and the ability toesffebates or bundle products to offer discountaaantives.

As we develop the market for point-of-seevherve conduction studies, we may be faced withpetition from these companies or others
that decide and are able to enter this market. Sora# of our future competitors in the point-afrgice market may enjoy competitive
advantages such as those described above. If wealde to compete effectively against existing fatdre competitors, our sales will decline
and our business will be harmed.

With respect to the DigiScope, our printipgampetitor in the primary diabetes care mark&tésaxa Health, Inc., an affiliate of the Joslin
Diabetes Center, and our principal competitorhiendptometry market are Carl Zeiss, Inc., TopcoreAoa Corporation, Kowa. Some or all of
these existing competitors, as well as, future catitges may enjoy advantages, such as those dedaitove relating to the nerve conduction
market. If we are unable to compete effectivelyimgiaexisting and future competitors, our abilibygrow our DigiScope revenues could be
adversely impacted and our business could be harmed

We are dependent upon the computer and communicatis infrastructure employed and utilized by our onCdl Information System and
the Wilmer EyeTel Reading Center, and any failure®r disruptions in this infrastructure could impact our revenues and profit margins
or harm our reputation.

We are dependent upon the computer and corieations infrastructure employed and utilizedoloy onCall Information System and our
DigiScopes. Our computer and communications infuastire consists of standard hardware, off-thefsystem software components,
database servers, proprietary application seraarspdem bank and desktop applications. Our futueceess in selling the NC-stat System and
the DigiScopes will depend, in part, upon the maiahce and growth of this infrastructure. Any fieghior outages of this infrastructure as a
result of a computer virus, intentional disruptmfrour systems by a third-party, manufacturinguial telephone system failure, fire, storm,
flood, power loss or other similar events, couldvant or delay the operation of our onCall Inforim@iSystem or the Wilmer EyeTel Reading
Center, which could result in increased costsitainhte these problems and address related secworiigerns and harm our reputation with our
customers. In addition, if our infrastructure fatlsaccommodate growth in customer transactiorstpauer satisfaction could be impaired, we
could lose customers, our ability to add custorsergd be impaired or our costs could be increaaeg,of which would harm our business.
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If future clinical studies or other articles are published, or physician associations or other organ&ions announce positions, that ar
unfavorable to our products, our sales efforts andevenues may be negatively affected.

Future clinical studies or other articlegarding our existing products or any competinglpots may be published that either support a
claim, or are perceived to support a claim, thedmpetitor's product is more accurate or effedtia our products or that our products are not
as accurate or effective as we claim or previoumscel studies have concluded. Additionally, phyesicassociations or other organizations that
may be viewed as authoritative or have an econamtecest in nerve conduction studies and in relaledtrodiagnostic procedures or other
procedures that may be performed using our prodwoetkl endorse products or methods that competeawit products or otherwise announce
positions that are unfavorable to our products.Néke experienced this with the professional sasetepresenting the neurologist community.
Any of these events may negatively affect our saffegts and result in decreased revenues.

Our future capital needs are uncertain and we may eed to raise additional funds in the future, and tese funds may not be available on
acceptable terms or at all.

We believe that our current cash and caslivalents together with our short-term investmemtd the cash to be generated from expected
product sales will be sufficient to meet our pregecoperating requirements for at least the nexhagths. However, we may seek additional
funds from public and private stock offerings, lmevings under credit lines or other sources. Ouitabgequirements will depend on many
factors, including:

. the revenues generated by sales of our products;

. the costs associated with our sales and marketiogs

. the expenses we incur in manufacturing and setlingproducts

. the costs of developing new products or technokogiel enhancements to existing products;

. the cost of obtaining and maintaining FDA apprawatlearance of our products and products in dgveémnt;
. the costs associated with any expans

. the costs of professional services associatedthitlygovernment investigations to which we are sp

. the costs associated with capital expenditurefydieg the purchase of DigiScopes; and

. the number and timing of any acquisitions or otesitegic transactions.

As a result of these factors, we may neaaise additional funds, and these funds may e@uailable on favorable terms, or at all.
Furthermore, if we issue equity or debt securiiiesaise additional funds, our existing stockhatdmay experience dilution, and the new eq
or debt securities may have rights, preferenceganieges senior to those of our existing stodilees. In addition, if we raise additional ful
through collaboration, licensing or other similaramgements, it may be necessary to relinquishetéddurights to our potential products or
proprietary technologies, or grant licenses on setfmat are not favorable to us. If we cannot raisels on acceptable terms, we may not be
to develop or enhance our products, execute oundsss plan, take advantage of future opportunitiesespond to competitive pressures or
unanticipated customer requirements. If any of@l@gents occurs, our ability to achieve our develept and commercialization goals would
be adversely affected.
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If we choose to acquire or invest in new businessgsoducts or technologies, instead of developindpém ourselves, these acquisitions «
investments could disrupt our business and could sellt in the use of significant amounts of equity,ash or a combination of both.

From time to time we may seek to acquirawest in businesses, products or technologistedu of developing them ourselves. On
December 26, 2007, for example, we acquired sutisigrell of the assets and assumed certain ligdsl of EyeTel and in November 2007 we
made an investment in Cyberkinetics and in 2008redtinto a joint venture with them.

Acquisitions and investments involve nunusrasks, including:

. the inability to complete the acquisition or invasnt;

. disruption of our ongoing businesses and diversiamanagement attentio

. difficulties in integrating the acquired entitiggpducts or technologies;

. difficulties in operating the acquired businessfitably;

. the inability to achieve anticipated synergiest savings or growtt

. potential loss of key employees, particularly thosthe acquired busines

. difficulties in transitioning and maintaining keystomer, distributor and supplier relationships;
. risks associated with entering markets in whichhaee no or limited prior experience; and

. unanticipated cost:

In addition, any future acquisitions or@stments may result in one or more of the following

. issuances of dilutive equity securities, which rbaysold at a discount to market price;

. the use of significant amounts of cash;

. the incurrence of deb

. the assumption of significant liabilitie

. increased operating costs or reduced earnings;

. financing obtained on unfavorable terms;

. large on-time expenses; ar

. the creation of certain intangible assets, inclgdjoodwill, the writedown of which may result in significant chargeg#wnings

Any of these factors could materially hasor stock price, our business or our operatingltgsu

If we expand, or attempt to expand, into foreign mekets, we will be affected by new business risks & may adversely impact our
financial condition or results of operations.

We had our initial revenues in the Uniteédddom in the third quarter of 2007, representingiaitial launch in Europe. If we continue to
expand, or attempt to expand, into foreign markeeswill be subject to new business risks, inclgdin

. failure to fulfill foreign regulatory requirements market our products;
. availability of, and changes in, reimbursement imitbrevailing foreign health care payment systems;
. adapting to the differing business practices and @ foreign countries
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. difficulties in managing foreign relationships amgkrations, including any relationships that walslgh with foreigr
distributors or sales or marketing agents;

. limited protection for intellectual property rightssome countries;

. difficulty in collecting accounts receivable anddger collection periods;

. costs of enforcing contractual obligations in fgrejurisdictions;

. recessions in economies outside of the United State

. political instability and unexpected changes inatipatic and trade relationships;
. currency exchange rate fluctuations; i

. potentially adverse tax consequent

If we are successful in introducing ourdurots into foreign markets, we will be affectedtbgse additional business risks, which may
adversely impact our financial condition or resoft®perations. In addition, expansion into foreigarkets imposes additional burdens on our
executive and administrative personnel, researdrsates departments, and general managerial reso@ar efforts to introduce our products
into foreign markets may not be successful, in Whiase we may have expended significant resouriteewt realizing the expected benefit.
Ultimately, the investment required for expansiotoiforeign markets could exceed the revenues getefrom this expansion.

Our operating results may fluctuate due to varioudactors and, as a result, period-to-period comparisns of our results of operations
will not necessarily be meaningful.

Factors relating to our business make oturé operating results uncertain and may cause thdluctuate from period to period. These
factors include:

. changes in the availability of third-party reimbemsent in the United States or other countries;
. the timing of new product announcements and intttddas by us or our competitol

. market acceptance of new or enhanced versionsrgiroducts;

. changes in manufacturing costs or other expenses;

. competitive pricing pressures;

. the gain or loss of significant distribution ousietr customers

. increased research and development expe

. the timing of any future acquisitions; or

. general economic conditions.

Because our operating results may fluctirata quarter to quarter, it may be difficult fos or our investors to predict our future
performance by viewing our historical operatingutts
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Anti -takeover provisions in our organizational document&nd Delaware law, and those ar-takeover provisions adopted by the
Company in 2007, may discourage or prevent a changd control, even if an acquisition would be benefial to our stockholders, which
could affect our stock price adversely and preverattempts by our stockholders to replace or removeuw current management.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylasantain provisions that could delay or prevenhange of control of our company or change
our board of directors that our stockholders migtisider favorable. Some of these provisions:

. authorize the issuance of preferred stock whichbeaareated and issued by the board of directarowi prior stockholde
approval, with rights senior to those of our comrstotk;

. provide for a classified board of directors, wititk director serving a staggered three-year term;
. prohibit our stockholders from filling board vacés; calling special stockholder meetings, or tgldantion by written consent;
. provide for the removal of a director only with sauand by the affirmative vote of the holders df7& more of the shares th

entitled to vote at an election of our directors] a

. require advance written notice of stockholder psai® and director nominations.

We have adopted a Shareholder Rights Retrcould make it more difficult for a third patty acquire, or could discourage a third party
from acquiring, the Company or a large block of common stock. A third party that acquires 15% orerof our common stock (an
"acquiring person") could suffer substantial dibutiof its ownership interest under the terms of3hareholder Rights Plan through the issu
of common stock to all shareholders other tharattigiiring person.

In addition, we are subject to the provisiof Section 203 of the Delaware General Corpamdtiaw, which may prohibit certain business
combinations with stockholders owning 15% or mdrewr outstanding voting stock. These and othevigions in our certificate of
incorporation, bylaws and Delaware law could makaare difficult for stockholders or potential aéguis to obtain control of our board of
directors or initiate actions that are opposed tmytben-current board of directors, including a geer tender offer, or proxy contest involving
our company. Any delay or prevention of a changeauitrol transaction or changes in our board cgalors could cause the market price of
common stock to decline.

We do not intend to pay cash dividends.

We have never declared or paid cash diddem our capital stock. We currently intend tairegll available funds and any future
earnings for use in the operation and expansia@uobusiness and do not anticipate paying any dastlends in the foreseeable future. In
addition, the terms of any future debt or crediilfty may preclude us from paying any dividends. &result, capital appreciation, if any, of
our common stock will be our stockholders sole sewf potential gain for the foreseeable future.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

We have not received written comments fthenSecurities and Exchange Commission regardingerindic or current reports under the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amenddéldags or more before December 31, 2007 that reoraisolved.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our headquarters is located in a 30,00@rggfoot facility in Waltham, Massachusetts, whigtoccupy under an office lease expiring in
March 2013. We also operate in a 13,700 squareféadity in Columbia, Maryland, leased to us ur@ittober 31, 2009. We believe that our
existing facilities are adequate for our currergdse

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the second quarter of 2006, we rece&vedbpoena from the Office of Inspector GeneraDI&, of the Department of Health and
Human Services requesting documents from us inexiion with an investigation of potential violat®of the federal antiickback statute ar
False Claims Act. In addition, on June 21, 2007 reeeived a subpoena from the U.S. Attorney's ©&ffiic the District of Massachusetts
requesting documents from us in connection witinaestigation by the DOJ. We understand that thel BOnvestigating various aspects of
our practices relating to the NC-stat System, idiclg sales and marketing practices. We are codpgraith both investigations. During 2007,
we formed a Special Committee of our Board of Qiivexto provide oversight of an ongoing independeniew of our sales and marketing
practices and of our continuing cooperation with 0J and OIG investigations. We cannot predicultimate outcome of these
investigations. We are unable to determine whesetimeatters will be resolved, whether any additi@mahs of inquiry will be opened, or any
outcome of this matter. Any negative findings iistmatter could result in fines, penalties, or pamg exclusions, which could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition, resafteperations, and cash flows.

ITEM 4: SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECUR ITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote ofsmaurity holders during the fourth quarter of tearyended December 31, 2007, through the
solicitation of proxies or otherwise.
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PART II

ITEM5: MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is quoted on the NASDA@Wal Market under the symbol "NURO". The price rapgr share reflected in the table
below is the high and low closing sales priceswfammon stock as reported by NASDAQ for the misimdicated.

Years ended December 3:

2007 2006

High Low High Low
First quartel $ 145C $ 9.2t $ 39.1¢ $ 28.0(
Second quarte $ 10.7¢ $ 86z $ 40.3¢ $ 25.7:¢
Third quartel $ 9.1z % 728 % 33.1¢ % 18.7¢
Fourth quarte $ 10.2t  $ 77¢ $ 19.8¢ $ 13.52

On March 7, 2008, there were approximat@§ stockholders of record of our common stocksThimber does not include stockholders
for whom shares were held in a "nominee" or "streatne. On March 7, 2008, the last reported saée er share of our common stock on
NASDAQ Global Market was $2.0.

We have never declared or paid any casdetids on our common stock. We currently intencetain future earnings, if any, to finance
the expansion and growth of our business and dexpct to pay any cash dividends in the foresedakilre. Payment of future cash
dividends, if any, will be at the discretion of daoard of directors after taking into account vasidactors, including our financial condition,
operating results, current and anticipated casdsiard plans for expansion.

See Part Ill, Item 12 for information redjag securities authorized for issuance under ggaimpensation plans.
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COMPARATIVE STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph shows the cumulativeckholder return of our common stock from July 2204 (the first trading day for our
common stock) through December 31, 2007 as compeitbdhat of the Nasdaq (U.S. Companies) IndexthedNasdaq Medical Device
Manufacturers Index. The total stockholder retgsrmieasured by dividing the per share price chahtfeeaespective securities, plus divider
if any, for each period shown by the share prichatend of the particular period. The graph assuime investment of $100 in our common
stock and each of the comparison groups on Jul2@24 and assumes the reinvestment of dividendsh&e never declared a dividend on
common stock. The stock price performance depictelde graph below is not necessarily indicativéubfire price performance.
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07/22/04 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07
NeuroMetrix, Inc. $ 100.0C $ 146.8¢ $ 341.0C $ 186.3¢ $ 115.0(
Nasdaq Stock Market (U.S $ 100.0( $ 11528 $ 117.6¢ $ 129.3. $ 140.2¢
Nasdaq Medical Device Manuf. Ind $ 100.0¢ $ 112.4¢ $ 1235( $ 130.2: $ 165.5:
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ITEM 6: SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The data set forth below should be reazbimjunction with Item 7, "Management's Discussiod Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations," Item 7A, "Quantitative @haalitative Disclosures About Market Risk" and @inancial statements and related notes
appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on FddpK1

Years Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

(In thousands, except share and per share dat

Statement of Operations Data:

Revenue: $ 44.62: $ 55,25( $ 34,29¢ $ 17,92( $ 9,16¢
Cost of revenue 12,06 13,55¢ 8,85¢ 4,85: 2,70
Gross margit 32,56( 41,69: 25,44( 13,067 6,461
Operating expense
Research and developm 4,89 5,011 3,821 3,26¢ 2,39
Sales and marketir 22,96¢ 22,01 14,15( 8,48¢ 4,76¢
General and administrati\ 14,83« 11,80¢ 8,02: 5,267 3,052
Total operating expens: 42,69( 38,82¢ 25,99: 17,02« 10,21°
Income (loss) from operatiol (10,129 2,86% (55%) (3,957 (3,75€)
Interest income (expense), I 1,751 1,59¢ 837 (750 (119)

Income (loss) before provision for
income taxe: (8,37¢) 4,461 284 (4,707%) (3,869
Provision for income taxe — 19¢ 35 — —

Net income (loss (8,37¢) 4,26¢ 24¢ (4,707 (3,869
Accretion of dividend on redeemal

convertible preferred stoc — — — (1,38¢) (2,009
Deemed dividend on redeemable

convertible preferred stoc — — — (78¢€) —
Beneficial conversion feature

associated with redeemable

convertible preferred stoc — — — (7,05)) —

Net income (loss) attributable
common stockholdel $ (8,379 $ 4,26t $ 24¢ % (13,93) $ (5,87¢)

Net income (loss) per common shi
Basic $ (0.66) $ 034 % 0.0z $ (2.42) $ (5.6€)
Diluted $ (0.66) $ 03t $ 00z $ (2.42) $ (5.6€)
Weighted average common sha
outstanding
Basic 12,628,31 12,501,74 12,152,13 5,747,57 1,038,81
Diluted 12,628,31 13,097,89 12,986,36 5,747,57 1,038,81
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As of December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

(in thousands)

Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivale $ 7,097 $ 791C $ 8,17C $ 193¢ $ 1,62:¢
Shor-term investment 22,62 32,41 24,08 18,57¢ —
Working capital 33,30¢ 41,89« 33,26¢ 21,77 2,451
Long-term investment 1,05¢ — — 9,491 —
Total asset 56,37t 55,70¢ 42,897 37,95 7,21¢
Long-term debt and other lo-term liabilities 33 73 131 18¢ 2,232
Warrants for redeemable convertible preferred ¢ — — — — 45C
Redeemable convertible preferred st — — — — 47,69¢
Accumulated defici (62,06¢) (53,68)) (57,955 (58,204 (45,209
Total stockholders' equity(defici 46,73( 43,40¢ 34,83: 33,33( (45,80%)
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion of ouafficial condition and results of operations in cargtion with our selected financial
data, our condensed financial statements and tkerapanying notes to those financial statementsidied elsewhere in this Annual Report on
Form 1(-K. This discussion contains forward-looking sta¢eis that involve risks and uncertainties. As altesf many factors, such as those
set forth under the section titled "Risk Factoratiaelsewhere in this Annual Report on FormKLGur actual results may differ materially fr
those anticipated in these forward-looking statetsen

Overview

NeuroMetrix was founded in June 1996. Weigle develop and market proprietary medical devigged to help physicians diagnose and
treat diseases of the nervous system such as reghieg which are disorders of the peripheral reared parts of the spine, and neurovascular
disorders such as diabetic retinopathy. We areddseloping medical devices designed to be uspdadde regional anesthesia and pain
control. To date, our focus has been on produetishtélp physicians with the diagnosis of neurogstlaind neurovascular disorders. We have
two products lines cleared by the United StatesdRyal Drug Administration, or FDA, that are curtefiteing marketed to physicians and
clinics, including the NC-stat System for the assgnt of neuropathies and the DigiScope for thedtien of eye disorders such as diabetic
retinopathy.

We believe that our neuropathy diagnoststesn, the NC-stat System, improves the qualityeffidiency of patient care by offering all
physicians the ability to diagnose patients withropathies at the point-of-service, that is, inphgsician's office at the time the patient is
examined, resulting in earlier and more accurateati®n, greater patient comfort and convenienod, @ many cases, improved clinical and
economic outcomes. The NC-stat System is compa&gd) disposable single use NC-stat biosensaséte placed on the patient's body,
(2) the NC-stat monitor and related components(8hthe NC-stat docking station, an optional deviwg enables the physician's office to
transmit data to our onCall Information System. N@-stat System has been on the market since M@9 46d is used in over 5,500
physician's offices and clinics in the United Ssat@ver 1.0 million patients have had nerve condndests performed using the NC-stat
System. Substantially all of our revenues to datestbeen derived from sales of the NC-stat Systéenare currently developing a traditional
nerve conduction system, the ADVANCE System, ferdragnosis of neuropathies and have filed a 51d){g)ication with the FDA.
Presuming it is successfully commercialized, theVADICE System is expected to provide physicians witbn greater clinical functionality
and is expected to be marketed to specialists asicieurologists as well as primary care physicians.

Acquisition

On December 26, 2007, we acquired substgnéll of the assets and assumed certain ligsgliof EyeTel Imaging, Inc., or EyeTel, and
their product, the DigiScope, a product used ferdhtection of eye disorders such as diabeticapéithy, for 1,050,297 shares of common
stock, $175,000 in cash and the assumption ofindrédilities.

Neurovascular disease includes conditioeh s retinopathy, an eye disease prevalent iantatwith diabetes. The DigiScope is
marketed to the primary diabetes care physiciaiceffiarket and the optometry market. Prior to #tepugsition of substantially all of the assets
and the assumption of certain liabilities of Eye e had been marketing the DigiScope to the pyrdé&betes care physician office market
through an exclusive sales and marketing licensle Eiye Tel. The DigiScope allows physicians to dagmdiabetic retinopathy and refer
patients to an eye specialist for treatment if de@mecessary based on the results. It is recomrddndihe American Diabetes Association, or
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ADA, that all patients with diabetes receive anuairilated eye examination to monitor vision. Aating to the ADA, there are approximat
21.0 million people in the United States with diegseand only approximately 50% comply with the rentendation to have an annual eye
examination. We believe that a product such a®igescope in primary diabetes care physician offiaed optometry clinics could potentially
lead to an increase in the level of testing andltés the earlier detection of eye diseases ifepéd with diabetes and improved clinical
outcomes.

Corporate Collaborations

In November 2007, we made an investmef2ds million for the purchase of approximately Bilion shares of common stock of
Cyberkinetics Neurotechnology Systems, Inc., or&Zkimetics, representing approximately 13% of tlybeZkinetics' issued and outstanding
shares at the time of the investment, at a prickDof6 per share. We also received a warrant tchaise up to approximately 2.7 million shares
of Cyberkinetics common stock. The warrant, exefdis at $0.46 per share, has a term of five yead,s required to be exercised if
Cyberkinetics receives FDA approval of a Humangtaibevice Exemption, or HDE, filing for the Andara®$cillating Field Stimulator™, or
Andara OFS, device for acute spinal cord injuriesaddition, we received a seat on the CyberkiseBigard of Directors. Dr. Shai Gozani M
Ph.D., our Chief Executive Officer and Presideas heen named as our initial designee.

In connection with the investment in Cyhretics, we also received certain rights, includingght of first negotiation for the acquisition
of Cyberkinetics and a right of first negotiatiar the commercialization of the Andara OFS devaretlie treatment of acute spinal cord
injuries.

In February 2008, we entered into a Coltabon Agreement and Operating Agreement with Clibetics to develop and commercialize
products for the treatment of peripheral nerverinpnd formed PNIR (Peripheral Nerve Injury Rep&allC, a joint venture with 50%
ownership held by us and 50% ownership held by €ybetics.

We derive the majority of our revenues fribra sale of NC-stat biosensors, monitors and dggckiations directly to end users, which are
generally physician practice groups. Our NC-stasénsors are disposable products that are usechoddaactivated after use. The NC-stat
monitor is an electronic instrument that is usethulie NC-stat biosensors to perform nerve condndtudies for the purpose of diagnosing
neuropathies. The N&tat monitor displays the results of nerve conducsitudies on a LCD screen immediately at the emimh of each stud
The NC-stat docking station is an optional deviw# is used to transmit to the onCall Informatigst8m data generated by the nerve
conduction study performed with the NC-stat monifdre onCall Information System automatically fofatas the data it receives for each test
into a detailed report that is provided to the oostr through facsimile or e-mail.

We also derive revenues from sales of tlgg92ope to physicians through (1) eye scan féanpnthly rental fees and (3) installation
training fees. During 2007, we were required toitenpercentage of the revenues related to theSoape to EyeTel under our sales and
marketing license with EyeTel. As a result of ocqgaisition of substantially all of the assets oklEgl on December 26, 2007, we are no longer
required to remit any revenues to EyeTel. In addijtive expanded the market opportunity for the &igpe into the optometry market in
addition to the primary diabetes care physiciaiceffnarket.

Our revenues declined to $44.6 milliontfog twelve months ended December 31, 2007, compar®s5.2 million for the same period in
2006. Additionally, we incurred a net loss of $&lion for the twelve months ended December 372@&ompared to net income of
$4.3 million for the same period in 2006. We beti¢hat the decline in our revenues has been causedrily by adverse developments over
the past year relating to the reimbursement byltharty payers of nerve conduction studies perforosing the NGstat System, and we exp
that our revenues will continue
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to be adversely affected by the uncertainty regardeimbursement and by the outcome of the Febr2@0g AMA CPT Editorial Panel
meeting to review the reimbursement coding for aemwnduction studies.

Significant developments impacting andtietato our financial condition and results of agtgsns as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2007 and expected to impact futuieggemclude:

. the impact of reimbursement developments relatingerve conduction studies on our revenues asidedabove, including tt
outcome of the AMA CPT Editorial Panel meeting #imel material and adverse impact the potential ixseiaf a Category Il
CPT code by the AMA is likely to have on our revesand operating results;

. expanded sales and marketing efforts for the Digg8as a result of the acquisition of substantillpf the assets and tl
assumption of certain liabilities of EyeTel and breader market opportunity we can now addressidticy the optometry
market. We expect to continue to increase revefroasthe DigiScope and we expect that the grosgmam DigiScope
revenues will improve due to our acquisition anel ¢fimination of the amounts we were previouslyitéing to EyeTel;

. increased capital expenditures relating to purchaé®igiScope units, resulting from the acquisitaf substantially all of the
assets and the assumption of certain liabilitieSy&Tel and our responsibility for all units prodddoy our third party
manufacturer;

. our decision to terminate the relationships with iodependent sales agencies in the second hal®f, which we believe has

adversely impacted our revenues, but is expecteeldiace sales and marketing expenses in 2008ezukh of the elimination of
commissions on recurring revenues from accounggnaily sourced through our independent sales dgenim 2007, total
commissions relating to independent sales agen@es $3.0 million;

. the delay of the expected launch of the ADVANCE(t8ys our traditional neurodiagnostic system, forchtwe have invested
approximately $3.0 million in inventories as of Bewber 31, 2007, and for which we continue to sd€KI§ regulatory approv
from the FDA,;

. the government investigations by the Office of kdpr General, or OIG, of the Department of Heatlid Human Services and
the U.S. Department of Justice, or DOJ, that wesabgect to, which resulted in significantly incsed legal expenses in 2007.
We cannot predict the potential impact of thesegtigations on our financial condition or finanaiasults in 2008;

. continued progress with our product in developmeaferred to as NAVIGATOR, a minimally invasive merlocalization
system for regional anesthesia, pain control aadrgmatment of neuropathies such as carpal tugndkame, or CTS, for which
we expect to file a 510(k) application with the FXA2008. We continue to invest resources on thiveldpment of this product;
and

. the investment we made in Cyberkinetics in thetfoquarter of 2007, which included the purchasg2b million of
Cyberkinetics common stock and the receipt of aavdrto purchase an additional $1.25 million of E€inetics common stock
that we must exercise in certain circumstancegjedisas the joint venture we have entered into W@tberkinetics for the
development of a treatment for peripheral nerverinjfor which we have committed to fund the f&.0 million in
development expenses and 50% of any developmets erseeding the initial $2.0 million.

Reimbursement from third-party payers ismaportant element of success for medical prodastspanies. As our presence in the market
expands and the use of the NC-stat System increasdsave experienced and are likely to continuexgmerience an increased focus from
third-party payers and governmental agencies raggttie reimbursement of nerve conduction studefopmed using
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the NC-stat System and an increased focus frone thigganizations regarding the professional requeérgsifor performing nerve conduction
studies in general. A number of third-party payéersiuding commercial payers, have taken and mayiicoe to take the position of not
reimbursing our customers for their use of the N&-System.

During the second half of 2006 and in 2G&#,eral local Medicare carriers issued draft Ldibs| LCDs or coding articles particularly
addressing coverage and reimbursement policiesr iidéicare for nerve conduction studies performsidgithe NC-stat System. Several of
these carriers indicated that they will not reingguphysicians under Medicare for nerve conductiodias performed using the N&at Syster
under the three existing Current Procedural Terfomg or CPT, codes for conventional nerve condurcttudies (95900, 95903 and 95904),
which provide for levels of reimbursement fixedthg Center for Medicaid and Medicare Services, diSCbut rather that physicians must
submit claims for reimbursement for these proceslureler a miscellaneous CPT code (95999), in wtaske the local carriers may determine
the level of reimbursement to be paid, if any. €ntly, there are three local Medicare carriers \iithl LCDs, one local Medicare carrier with
a draft LCD, and one local Medicare carrier witboaling article which address coverage and reimiouesé policies under Medicare for nerve
conduction studies performed using the NC-state®ysOne additional Medicare carrier, which had jmmesly issued a final LCD, reversed
their position effective June 30, 2007. In cert&gions impacted by these reimbursement decisanms;ustomers have experienced lower
levels of reimbursement and higher levels of clait@sials. If physicians do not receive adequatalvarsement under the miscellaneous CPT
code from those local carriers, our existing cugtammay continue to limit or curtail their use loé tNC-stat System and we may be unable to
obtain new customers, both of which could materialid adversely impact our revenues and profitgbili

The AMA formed a work group in early 20@7examine the reimbursement coding of nerve comalustudies and nerve conduction
equipment, including the NC-stat System. The figdiof this committee were presented to the AMA @&elfiorial Panel at a meeting in
February 2008. During the CPT Panel meeting, sépesposals for new Category | CPT codes, whichegalty are included in the Medicare
physician fee schedule and are assigned specédiptbursement values, were presented by the chagpgiof the work group and were
supported by several physician societies. In gditais, the only proposal voted on was for theatiol of a new Category Il CPT code, which
generally would not be included on the Medicaregitigin fee schedule and would not generally havasaigned reimbursement value. At this
meeting, we believe that the CPT Panel approvezivaCategory Ill CPT Code for nerve conduction stagierformed using equipment with
certain automated features such as the NC-staei®y&tnless we are able to successfully challenigedtétision, a new Category 1ll CPT Code
would likely be published in July 2008 and becorffeative in January 2009. In the event that a Catgdil CPT code is published which
describes nerve conduction studies performed wghNC-stat System, it would likely result in lindter no Medicare reimbursement for such
studies as a result of the potential that no sigetieimbursement values would be assigned to ttedes. This could also adversely impact
reimbursement by other third party payers and cbalte an adverse and material impact on our regesue results of operations.

The LCDs and coding articles issued bylidbadicare carriers have also addressed a numbehef issues, including (1) the background
and training of physicians supervising or perforgnirerve conduction studies, (2) the level of tragniequirements for technicians performir
nerve conduction study, (3) whether nerve conduadists should be required to be performed conemtiytwith a needle electromyography
procedure and (4) whether the NC-stat System ipaoable to conventional nerve conduction testingpgent. We do not believe that these
LCDs prohibit physicians from receiving reimburserender Medicare for medically necessary nervaluotion studies performed using the
NC-stat System. However, these LCDs do appear torgetead at limiting access to perform and/or reirsbarent for nerve conduction stud
In certain cases, these LCDs are being interpreted
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or implemented in a manner that impacts the abilitghysicians to receive reimbursement under Madicincluding lower levels of
reimbursement and an increase in the number afslaeing denied, for nerve conduction studies perdo using the NC-stat System, which
are having an adverse impact on our revenues.

Additionally, a significant number of comroml payers, including the majority of regionauBICross Blue Shield carriers, and other
major private payers, have adopted policies indigathat they will not provide reimbursement foe tlise of the NC-stat System. These
commercial payers have cited various reasons &r teimbursement policies, including, among othtirat the NCstat System is experimen
and investigational. We are in the process of comoating with these payers, directly, through oustomers or through our network of
reimbursement consultants, to attempt to addressdbncerns. Third-party payers may also impogeirements on physicians to submit
additional paperwork supporting the medical ne¢tgsdinerve conduction studies performed usingNiestat System. We believe these
requirements are negatively impacting the use ®Ng-stat System by existing customers and ous $alaew customers, both of which are
having an adverse impact on our revenues.

Additional third-party payers, includingcldl Medicare carriers and commercial payers, cpaténtially take a position that could reduce
or eliminate the reimbursement for the NC-stat &ysand could have the impact of deterring usagaubyustomers which could have an
adverse impact on our revenues.

We believe that eye scans performed usiadligiScope are being reimbursed by the majofityiod-party payers. Many commercial
payers have policies in place providing for reins@ment for the use of the DigiScope and many afetlpayers have published favorable
articles about the DigiScope in their newslettelswever, several Medicare carriers have issued Hebs and coding articles that require a
diagnosis of pre-existing retinal disease and/diromly reimburse for fundus photography, a higbpecialized form of medical imaging, when
performed in conjunction with an eye examinatiorfgrened by an eye specialist. There are no assesaha@t other Medicare carriers will not
issue similar draft LCDs, final LCDs or coding ak#is restricting the reimbursement for the uséefigiScope. We believe that eye
examinations performed on patients covered by Medicepresented less than 25% of our DigiScopentegein 2007. However, the
restrictions on reimbursement by Medicare carerdd have an adverse impact on our ability to goawDigiScope revenues in future
periods.

One of the primary challenges we face inlusiness is successfully expanding the markeatdove conduction studies. A successful
market expansion will depend upon, in part, ougeting of primary care and specialist physician® whditionally have not been targeted by
companies selling equipment used to perform neowelgction studies and our ability to alter physisigractices relating to the diagnosis of
neuropathies. Our strategy had been to sell thesfdCSystem through a combination of independdas sggencies and a direct sales force of
experienced sales representatives. The indepesdistagencies, including small to medium sizetned firms and larger national firms, had
primarily been responsible for generating saleddesnd our direct sales force had been resporfsiblringing these sales leads to closure.
These independent sales agencies typically hademeéd in a traditional distribution role and thiere had not been responsible for maintail
inventories, for making shipments to customersoibflling and collection functions.

Our strategy of utilizing independent salgsncies had been effective historically, but wgeeienced a significant decline in the
percentage of new customers being sourced througimdependent sales agency network in the fir§tdi®2007. As a result, consistent with
our long term business objectives, in the secoilfidoh@007, we made a decision to terminate owatiehships with all independent sales
agencies and focus our selling efforts exclusitiefpugh our direct sales force,
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which, as of December 31, 2007, was comprised pfagimately 50 regional sales managers, five regisales directors and one national <
director.

We expect that our direct sales force @slband their role in generating new customer dabeds, and we plan to increase efforts to
generate sales leads through various marketingitéesiincluding mailings and tradeshows. Howeveg,experienced a decline in the number
of new customers added in the last several quaatengy with a decline in sales to our existing oostrs. We believe the decision to terminate
the independent sales agency relationships maydmauebuted to these declines and could potegtlelve an adverse impact on our revenues
and our ability to secure new customers in futieequls as well.

Business Focu

Our long-term financial objectives are tow our business through the sale of proprietargioz devices and to achieve and sustain
profitability. We expect to achieve these objeditlerough sales of the NC-stat System and the Dagi€ and additional products that may be
commercialized to help physicians in the diagnasid treatment of nervous system disorders, incudeuropathies, and neurovascular
disorders and products designed to provide regiamasthesia and pain control. However, during 200&evenues are likely to continue to
decline and we are likely to continue to incur Essas a result of the reimbursement and otherssgaere currently facing. Our efforts in 2(
will focus on (1) efforts to manage the reimbursah@hallenges posed by third-party payers for tRedtat System after the AMA CPT
Editorial Panel issues their final determinationtlo@ reimbursement coding for nerve conductionissuderformed using automated equipment
such as the NC-stat System, (2) sales of the NICSgtem, (3) sales and marketing of the DigiSdop¢he detection of diabetic retinopathy,
including a market expansion into optometry clinigy seeking regulatory clearance from the FDAdwr traditional neurodiagnostic system,
the ADVANCE System, in order to launch this prodintd the specialist physician and primary caregitign markets and for portions of the
onCall Information System, (5) cooperating withdaworking to resolve, the government investigatiohehich we are subject and (6) our
ongoing research and development programs, indudiftVIGATOR, and a peripheral nerve injury prodbetng jointly developed with
Cyberkinetics.

Our launch of the ADVANCE System will deglempon our receipt of regulatory clearance fromRB&. We submitted our initial 510(k)
filing for the ADVANCE System in the first quartef 2007 and FDA clearance is still pending. Durihg fourth quarter of 2006, at the reqt
of the FDA, we submitted a 510(k) filing relatingportions of the onCall Information System tha eurrently in use and the 510(k) clearance
is still pending. If 510(k) clearance for the ports of the onCall Information System that are umdeiew is not obtained, it may require
additional product development and potential charigehe configuration of our products.

With respect to our research and developmergrams, during 2008, we expect to continuereffto develop new biosensors, on the
development of the ADVANCE System and its accessoin the development of NAVIGATOR, for which wieaipate filing a 510(k)
application with the FDA in 2008, and on a prodiactthe treatment of peripheral nerve injury inlabbration with our joint venture partner,
Cyberkinetics.
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Results of Operations

The following table presents certain staatof operations information stated as a percentégotal revenues:

Years Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Revenues
Diagnostic devict 9.5% 13.€% 12.2%
Biosensol 88.% 86.4 87.1
Other 2.1 — —
Total revenue 100.¢ 100.¢ 100.¢
Cost of revenue 27.C 24.t 25.¢
Gross margit 73.C 75.5 74.2
Operating expense
Research and developmt 11.C 9.1 11.1
Sales and marketir 51.t 39.¢ 41.2
General and administrati 33.2 21.4 23.2
Total operating expens 95.% 70.2 75.¢
Income (loss) from operatiol (22.9) 5.2 (2.€)
Interest income, ne 3. 2.¢ 2.4
Income (loss) before provision for income ta (18.¢) 8.1 0.8
Provision for income taxe — 0.2 0.1
Net income (loss (18.9% 7.7% 0.7%
| | |
Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2007 and Beaber 31, 2006
Revenue
The following tables present a breakdowowfcustomers, biosensor units used and revenues:
Years Ended December 31
2007 2006 Change % Change
Customers 5,55¢ 4,92¢ 62€ 12.1%
Biosensor units use 1,055,501 1,155,301 (99,800 (8.6
Years Ended December 31
2007 2006 Change % Change
(in thousands, except percentage data)
Revenues
Diagnostic devict $ 4254.( $ 7,538.8 % (3,284.9) (43.€)
Biosensol 39,413.: 47,711. (8,298.) (17.9
Other 954.¢ — 954.¢ N/A
Total revenue $ 44,622.; $ 55,249." $ (10,627.) (29.2)
| | |

Diagnostic device revenues were $4.3 mmilaed $7.5 million for the years ended Decembe280y and 2006, respectively, a decrea
$3.3 million, or 43.6%. This decrease is primaatiributable to a lower number of units sold, whioh believe resulted primarily from

uncertainty and adverse
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developments relating to the reimbursement for guaces performed with the NC-stat System. Diagoa@svice revenues accounted for 9.5%
and 13.6% of our total revenues for the years eimmber 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Biosensor revenues were $39.4 million afid. % million for the years ended December 31, 280F 2006, respectively, a decrease of
$8.3 million, or 17.4%. This decrease is attriblggb lower sales of biosensors, which we beli@siited primarily from uncertainty and
adverse developments relating to the reimbursefeptrocedures performed with the NC-stat Systeins@sor revenues accounted for
88.3% and 86.4% of our total revenues for the yeaded December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Our customers used 1,055,500 biosensos imthe year ended December 31, 2007, compared 55,300 units in the year ended
December 31, 2006, a decrease of 99,800 units686.8This decrease in biosensor usage is primgn@yesult of a decline in average usage
per customer offset in part by an increase in ostamer base. During the 12-month period ended bbee31, 2007, a total of 5,555
customers used the NC-stat System compared to 41820mers for the same period in 2006. This rgmtssa 12.7% year-over-year increase
in the number of customers that used our NC-state®y. The average usage per account declined tbié9@nsors for the year ended
December 31, 2007 from 234 biosensors for the g@ried in 2006.

Other revenues are attributable to the &iigpe, which we had been selling under an exclissiles and marketing license agreement
entered into with EyeTel in October 2006 and wentdned our sales and marketing efforts during ths Guarter of 2007. Revenues related to
the DigiScope were derived from a mix of new custesrand customer accounts that existed at thedfraar signing of the license agreement
with EyeTel and were transferred to us. On Decer2beR007, we acquired substantially all of theetssand assumed certain liabilities of
EyeTel, including all the rights to the DigiScope.

Our total revenues were $44.6 million ab8.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2807 2006, respectively, a decrease of
$10.6 million, or 19.2%. The decline in our totavenues is attributable to the previously mentidoger number of NC-stat Systems and
biosensors sold, which we believe resulted primdrdm uncertainty and adverse developments rgjdtirthe reimbursement for nerve
conduction studies performed with the NC-stat Syiste

We anticipate that revenues in 2008 wilitdoue to decline. In the fourth quarter of 2008, @xperienced a decline in revenues of 10.5%
from the third quarter of 2007, which we believeyarily resulted from the uncertainty created by idsuance of draft LCDs, final LCDs and
coding articles addressing reimbursement for neoreluction studies and policies issued by commiegpeigers intended to deter usage or limit
the reimbursement for the NC-stat System. Theseldpments and other future reimbursement decisionkiding the potential issuance of a
Category Il CPT code by the AMA CPT Editorial Phremuld continue to adversely impact reimbursenfenprocedures performed using the
NC-stat System. Our revenues in 2008 are likely toriacted by (a) the potential issuance of a CageldoCPT code by the AMA CPT
Editorial Panel; (b) the level of reimbursementrfy, established for procedures performed usiad\ii-stat System by insurance carriers and
other third-party payers; (c) whether final LCDg applied in a manner that places additional i&giris or qualifications on the performance
of these procedures; (d) any other reimbursemegtm@ations relating to nerve conduction studieg may be issued by thigghrty payers; ¢
(e) any other events causing uncertainty as texfgence or amount of reimbursement physiciandikely to receive for performing
procedures using the NC-stat System. Separatelgxpect revenues to continue to be positively ingmhby expanded sales and marketing
efforts in the optometry market for the DigiScoPeerall, revenues could be impacted by a varietiactors, including the level of demand for
our products, potential for changes in third-paeiynbursement for nerve conduction studies, thésaetto terminate our relationships with
independent sales agencies,
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the overall economy, competitive factors and tlotdis described in the section of this Annual ReporForm 10-K titled "Cautionary Note
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements."

Costs and expenses

The following table presents our costs exgenses and net income (loss):

Years Ended December 31

2007 2006 Change % Change

(in thousands)

Cost of revenues

Diagnostic devict $ 9158 $ 1,320 $ (404.%) (30.7)%
Biosensol 10,422.. 12,237. (1,815.9 (14.¢)
Other 724.( — 724.( N/A
Total cost of revenue 12,061.¢ 13,558.: (1,496.9) (11.0
Gross margin
Diagnostic devict 3,338.: 6,217.¢ (2,879.9 (46.9)
Biosensol 28,991.. 35,473.¢ (6,482.¢) (18.9)
Other 231.( — 231.( N/A
Total gross margi 32,560. 41,691 (9,131.9) (21.9
Gross Margin %
Diagnostic devict 78.5% 82.5%
Biosensol 73.€ 74.4
Other 24.2 —
Total gross margi 73.C 75.5
Operating expense
Research and developm $ 4,891.¢ $ 5010% $ (118.6) (2.4
Sales and marketir 22,963.1 22,013 950.2 4.3
General and administrati 14,834.: 11,805.: 3,029.( 25.7%
Total operating expens: 42,689.! 38,829.: 3,860.¢ 9.¢
Income (loss) from operatiol (10,129.9 2,862.¢ (12,991.9 (453.9)
Interest incom: 1,751.( 1,598. 152.¢ 9.t
Income (loss) before provision for income ta (8,378.9) 4,460.¢ (12,839.) (287.¢)
Provision for income taxe — 193.( (193.0 (200.0
Net income (loss) available to common stockholi $ (8,378.H) $ 4,267.¢ $ (12,646.) (296.9)

Gross Margin

Diagnostic device gross margin decreasé&818 million, or 78.5% of diagnostic device revenfor the year ended December 31, 200
compared to $6.2 million, or 82.5% of diagnostigide revenue, for same period in 2006. The decrigatfe gross margin percentage is
primarily attributable to a decrease in the nunmifatevices sold.

Biosensor gross margin decreased to $28liom or 73.6% of biosensor revenue, for the yeaded December 31, 2007, as compared to
$35.5 million, or 74.4% of biosensor revenue, far same period in 2006. The decrease in the biosgnsss margin percentage is primarily
due to lower sales volumes and higher product wyreosts.

Other gross margin percentage, which rélatdirely to the DigiScope, was 24.2% for the ymadled December 31, 2007. DigiScope
revenues in 2007 represent monthly rental feesegadscan fees as well as the amortization of dafeevenues relating to installation and
training fees. Under the
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terms of agreement, we were required to remit agreage of the revenues related to the DigiScog/éd el. The agreement included a
provision for a higher percentage of the scan feds remitted to EyeTel for these existing custanfier the first nine months of 2007.
Effective October 1, 2007, consistent with the ®iohour original agreement with EyeTel, the petaga of revenues we retained from these
existing customers increased from 25% to 50%, wheshilted in an increase in gross margins on D@p8acevenues in the fourth quarter of
2007 to 30.7% from 25.0% in the third quarter 0@20As a result of our December 26, 2007 acquisitibsubstantially all of the assets of
EyeTel, we expect gross margin on DigiScope revemuikkincrease in 2008.

Our overall gross margin decreased to $82lléon, or 73.0% of revenues, for the year enBettember 31, 2007, as compared to
$41.7 million, or 75.5% of revenues, for same [@iiv2006.

Our gross margins may continue to decluméng) 2008 due to the expected decline in revedeeised from the NGtat System and due
an expected increase in the percentage of totahtes derived from the DigiScope, which has lowesg margins as compared with our other
products.

Research and Developme

Our research and development, or R&D, egpslinclude expenses associated with our resqaatyct development, clinical, regulato
and quality assurance departments.

R&D expenses decreased $118,600, or 2d%4.0 million for the year ended December 31, 206 $5.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006. As a percentage of revenues, &§Bnses were 11.0% and 9.1% for the years endeeniiber 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. The decrease in R&D expenses foydtlae ended December 31, 2007 compared with the panad in 2006, was primarily due
to a decrease of $178,400 related to developmeosts expended on the ADVANCE System and on negebigors. This decrease was offset
in part by an increase of $81,000 in personnelsc@stulting from the hiring of additional employée®ur R&D department and related to
increases in employee compensation.

We expect our spending on R&D will be riglally unchanged during 2008. We anticipate thabueses devoted to the development of the
ADVANCE System may be reallocated to other researghdevelopment efforts. This amount may vary,dwr, depending on the
opportunities and challenges that arise during/da and depending on the outcome of the FDA rewieaur 510(k) submission for the
ADVANCE System, the FDA review of our 510(K) subsitn for portions of the onCall Information Systamd our revenues during 2008.

Sales and Marketing
Our sales and marketing expenses inclugereses from the marketing, field sales, sales adtration and reimbursement departments.

Sales and marketing expenses increased Z850r 4.3%, to $23.0 million for year ended Daber 31, 2007 from $22.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2006. As a percentageaifues, sales and marketing expenses were 51.5%0a8% for the years end
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The aseren expenses was primarily due to (a) an inered$1.4 million in employee
compensation and benefit costs attributable t@®pansion of our sales force; (b) an increase 21 #H0 in consulting services, primarily to
assist us with the reimbursement challenges wéaaneg; (c) an increase of $245,400 in stbased compensation expense; and (d) an inc
of $335,400 in advertising and promotional expen¥hese amounts were partially offset by a decreat@rd-party sales commissions of
$2.0 million, primarily due to our decision to tamate our relationships with all independent salgsncies and focus our selling efforts
exclusively through our direct sales force and dlge to decreased revenues.
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We anticipate that our sales and marketienses may decline in 2008 as a result of redp@githents to independent sales agencies an
reduced commissions to our direct sales forcebattble to potentially lower revenues, howeves thay vary, depending primarily upon on
our revenues for 2008.

Our sales force is comprised of 56 empleye®luding 50 regional sales managers, as of dbee 31, 2007 compared to 53 employees,
including 50 regional sales managers as of DeceBbe2006. We plan to continue selling the DigiSethirough the same sales force used to
sell the NC-stat System and as a result we domiatipate the need to expand the sales force tpatithe sales and marketing efforts for the
DigiScope.

General and Administrative

Our general and administrative expensdadecexpenses from the executive, finance, admitige, customer service, and information
technology departments.

General and administrative expenses ineck8.0 million, or 25.7%, to $14.8 million for yeended December 31, 2007 from
$11.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2@36a percentage of revenues, general and adnaitvgrexpenses were 33.2% and 21.4%
for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 20Q8gctgely. The increase in expenses was primatiy/ td an increase of $5.2 million in
professional fees, mainly legal services, an irsged $425,000 in consulting expenses and an isereb$191,800 in stock-based
compensation expense. The increases in professEembnd consulting services are both primarigted to the government investigations
previously disclosed by us and to reimbursementaratPartially offsetting these increases wavarsal of $1.7 million of sales tax liability
as a result of receiving amnesty from a numbetaiés and receiving relief from other states inftwe of a limited look back period and
waiver of penalties and a $585,200 decrease irdbhtexpense.

We believe our general and administratixgeases will increase in 2008 as a result of oguiition of substantially all of the assets of
EyeTel and may increase or decrease dependingtbpamount incurred for professional fees and dtinguservices relating to the
government investigations and reimbursement mattengously disclosed by us.

Interest Income

Interest income was $1.8 million and $1iBiom during the years ended December 31, 20072016, respectively. Interest income was
earned from cash equivalents and shemt investments. The increase in interest incaméhie year ended December 31, 2007, as compa
the same period in 2006, was primarily due to higtverage invested cash balances combined withcaedse in the average portfolio yield,
attributable to a shift in the portfolio mix to higr yielding fixed maturities, and the prevailimgerrest rate environment primarily during the
first half of 2007.

Provision for Income Taxe

We recorded no tax provision for the yasatexl December 31, 2007 due to the net loss incuedrecorded a tax provision related to the
alternative minimum tax of $193,000 for the yead@sh December 31, 2006.
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Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2006 and Beaber 31, 200t
Revenue

The following tables present a breakdowowfcustomers, biosensor units used and revenues:

Years Ended December 31

2006 2005 Change % Change
Customers 4,92¢ 3,28: 1,64 50.2%
Biosensor units use 1,155,301 704,80( 450,50( 63.¢

Years Ended December 31

2006 2005 Change % Change

(in thousands, except percentage dat;

Revenues
Diagnostic devict $ 7,538.. $ 42210 $ 3,317.( 78.€
Biosensol 47,711 30,076.¢ 17,634.( 58.€
Total revenue $ 55,249 $ 34,298.. $ 20,951.¢ 61.1

Diagnostic device revenues were $7.5 nmlkoad $4.2 million for the years ended Decembe2806 and 2005, respectively, an increase
of $3.3 million, or 78.6%. Of this increase, appnoately $2.6 million is attributable to a greateirmber of units sold, primarily as a result of
increased demand for the NC-stat System and aeaserin the number of regional sales managersiditi@n, $0.7 million of this increase is
attributable to an increase in the list price of NC-stat monitors and docking stations from $4,8085,000 effective January 1, 2006, which
resulted in a higher average selling price durif@&as compared to 2005. Diagnostic device reveacssunted for 13.6% and 12.3% of our
total revenues for the years ended December 35 200 2005, respectively.

Biosensor revenues were $47.7 million a8@. % million for the years ended December 31, 2806 2005, respectively, an increase of
$17.6 million, or 58.6%. The increase is primadlye to an increased customer base for our bioseasoran increased frequency of testing by
our customers. Biosensor revenues accounted fa¢8énd 87.7% of our total revenues for the yeadedmecember 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Our customers used 1,155,300 biosensaos imthe year ended December 31, 2006, compargddt@00 units in the year ended
December 31, 2005, an increase of 450,500 uni83.®%. The increase in biosensor usage is priynattitibutable to the increase in our
customer base and to an increase in usage penurstburing the 12-month period ending Decembe2B06, a total of 4,929 customers used
our NC-stat System compared to 3,282 customernthé&same period ending December 31, 2005. Thigsepts a 50.2% year-over-year
increase in the number of customers that used Qustit System. The average usage per account indraem884 biosensors for the year en
December 31, 2006 from 215 biosensors for the g@eried in 2005.

Our total revenues were $55.2 million aBd.8 million for the years ended December 31, 28062005, respectively, an increase of
$21.0 million, or 61.1%.
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Costs and expenses

The following table presents our costs exgenses and net income:

Years Ended December 31

2006 2005 Change % Change

(in thousands)

Cost of revenues

Diagnostic devict $ 1,320 $ 1,059." $ 260.¢ 24.6%
Biosensol 12,237.4 7,798. 4,439.2 . 56.¢
Total cost of revenue 13,558.: 8,858.: 4,700.( 53.1
Gross margin
Diagnostic devict 6,217.¢ 3,161.¢ 3,056.: 96.7
Biosensol 35,473.¢ 22,278. 13,195. 59.2
Total gross margi 41,691 25,440.( 16,251.¢ 63.¢
Gross Margin %
Diagnostic devict 82.5% 74.%%
Biosensol 4.4 74.1
Total gross margi 75.5 74.2
Operating expense
Research and developme $ 5,010 $ 3,820t $ 1,189.¢ 31.1
Sales and marketir 22,013 14,150.: 7,863.t 55.€
General and administrati\ 11,805.: 8,021.¢ 3,783.0 47 .2
Total operating expens: 38,829.. 25,992.¢ 12,836. 49.4
Income from operation 2,862. (552.5) 3,414.¢ (618.0)
Interest incomt 1,598.- 838.¢ 759.¢ 90.¢€
Interest expens — (2.0 2.C (200.0
Income before provision for income tay 4,460.¢ 284.: 4,176.F 1,469.:
Provision for income taxe 193.( 35.C 158.( 451.¢
Net income available to common stockholc $ 4,267.¢ $ 249.:  $ 4,018t 1,612.;

Gross Margin

Diagnostic device gross margin increase®bt@ million, or 82.5% of diagnostic device revenfor the year ended December 31, 2006, as
compared to $3.2 million, or 74.9% of diagnostigide revenue, for same period in 2005. The incr@gafiee gross margin percentage in 2006
compared to 2005 is primarily attributable to acré@ase in the list price of our NC-stat System f@000 to $5,000 effective January 1, 2006
and manufacturing price reductions realized foramwice beginning in the second quarter of 2006.

Biosensor gross margin increased to $35lltbm or 74.4% of biosensor revenue for the yeaded December 31, 2006, as compared to
$22.3 million, or 74.1% of biosensor revenue, far same period in 2005. The increase in biosenmsssgnargin percentage is primarily dut
manufacturing price reductions realized for sevefaur biosensors during the second half of 2Q@bthae first quarter of 2006 partially offset
by a change in the mix of biosensors sold.

Our overall gross margin increased to $4dillfon, or 75.5% of revenues, for the year enB&tember 31, 2006, as compared to
$25.4 million, or 74.2% of revenues, for same i02005.
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Research and Developme

R&D expenses increased $1.2 million, o1%d,.to $5.0 million for the year ended December28206 from $3.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2005. As a percentage of reseR8® expenses were 9.1% and 11.1% for the yeatedeDecember 31, 2006 and 2(
respectively. The increase in expenses is primdrily to an increase of $614,000 in personnel cestdting from the hiring of additional
employees in our R&D department and increases pl@rae compensation. In addition, product develapraed temporary labor costs
increased $77,700 and $51,700, respectively. Tineseases are primarily related to the developroétiie ADVANCE System and new
biosensors. Also contributing to the increase wamerease of $393,200 in stock-based compenseaiipanse due to the adoption of the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accountingrigt@rds, or SFAS, No. 123(R)Share Based Paymefitor SFAS No. 123(R).

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses increasedh@Hli@n, or 55.6%, to $22.0 million for year endB@écember 31, 2006 from $14.2 million for
the year ended December 31, 2005. As a percenfageemues, sales and marketing expenses were 3h8%1.3% for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The ehangxpenses is primarily due to an increase df #4llion in employee compensation
and benefit costs, including sales commissions fwa@lr regional sales managers. This increaskriswgable to the expansion of the sales
force and higher revenues in 2006 as compareddb.28so contributing to the change in expensegayan increase of $1.6 million in sales
commissions paid to our independent regional sadescies, which is related to our higher revenn@906 as well as the addition of a
distributor in May 2006; (b) an increase in sto@s&d compensation expense of $653,300 due to tpial of the provisions of SFAS
No. 123(R); (c) an increase of $400,700 in traxplemses due to the expansion of the sales forfan(thcrease in consulting services
$299,300, primarily to assist us with reimbursenmraatters; and (e) an increase of $267,500 in dostsew promotional materials.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses ineck8.8 million, or 47.2%, to $11.8 million for yeended December 31, 2006 from
$8.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2@35a percentage of revenues, general and admiivstexpenses were 21.4% and 23.4%
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 20Q%ctgely. The increase in expenses is primarily ttu(a) an increase in stock-based
compensation expense of $1.2 million from the adopdf the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R); (b) anriease of $661,300 in bad debt expense
resulting from an increase in past due accountgr(dincrease of $538,400 in professional feesefpal services; (d) an increase of $456,000 in
our accrual for sales taxes; (e) an increase 08820 in our insurance costs; (f) an increaseadliticard and bank fees of $238,800 related to
increased customer transactions; and (g) an ineieggersonnel costs of $120,700 from the exparsiataff and increases in employee
compensation.

Interest Income

Interest income was $1,598,400 and $838¢80idig the years ended December 31, 2006 and 28§Bectively, representing an increase
of $759,600. Interest income was earned from cgslvalents, short-term investments and long-tervestments. The increase in interest
income for the year ended December 31, 2006, apad to the year ended December 31, 2005 is ghndare to higher average cash
balances and an increase in the average portfigdio gttributable to the impact of higher markdenest rates in 2006. Interest expense was nof
material for the years ended December 31, 200&2808.
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Provision for Income Taxe

We recorded a tax provision related toralifve minimum tax of $193,000 and $35,000 foryhars ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal source of liquidity is ourrcent cash and cash equivalents and short-termtbetehturity investments. As of December 31,
2007, the weighted average maturity of our shartiteeld-to-maturity investments was 136 days. Quilitp to generate cash from operations
is dependent upon our ability to generate reverana Sales of our products, as well as our abititynanage our operating costs and net assets.
A decrease in demand for our products or unantiegbancreases in our operating costs would likelyehan adverse effect on our liquidity and
cash generated from operations. The following feth information relating to our liquidity:

December 31

2007 2006 Change % Change

(in thousands)

Cash and cash equivale $ 7,097 $ 7,909.¢ $ (812.¢) (10.9%

Shor-term hel-to-maturity investment 22,621 32,410 (9,788.9 (30.29)

Total cash, cash equivalents and s-term hel-to-maturity

investment: $ 29,718.¢ $ 40,320.! $ (10,601.}) (26.9%
I I

During 2007, our cash and cash equival@mtsshort-term held-to-maturity investments deaddsy $10.6 million, primarily due to
$8.0 million of cash used in operations, $2.5 willbf cash used for our investment in Cyberkinetm®imon stock, $257,500 of cash used for
capital expenditures and $175,000 of cash usedhid dur acquisition of substantially all of theetssof EyeTel, offset partially by $285,900 of
proceeds received from the issuance of common stod&r our employee stock purchase plan and threisgeof stock options. The current
estimated market value of the $2.5 million investimaade in Cyberkinetics common stock is approxaétye$1.4 million and we are restricted
from selling this investment until November 2008.

In managing our working capital, two of firancial measurements we monitor are days' saletanding, or DSO, and inventory
turnover rate, which are presented in the tablevbébr the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006:

Years Ended December 31

2007 2006

Days' sales outstanding (da 54 40
Inventory turnover rate (times per ye 2.7 4.3

Our payment terms extended to our custogemngrally require payment within 30 days from iicecdate. At December 31, 2007, we
experienced an increase in DSO to 54 days frome48 dt December 31, 2006 attributable to a signitiencrease in the percentage of
accounts receivable past due 60 days that begamgdbie fourth quarter of 2006. We believe thasthimcreases were primarily the result of
challenges surrounding the reimbursement by Mediaad commercial payers in certain regions of thiedd States for nerve conduction
studies performed using the NC-stat System. As &mge continue to face these reimbursement clggteaur DSO and our working capital
may continue to be adversely impacted. Accountslpigyare normally paid within 30 to 40 days froroeipt of a vendor's invoice.
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Our inventory turnover for the year endezt®mber 31, 2007 was 2.7 times, compared withifé&stfor the year ended December 31,
2006. The decrease in the inventory turnover @t¢hfe year ended December 31, 2007, as compatbd tear ended December 31, 2006,
primarily due to the initial production of the ADWWCE System and decreased demand for the NC-sttarBysffset in part by a decline in
inventories of biosensors due to production chgksrbeing experienced by our thpydrty manufacturer resulting from their transitiora new
manufacturing facility.

The following sets forth information relagito the sources and uses of our cash.

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

(in thousands)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ (7,989.) $ 7297.¢ $ 1,908.;
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi $ 6,898.. $ (9,133.9) $ 3,514.!
Net cash provided by financing activiti $ 278.  $ 1575 $ 812.2

Our operating activities used $8.0 millimircash in 2007 while providing cash of $7.3 mitliand $1.9 million in 2006 and 2005,
respectively. In 2007, a net loss of $8.4 millioda net use of cash of $3.4 million for our inwesht in working capital were offset by
$3.8 million in non-cash items, mainly compensagapense associated with stock options. The prirdaver for the use of cash in our
investment in working capital was a decrease imusztexpenses of $3.4 million. This decrease wiasgpily due to the reversal of $1.7 milli
of sales tax liability as a result of receiving asty from a number of states and receiving ret@hfother states in the form of a limited look
back period and waiver of penalties. Also impactirarking capital was an increase in our inventoo€$1.7 million primarily for the
production of the ADVANCE System. These items waffset by a $1.6 million decrease in accounts redde, excluding the provision for
doubtful accounts, due to a decline in revenue20D6, a net use of cash of approximately $1.2anilfor our investment in working capital
was offset by $4.3 million in net income and $4.iflian in non-cash items, mainly compensation exgeeassociated with stock options. The
primary drivers of our investment in working capitgre as follows: our accounts receivable incrd&®e1 million, excluding the change in
allowance for doubtful accounts, primarily due towth in revenues and our inventories increased ®@® primarily due to the growth in our
business and our preparation for the release AAIMEANCE System. These items were partially offggta $2.1 million increase in accrued
expenses. In 2005, increases in accrued experefes;atl revenue (net of deferred costs) and acsqaytable of $1.9 million, $588,900 and
$799,300, respectively; non-cash items of $1.4iomland net income of $249,300 were offset in pgrincreases in accounts receivable and
inventory of $1.7 million and $1.4 million, respirety.

As a result of the decline in revenues iaocease in operating expenses, we incurred aoaetih 2007 and we expect to incur increased
net losses for 2008. This is expected to have garad impact on our cash flows from operating #ai for 2008.

Our investing activities provided $6.9 moifl of cash in 2007, used $9.1 million of cash®@& and provided $3.5 million of cash in 2005.
In 2007, $37.8 million in investment maturities pidied cash which was offset in part by $28.0 milio investment purchases, $2.5 million
used to fund our investment in Cyberkinetics, $86@,used to fund purchases of fixed assets, phynatated to computer equipment and
tooling equipment for new products and $175,00@ usdund the acquisition of substantially all bétassets of EyeTel. In 2006, $42.1 million
in investment purchases and $620,500 used to furchpses of fixed assets, primarily related to astepequipment, were partially offset by
$33.6 million in cash provided from investment nrdies. In 2005, $18.8 million in investment matie$ provided cash which was offset by
$15.3 million in investment purchases, which wamprily reinvested in cash equivalents and $4751€81 to fund purchases of fixed assets
primarily related to leasehold improvements andingoequipment for new products.
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During 2008, we expect to continue to meiimour cash and investments in money market fandsshort-term investment vehicles. We
currently have a commitment of approximately $489,6 purchase DigiScopes from our manufactur€@hima. We expect that our capital
expenditures will increase in 2008 compared with728ue to the purchases of DigiScopes. We antiipadtal capital investment for
DigiScopes in 2008 of $1.6 million to $2.0 millioncluding the commitment referred to above. Aditlly we have a potential commitment
to purchase an additional $1.25 million of Cybeekios common stock that we must exercise in ceti@aumstances.

In February 2008, our property lease, aally entered into at the beginning of January 283d which was scheduled to expire on
March 31, 2009, was amended to extend the terdmeolieiase for a period of an additional four yebBrgonnection with this amendment, the
amount of the irrevocable standby letter of credé,are required to maintain, stating the lessdhadbeneficiary, will be reduced from
$1,430,000 to $400,000. The letter of credit messécured by a certificate of deposit in an amequotl to 102% of the letter of credit as a
security deposit. We expect that this reductiothansecurity deposit of approximately $1.0 milligiil become available to us for our operat
and working capital needs during the first halk6D8. The lease will now expire in March 2013. Thetificate of deposit is renewable
annually. This amount is classified as restrictashcin the balance sheet.

Our financing activities provided $278,38Q,6 million and $812,000 of cash in 2007, 2006 2005, respectively. Cash provided by
financing activities in 2007, 2006 and 2005 repnésiee proceeds from the issuance of shares undeoployee stock purchase plan and the
exercise of stock options. In 2007, these proceesnts offset in part by payments on a capital lease.

During 2008, we plan to fund sales and retankgy efforts for the DigiScope and continue owearch and development programs,
including the ADVANCE System. We plan to continngésting resources on the development of NAVIGAT@Rjinimally invasive nerve
localization system for regional anesthesia, pamtrol and the treatment of neuropathies such &. @e also expect to incur capital
expenditures for computer hardware and softwasaipport our business and the additional requiresngfnbur customer base. We also
continue to explore investment, licensing and &itjan opportunities that may expand our produéririg in the physician office market and
in the neurological sector.

We expect to continue to incur net lossebsrzegative cash flows from operations for thedesable future. Based upon our current plans,
we believe that our existing capital resourceduliog cash and cash equivalents and short-teresinvents, as of December 31, 2007 are
sufficient to finance our ongoing operations foetwy-four months, including the anticipated opergexpenses and capital expenditures
described above. However, our business is curréating significant challenges and uncertainties, @s a result, our available capital
resources may be consumed more rapidly than clyrexpected due to changes in our estimates, fueuenues, changes we make to our
ongoing operating expenses, future changes inwainbss strategy, decisions we make regardingzbeo§our sales force and the magnitude
of our sales and marketing programs, research emelabment spending plans, the outcome of the D@ektigation that we are currently
subject to, and other items affecting our levedxgpenditures and our use of existing cash and egsivalents and short-term investments.
Accordingly, we may need to raise additional futmlsupport our operating and capital needs. Witldgditional funds, we may be forced to
delay, scale back or eliminate some of our saldsw@arketing efforts, research and developmentitiesvor other operations and potentially
delay our product development efforts.

We may attempt to obtain additional fundihgough public or private financing, collaborateeangements with strategic partners or
through additional credit lines or other debt fioiauy sources to increase the funds we have avaitahls to fund our operations. However,
there are no assurances that we will be able treestich financing on favorable terms, if at all.
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As of December 31, 2007, we have federdlsdate net operating loss carryforwards availabefset future taxable income of
$37.0 million and $21.1 million, respectively, afiedleral and state research and development ciafdbts98,000 and $544,000, respectively,
which may be available to reduce future taxablenne and the related taxes thereon. The net opgiatis and research and development
credit carryforwards expire at various dates beigipin 2011 for federal and 2008 for state. Ownigrshanges in our company, as defined in
the Internal Revenue Code, are expected to havedashlimitation on the amount of net operating lasd research and development credit
carryforwards that can be utilized annually to effuture taxable income and taxes, based on dpségmaf the provisions of Section 382 of
Internal Revenue Code. Subsequent changes in auerehip could further affect the limitation in foéuyears.

To date, inflation has not had a materigdact on our financial operations.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements, Contractual Ohiiget and Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
As of December 31, 2007, we did not havwedftbalance sheet financing arrangements.

The following table summarizes our printipantractual obligations as of December 31, 200 the effects such obligations are expe
to have on our liquidity and cash flows in futueripds.

Payments due in

Contractual Obligations Total 2008 2009 2010 2011 & 2012 after 2012
Operating lease obligatiol $ 1,162,500 $ 930,00 $ 232,500 $ — % — 3 —
Capital lease obligatior 31,17 12,90( 12,90( 5,37¢ — —
Purchase order obligatiol 3,369,941 3,369,94 — — — —
Total contractual obligatior $ 4563,62 $ 4,312,841 $ 245400 $ 537t % — 3 —

In connection with our investment in Cykagtics, we received a warrant to purchase up pocgmately 2.7 million shares of
Cyberkinetics common stock. The warrant, exercesabl$0.46 per share, or approximately $1.25 millfeas a term of five years, and is
required to be exercised by us if Cyberkineticeiezs FDA approval of an HDE filing for the Anda®@&S device for acute spinal cord injur

In February 2008, we entered into a Coltabon Agreement and Operating Agreement with Clibetics to develop and commercialize
products for the treatment of peripheral nerveringnd formed PNIR (Peripheral Nerve Injury RepaltlC, a joint venture with initial
ownership of 50% held by us and 50% held by Cyletics. Under the terms of the joint venture, weehagreed to fund the initial
$2.0 million in product development costs and hayeeed to share equally in all costs in exceskefrtitial $2.0 million.

In February 2008, we amended the Leaseehgeat dated October 18, 2000 between Fourth AvehGeand us for office and
engineering laboratory space. The amendment exteederm of the lease, currently scheduled torexqin March 31, 2009, through March
2013. Base rent for the period April 2009 througarth 2013 will be reduced from the current leve$®80,000 annually to a range of
$675,000 to $765,000 annually.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our financial statements are based oneleeton and application of generally accepted acting principles, which require us to make
estimates and assumptions about future eventafieat the amounts reported in our financial statets and the accompanying notes. Future
events and their effects cannot be determined edittainty. Therefore, the determination of estimaggjuires the exercise of judgment. Actual
results could differ from those estimates, and sush differences may
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be material to our financial statements. We beltnag the policies set forth below may involve gh@r degree of judgment and complexity in
their application than our other accounting poBcad represent the critical accounting policieiua the preparation of our financial
statements. If different assumptions or conditimese to prevail, the results could be materialf§edent from our reported results. Our
significant accounting policies are presented witdote 1 to our Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognitic

Our revenue recognition policy is to reciagrrevenues from our NC-stat System monitors aoselmsors upon shipment if the fee is fixed
or determinable, persuasive evidence of an arraegeexists, delivery has occurred and risk of lwss passed, collection of the resulting
receivables is reasonably assured and producheetue reasonably estimable. Revenues from outirtpekation and access to the onCall
Information System are considered one unit of anting and are deferred and recognized over theeshof the estimated customer
relationship period or the estimated useful liféhaf product, currently three years. We recordmaeeon a net basis for product sales made to
distributors, based upon the amount billed to tis&itiutors, when the distributor accepts the resjlity for invoicing the customer and the
responsibility for the risk of collections and pumd returns from the customer.

When multiple elements are contained imgls arrangement, we allocate revenue betweenléments based on their relative fair value,
provided that each element meets the criteriarémtinent as a separate unit of accounting. An eleiseonsidered a separate unit of
accounting if it has value to the customer on adstdone basis, there is objective, reliable evidesfdbe fair value of the undelivered eleme
and delivery or performance of the undelivered elets is considered probable and substantially ircontrol. Fair value is determined based
upon the price charged when the element is soldratgly.

Revenue recognition involves judgmentsluding assessments of expected returns, allowanwagoubtful accounts and expected
customer relationship periods. We analyze varias$ofs, including a review of specific transactioms historical returns, average customer
relationship periods, customer usage, customenbetaand market and economic conditions. Changesigments or estimates on these
factors could materially impact the timing and amioof revenues and costs recognized. Should mark&tonomic conditions deteriorate, our
actual return or bad debt experience could exceeeéstimate.

Certain product sales are made with a 30ridgt of return. Since we can reasonably estimfiztiere returns, we recognize revenues
associated with product sales that contain a B§heturn upon shipment and at the same time redckwenue by the amount of estimated
returns under the provisions of SFAS No. 4Relenue Recognition When Right of Return EXists

Other revenues consist entirely of revemaksing to the DigiScope, including installatiand training fees, per patient fees for eye scans
performed using the DigiScope and monthly rentasfior the use of the DigiScope. Installation aathing fees are deferred and recognized
on a straight line basis over the non-cancelalta t# the customer contract, currently one yeardRees from fees charged for patient eye
scans are recognized as the scans are performesifdfehe rental of the DigiScope are recognized enonthly basis. Under the terms of an
exclusive sales and marketing license to the Digg®drom EyeTel, amounts due to EyeTel were reabedecost of sales.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Aots

Trade accounts receivable are recorddaeantoiced amount and do not bear interest. Tloavahce for doubtful accounts is our best
estimate of the amount of probable credit lossesimexisting accounts receivable. We review olavednce for doubtful accounts and
determine the allowance based on an analysis ¢dmes past payment history, product usage actiaityl recent
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communications between us and the customer. Padtalances over 90 days are reviewed individualycéllectibility. Account balances are
charged off against the allowance when we feal irobable the receivable will not be recovered.d&@ot have any off-balance sheet credit
exposure related to our customers.

Warranty Costs

We accrue for device and biosensor warraagys at the time of sale. While we engage inresiée product quality programs and
processes, our warranty obligation is affected toglpct failure rates, user error, variability inyglology and anatomy of customers' patients,
material usage and delivery costs. Should actuwalyut failure and user error rates, material usagielivery costs differ from our estimates,
the amount of actual warranty costs could matgridiffer from our estimates. Warranty costs areslblasn the cost of repairing or replacing
monitors and docking stations and based on thacepient cost of biosensors.

Asset Valuatiol

Asset valuation includes assessing therdecbvalue of certain assets, including short angterm investments, accounts receivable,
inventories and fixed assets. We use a varietadbfs to assess valuation, depending upon the &seinvestment portfolio is classified as
held-to-maturity, and such investments are statesnartized cost. In accordance with the provisiohSFAS No. 115, Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securitjeg SFAS No. 115, our investment in Cyberkinet&slassified as available-for-sale and is
carried at fair value, with any unrealized gaind losses, net of taxes, reported in accumulategtr aibmprehensive loss, a separate componen
of stockholders' equity. Accounts receivable ar@uated based upon our historical experience, dbeofthe receivable and current market and
economic conditions. The realizable value of ineeies is based upon the types and levels of inveriteld, forecasted demand, pricing,
competition and changes in technology. Should aimearket and economic conditions deteriorate aatmal recoveries could be less than our
estimates. The recoverability of our fixed assat$ ather long-lived assets are evaluated whenmistances indicate that an event of
impairment may have occurred in accordance wittptiogisions of SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Longdd
Assets", or SFAS No. 144.

Accounting for Income Tax

As part of the process of preparing ouafficial statements, we are required to estimaténcome taxes in each of the jurisdictions in
which we operate. This process involves estimatimgactual current tax exposure, including assggia risks associated with tax audits,
together with assessing temporary differences tiagurom the different treatment of items for t@xd accounting purposes. These differences,
together with cumulative net operating losses,Itésweferred tax assets and liabilities, which srcluded within our balance sheet. We assess
the likelihood that our deferred tax assets wilk@eovered from future taxable income and, to thiere we believe that recovery is not more
likely than not, establish a valuation allowanckeprimary factor used in the determination ofvthkiation allowance is our historical
profitability. In the event that actual resultsfdiffrom these estimates, our provision for incdeees could be materially impacted.

Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted FASBrpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an iptetation of
FASB Statement No. 1", or FIN 48, which clarifies the accounting andaosure for uncertainty in tax positions, as dedinFIN 48 requires
us to perform a two-step evaluation of all tax foss, ensuring that these tax return positionstriiee"more-likely than not" recognition
threshold and can be measured with sufficient piegito determine the benefit recognized in tharftial statements. These evaluations
provide us with a comprehensive model for how weutthrecognize, measure, present, and discloserifirancial statements certain tax
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positions that we have taken or expect to takenoame tax returns. Management estimated that Beoémber 31, 2006, there was an
uncertain tax position totaling approximately $1@@ relating to our tax credit carryforwards. Aseault, we reduced our deferred tax assets
and the associated valuation allowance by apprdxim&100,000 as of January 1, 2007, the adoptite df FIN 48. There have been no other
activities impacting FIN 48 reserves during thery@aded December 31, 2007.

Accounting for Stoc-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted SR&S123(R) using the modified prospective method laegan reflecting the stock-based
compensation expense determined under fair valsedoaethods in our statement of operations raltiaer &s pro forma disclosure in our notes
to the financial statements. Under this transititethod, the compensation cost recognized begintdangary 1, 2006 includes compensation
cost for (i) all share-based payments granted poidbut not yet vested as of January 1, 2006,thasdghe grant-date fair value estimated in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 128¢tounting for Stock-Based Compensatioor SFAS No. 123, and (ii) all share based
payments granted or modified subsequent to Jariy&906 based on the grant-date fair value estifriataccordance with the provisions of
SFAS No. 123(R). Compensation cost is generallggeized ratably over the requisite service perRribr period amounts have not been
restated. We use the Black-Scholes option pricingehfor determining the fair value of our stockiops and amortize our stock-based
compensation expense using the straight-line method

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

As result of our acquisition of substarigialll of the assets of EyeTel on December 26, 2@05te was approximately $5.8 million of
goodwill and $2.8 million of other intangible assen our balance sheet at December 31, 2007. Wamilrtize intangible assets using the
straight-line method over their estimated econdiwes, which is currently estimated to be five yedbdetermining the economic lives of
acquired intangible assets requires us to makfisigmt judgment and estimates, and can materialfyact our operating results.

SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assétsor SFAS No. 142, requires us to assess thezedality of goodwill annually, as
well as whenever events or changes in circumstaswggest that the carrying amount may not be reable The Company's ability to realize
the value of the goodwill will depend on the futagesh flows of the business. If the Company isat to realize the value of goodwill, the
Company may be required to incur material chargkging to the impairment of goodwill.

We are required to perform impairment testder SFAS No. 142 annually and whenever eventbamges in circumstances suggest that
the carrying value of an asset may not be recoler&br the acquisition, various analyses, asswnptand estimates were made at the time of
the acquisition specifically regarding product depenent, market conditions and expected cash fibvaswere used to determine the valua
of goodwill and intangibles.

When we perform impairment tests in futyears, changes in forecasts and estimates frore tsed at the acquisition date could rest
impairment charges.

Other Long-Lived Assets

We periodically evaluate long-lived asdetspotential impairment under SFAS No. 144. Wenglaperform these evaluations whenever
events or changes in circumstances suggest thabthgng value of an asset or group of assetstisatoverable. If we believe an indicator of
potential impairment exists, we test to determimethier the impairment recognition criteria in SFR& 144
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have been met. In evaluating long-lived assetpdbdential impairment, we will make several sigrafit estimates and judgments, including:

. determining the appropriate grouping of assethatdwest level for which cash flows are available;
. estimating future cash flows associated with treesasr group of assets; and
. determining an appropriate discount rate to ugheranalysis

If different estimates and judgments aredyshe amount and timing of impairments could fiecéed.
New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the Financial Accounttgndards Board, or FASB, issued SFAS No. 141 @geev2007), Business Combinationis
or SFAS No. 141R. SFAS No. 141R will significantliyange the accounting for business combinationdetUS8FAS No. 141R, an acquiring
entity will be required to recognize all the assetquired and liabilities assumed in a transaditaihe acquisition-date fair value with limited
exceptions. SFAS No. 141R will change the accogrttieatment for certain specific acquisition redbitems including: (1) expensing
acquisition related costs as incurred; (2) valuingcontrolling interests at fair value at the asdigin date; and (3) expensing restructuring
costs associated with an acquired business. SFA3AN®R also includes a substantial number of nealaure requirements. SFAS No. 141R
is to be applied prospectively to business comhnatfor which the acquisition date is on or aftanuary 1, 2009. We expect SFAS No. 141R
will have an impact on our accounting for futuresimess combinations once adopted but the effetdpendent upon the acquisitions that are
made in the future.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFASN®, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fioal Liabilities, including an
amendment of FASB Statement No.'118 SFAS No. 159. SFAS No. 159 permits entiteeshoose to measure many financial instrument
certain other items at fair value that are notenily required to be measured at fair value. Uiizedlgains and losses on items for which the
fair value option has been elected are reportesinings. SFAS No. 159 does not affect any existeapunting literature that requires certain
assets and liabilities to be carried at fair vabiEAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years begimnafter November 15, 2007. We believe that
our adoption of SFAS No. 159 will not have a matkeirnpact on our financial position, results of c@ns or cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFASING, "Fair Value Measurements or SFAS No. 157. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value
numerous accounting pronouncements, establishrasnedvork for measuring fair value in generally gted accounting principles ("GAAP")
and expands disclosures related to the use ofdaie measures in financial statements. SFAS Nb.dbes not expand the use of fair value
measures in financial statements, but standardizeégfinition and guidance in GAAP. SFAS No. 15iphasizes that fair value is a market-
based measurement and not an entity-specific memsmt based on an exchange transaction in whichrtity sells an asset or transfers a
liability (exit price). SFAS No. 157 establishefd value hierarchy from observable market datthashighest level to fair value based on an
entity's own fair value assumptions as the lonwestll SFAS No. 157 was to be effective for our fiicial statements issued in 2008. In
February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Statement sitiBo, or FSP, No. 157-2Partial Deferral of the Effective Date of Statem&&7," or
FSP No. 157-2, which delays the effective dateFAS No. 157 for all non-financial assets and nowficial liabilities, except those that are
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the finalscstatements on a recurring basis (at leastalyyto fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2008. We have not yet determinedrtipact that the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will haneoar financial position, results
operations or its cash flows.
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Subsequent Event:
Joint Venture with Cyberkinetics

In February 2008, we entered into a Coltabon Agreement and Operating Agreement with Clibetics to develop and commercialize
products for the treatment of peripheral nerverinpnd formed PNIR (Peripheral Nerve Injury RepallC, a joint venture with 50%
ownership held by us and 50% ownership held by €ybetics.

Under the terms of the joint venture, weehagreed to fund the initial $2.0 million in pratlulevelopment costs and have agreed to share
equally in all costs in excess of the initial $tdlion. Cyberkinetics has agreed to contributehterlogy, know-how and intellectual property,
primarily relating to their Andara OFS technologythe joint venture.

We obtained sales and marketing rights@yiokrkinetics obtained commercial manufacturingtsgo any products commercialized ur
the joint venture. Each party will charge the joietture at cost for all expenses incurred in cotioe with their respective commercialization
activities. Based on the initial ownership of tbaj venture, we will equally split profits and &&s realized from the joint venture with
Cyberkinetics.

Lease Agreement

In February 2008, we amended the Leaseehgeat dated October 18, 2000 between Fourth AvebhGeand us for office and
engineering laboratory space. The amendment exteederm of the lease, currently scheduled torexpn March 31, 2009, through March
2013. Base rent for the period April 2009 througarth 2013 will be reduced from the current leve$®80,000 annually to a range of
$675,000 to $765,000 annually.

In connection with the amendment of thesdeahe amount of the irrevocable letter of cresfjuired to be maintained by us for the benefit
of the lessor will be reduced from $1,430,000 t6Ch800. The letter of credit must be secured bgraficate of deposit in an amount equal to
102% of the letter of credit as security.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT S

The statements contained in this annuartem Form 10-K, including under the section dtl&anagement's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations" atiger sections of this annual report, include fadMaoking statements within the meaning
of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, asaded, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchamg®fA1934, as amended, including,
without limitation, statements regarding our or management's expectations, hopes, beliefs, intentr strategies regarding the future. The
words "believe,” "may,"” "will," "estimate," "contire,” "anticipate,” "intend," "expect,” "plan” anithdar expressions may identify forward-
looking statements, but the absence of these wiwes not mean that a statement is not forward4gpkihe forward-looking statements
contained in this annual report are based on auertiexpectations and beliefs concerning futureetigpments and their potential effects or
There can be no assurance that future developrafatsing us will be those that we have anticipafidtese forward-looking statements
involve a number of risks, uncertainties (some biclv are beyond our control) or other assumptibas may cause actual results or
performance to be materially different from thogpressed or implied by these forward-looking staets. These risks and uncertainties
include, but are not limited to, those factors diégd in the section titled "Risk Factors." Shoatte or more of these risks or uncertainties
materialize, or should any of our assumptions pingerrect, actual results may vary in materiapeeds from those projected in these forward-
looking statements. We undertake no obligationpatie or revise any forward-looking statements,thdreas a result of new information,
future events or otherwise, except as may be reduinder applicable securities laws.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We do not use derivative financial instrunisein our investment portfolio and have no foreggiehange contracts. Our financial
instruments consist of cash, cash equivalentsi$éon investments, accounts receivable, accouaytalge and accrued expenses. We consider
investments that, when purchased, have a remainatgrity of 90 days or less to be cash equivaldits.primary objectives of our investment
strategy are to preserve principal, maintain prdigeidity to meet operating needs, and maximizgdds. To minimize our exposure to an
adverse shift in interest rates, we invest mainlgdash equivalents and short-term investmentsawittaturity of 12 months or less and maintain
an average maturity of twelve months or less. Waatdelieve that a notional or hypothetical 10%rdde in interest rate percentages would
have a material impact on the fair value of ouestment portfolio or our interest income.
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Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary &a

The information required by this item magyfbund on pages F-1 through F-30 of this Form 10ik the exception of the unaudited
quarterly financial information which is presentszlow:

Year Ended December 31, 200

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Total

Revenue: $ 11,757,78 11,475,50 11,290,000 $ 10,09891 $ 44,622,21
Gross margit $ 8,663,16! 8,407,87. 8,241,991 $ 7,247,38  $ 32,560,41
Net loss attributable to commi
shareholder $ (1,377,28) (2,290,99) (3,570,92) $ (2,139,27) $ (8,378,47)
Net loss per common sha

Basic $ (0.13) (0.10 (0.2¢) $ 0.17) $ (0.66€)

Diluted $ (0.13) (0.10 0.2¢) $ 0.19) % (0.66€)
Weighted average shares used
compute net loss per common
share:

Basic 12,605,43 12,611,88 12,624,46 12,693,20 12,628,31

Diluted 12,605,43 12,611,88 12,624,46 12,693,20 12,628,31

Year Ended December 31, 200
First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Total

Revenue: $ 11,823,27 $ 13,970,05 $ 15,261,25 $ 14,195,14 $ 55,249,71
Gross margit $ 8,943,36. $ 10,592,58 $ 11,525,29 $ 10,630,41 $ 41,691,66
Net income (loss) attributable
common shareholde $ (102,66 $ 1,233,700 $ 2,104,631 $ 1,032,13¢ $ 4,267,80!
Net income (loss) per commi
share:

Basic $ 0.0 $ 0.1C $ 017 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.3¢

Diluted $ (0.0) % 0.0¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.3¢
Weighted average shares usec
compute net income (loss) per
common share

Basic 12,414,47 12,485,20 12,539,70 12,583,82 12,501,74

Diluted 12,414,47 13,137,86 13,095,43 12,926,44 13,097,89

ltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accotants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
There have been no changes in or disagmsméth accountants on accounting and financistldsure matters in the last fiscal year.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

Our management carried out an evaluatidth, thre participation of our Chief Executive Officend our Chief Financial Officer, of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and praoesi(as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15{@¢nthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended (the "Exchange Act")) as of Decembe2@17. Our disclosure controls and procedures esgded to provide reasonable
assurance that information required to be discldseds in the reports that we file or submit unider Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periodsi§ipe in the SEC's rules and forms, and that sofdrmation is accumulated and
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communicated to our management, including our Clhiefcutive Officer and our Chief Financial Officé,allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosures.

Based upon the evaluation described almweChief Executive Officer and Chief Financial i0&r have concluded that they believe that
our disclosure controls and procedures are effectis of the end of the period covered by thisntepoproviding reasonable assurance that
information required to be disclosed by us in répthat we file or submit under the Exchange Acesorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in tHeCS rules and forms and is accumulated and conuatad to the issuer's management,
including its principal executive and financialioffrs, as appropriate to allow timely decisionsarding required disclosures. We continue to
review and document our disclosure controls andestores, including our internal controls over ficiahreporting, and may from time to time
make changes aimed at enhancing their effectiveareb$o ensure that our systems evolve with ouinkss.

(b) Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting.

Our management is responsible for estahlishnd maintaining adequate internal control diremcial reporting, as such term is defined
in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Because of its irhelimitations, internal control over financiaporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degfreompliance with the policies or procedures meteriorate. Under the supervision and
with the participation of our management, includonwg Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Finah&Mficer, we conducted an evaluation of
the effectiveness of our internal control over fioial reporting as of December 31, 2007 based ewrtiteria ininternal Control—Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifriee Treadway Commission ("COSO"). Based onemaluation under the
framework ininternal Control—Integrated Frameworksued by the COSO, our management concluded tinamternal control over financial
reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007.

Management has excluded EyeTel from oursssaent of internal control over financial repaytas of December 31, 2007 because it was
acquired by us in a purchase business combinatiangithe year ended December 31, 2007. The tetata and total revenues related to the
acquisition of EyeTel represent 4% and 0%, respelgti of the related financial statement amountsfasd for the year ended December 31,
2007.

The effectiveness of our internal contre¢ofinancial reporting as of December 31, 2003, leen audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registercounting firm, as stated in their report whécimcluded herein.

(c) Changes in internal control over financial reporting.

There have been no changes to the Compiatgraal control over financial reporting (as aefil in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange
Act) during the quarter ended December 31, 2007Hhs materially affected, or is reasonably likelynaterially affect, the Company's inter
control over financial reporting.

Iltem 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corprmate Governance

The response to this item is containeduinRroxy Statement relating to our 2008 Annual Megof Stockholders (the "Proxy Statement")
and is incorporated herein by reference.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The response to this item is incorporateetim by reference from the discussion responsigeeto in the Proxy Statement.
Iltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficibOwners and Management and Related Stockholder M&trs

The response to this item is incorporateetim by reference from the discussion responsigeeto in the Proxy Statement.
Iltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trarections, and Director Independence

The response to this item is incorporateetim by reference from the discussion responsigeeto in the Proxy Statement.
Iltem 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The response to this item is incorporateetim by reference from the discussion responsieeeto in the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedes
(@) 1. Financial Statement
The financial statements are listed ingbeompanying index to financial statements on pade
2. Financial Statement Schedule
The Schedule on page S-1 is filed as fatis report.

3. Exhibit Index:

Exhibit Number Description

2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement by and among NeuroMétix, EyeTel Imaging, Inc. and EyeTel Reading CeniteC, dated
as of December 26, 2007 {
3.1 Second Amended and Restatec-laws of NeuroMetrix, Inc. (1C
3.2 Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporsof NeuroMetrix, Inc. (10
3.3 Certificate of Designations for Series A Junior Guative Preferred Stock, par value $0.001 per sti@r
34 Amendment No. 1 to Second Amended and RestatedvByd& NeuroMetrix, Inc. (8
4.1 Specimen certificate for shares of common stocl
4.2 Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated as of Mar@0d7, between NeuroMetrix, Inc. and American Stonsfer & Trust
Company, as Rights Agent (
10.1 Lease Agreement dated October 18, 2000 betweerh~aAuenue LLC and NeuroMetrix, Inc. (
10.2 Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Option/Restridieck®lan (1)
10.3 Amended and Restated 1998 Equity Incentive Pla
10.4 First Amendment to Amended and Restated 1998 Etjuigntive Plan (1
10.5 Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Option and Inee/iian (2
10.6 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
10.7 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Neuroldeinc. and each of its directors (
10.8 Employment Agreement, dated June 21, 2004, by ehdden NeuroMetrix, Inc. and Shai N. Gozani, MEh,D. (1)
10.9 Letter Agreement, dated June 19, 2002, by and leetWweuroMetrix, Inc. and Gary L. Gregory
10.1C  NeuroMetrix, Inc. Stock Option Agreements (1998mPldated as of July 1, 2002 and April 8, 2004 by betweer
NeuroMetrix, Inc. and Gary L. Gregory (
10.11  NeuroMetrix, Inc. Confidentiality and N-Compete Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2002, bpetween Gary L. Grego
and NeuroMetrix, Inc. (1
10.12  NeuroMetrix, Inc. Confidentiality & Nc-Compete Agreement dated as of June 21, 2004, dpeiveen Shai N. Gozani,
M.D., Ph.D. and NeuroMetrix, Inc. (:
10.1:  NeuroMetrix, Inc. No-Statutory Stock Option Agreement (1998 Plan) datedf June 21, 2004, by and between Shai N.
Gozani M.D., Ph.D., and NeuroMetrix, Inc. |
10.1¢  Second Amendment to Amended and Restated 1998yHquéntive Plan (1
10.15  NeuroMetrix, Inc. No-Statutory Stock Option Agreement (1998 Plan) datedf June 21, 2004 by and between Gary
Gregory and NeuroMetrix, Inc. (.
10.1¢  Indemnification Agreement dated June 21, 2004,ru)/lzetween Shai N. Gozani, M.D., Ph.D., and Neuroiddnc. (1)
10.17  NeuroMetrix, Inc. Confidentiality & Nc-Compete Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2000, bybatdeen Michael Williams
and NeuroMetrix, Inc. (1
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10.1¢  NeuroMetrix, Inc. Confidentiality & Nc-Compete Agreement, dated as of October 13, 1988nd between Guy Daniello
and NeuroMetrix Inc. (1

10.1¢  Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement, underNeeiroMetrix, Inc. 2004 Stock Option And Incent®in (3)

10.2C  Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement Fom@many Employees, under the NeuroMetrix, Inc. 20@tKOption
And Incentive Plan (3

10.21  Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement FomNEmployee Directors, under the NeuroMetrix, In@02 Stock
Option And Incentive Plan (¢

10.22  Letter Agreement, dated February 7, 2005, by amdd®n NeuroMetrix, Inc. and W. Bradford Smith

10.2¢  Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement, underNeairoMetrix, Inc. 2004 Stock Option and IncentiRlan, by and
between NeuroMetrix, Inc. and W. Bradford Smith

10.2¢  NeuroMetrix, Inc. Confidentiality & Nc-Compete Agreement, dated as of February 7, 200&ntdybetween W. Bradfol
Smith and NeuroMetrix, Inc. (¢



10.2t  Director Compensation Arrangements
10.2¢  Manufacturing and Supply Agreement, dated as ofustg, 2006, by and between Parlex Polymer Flexilnleuits, Inc. ani
NeuroMetrix, Inc. (6
*23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers |
*31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursutdo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
*31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer purquao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
*32 Certification of Principal Executive Officer andiftipal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 9@8he Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002
* Filed herewith.

Portions of this exhibit have been omifpedisuant to a request for confidential treatment.

@)
@)

®)

(4)

©)

(6)

™)

®)

Incorporated herein by reference to NeuroMetrix, nRegistration Statement on Form S-1 (Registatio. 333-115440).

Incorporated herein by reference to NeuroMetrix,'nCurrent Report on Forn-K filed on May 26, 2006 (File No. 0-50856)

Incorporated herein by reference to NeuroMetrix,'mQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on Novenitie 2004 (File
No. 000-50856).

Incorporated herein by reference to NeuroMetrix,'nCurrent Report on Form 8-K filed on Februaty 2005 (File No. 000-
50856).

Incorporated herein by reference to NeuroMetrix,';Annual Report on Form -K filed on March 16, 2006 (File No. O-
50856).

Incorporated herein by reference to NeuroMetrix,'mCurrent Report on Form 8-K filed on Augus2@06 (File No. 000-
50856).

Incorporated herein by reference to NeuroMetrix,'1Current Report on Forn-K filed on March 8, 2007 (File No. 0-
50856).

Incorporated herein by reference to NeuroMetrix,'Current Report on Forn-K filed on September 17, 2007 (File No.
50856).
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9) Incorporated herein by reference to NeuroMetrix, nCurrent Report on Forn-K filed on December 28, 2007 (File No. (-
50586).

(20) Incorporated herein by reference to NeuroMetrix, 1Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Regisimatio. 333-118059).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectionrlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, réegistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

NEUROMETRIX, INC.

By: /sl SHAI N. GOZANI, M.D. PH.D.

Shai N. Gozani, M.D. Ph.D.
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Offi

Date: March 14, 200

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidrelow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant on March 14, 2008 in the capesitndicated below.

Name Title Date
/s/ SHAI N. GOZANI, M.D., PH. D. Chairman, President ai
Chief Executive Officer
Shai N. Gozani, M.D., Ph. [ (Principal Executive Officer)
/s 'W. BRADFORD SMITH Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal
W. Bradford Smitt Accounting Officer)
/s/ DAVID E. GOODMAN, M.D.
Director
David E. Goodman, M.C
/s/  ALLEN J. HINKLE, M.D.
Director
Allen J. Hinkle, M.D.
/s/ CHARLES R. LAMANTIA
Director
Charles R. LaManti
/sl W. MARK LORTZ
Director

W. Mark Lortz
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Nil@toix, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying balanasesh and the related statements of operationspstats of changes in stockholders' equity,
statements of cash flows present fairly, in allenial respects, the financial position of NeuroMetinc. at December 31, 2007 and
December 31, 2006, and the results of its operatoml its cash flows for each of the three yeatsameriod ended December 31, 2007 in
conformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America. In additiargur opinion, the financial statement
schedule listed in the index appearing under It&(@a){2) presents fairly, in all material respetits, information set forth therein when read in
conjunction with the related financial statemeAiso in our opinion, the Company maintained, inmafiterial respects, effective internal cor
over financial reporting as of December 31, 20@&€dl on criteria establishedlirternal Control—Integrated Frameworksued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (COSO). The Company's managemeesnsible for these financial
statements and financial statement schedule, fortaiaing effective internal control over financiaporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting, included in Management's Report on Inte@entrol over Financial Reporting
appearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility is xpress opinions on these financial statementsherinancial statement schedule and on the
Company's internal control over financial reportbased on our integrated audits. We conducted uditsain accordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (BdiStates). Those standards require that we plpenfiorm the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the finanatahsénts are free of material misstatement andhgheffective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all materigpects. Our audits of the financial statemertsided examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the ishstatements, assessing the accounting prirscied and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financéestent presentation. Our audit of internal cordx@r financial reporting included obtaini
an understanding of internal control over finanocédorting, assessing the risk that a material wes exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internalrobbtased on the assessed risk. Our audits aldadient performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. Weyd¢hat our audits provide a reasonable basisdo opinions.

As discussed in Note 2 to the financialesteents, the Company changed the manner in whattiaunts for share-based compensation in
2006.

A company's internal control over finanaiborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures thakefifain to the maintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettilansactions and dispositions of the assetseoédmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awih generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readslaassurance regarding prevention or timely dietecf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could hawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, inedroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.
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As described in Management's Report orrmaleControl over Financial Reporting, managemexst éxcluded EyeTel Imaging, Inc. from
its assessment of internal control over finan@galorting as of December 31, 2007 because it wasirachby the Company in a purchase
business combination during the year ended DeceBhet007. We have also excluded EyeTel Imaging,fhom our audit of internal control
over financial reporting. Total assets and totaeraies related to the acquisition of EyeTel Imaging. represent 4.0% and 0.0%, respectiv
of the related financial statement amounts as dffanthe year ended December 31, 2007.

/s! PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
March 14, 2008
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Assets
Current asset:

Cash and cash equivalel

NeuroMetrix, Inc.

Balance Sheets

Shor-term helto-maturity investment

Restricted cas

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubdfttounts of $906,000 and $900,(

at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respecti

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Current portion of deferred cos

Total current asse

Restricted cas
Fixed assets, ni

Long-term availabl-for-sale investmer

Goodwill
Other intangible asse
Deferred cost

Total asset

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl

Accrued compensatic

Accrued expense

Current portion of deferred reven
Current portion of capital lease obligati

Total current liabilities

Deferred revenu

Capital lease obligati——net of current portiol

Other lon¢-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note

Stockholders' equit

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 5,000,000 stargmrized, none outstandi
Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 50,000,000 awtbdril3,690,134 and 12,601,22

shares issued and outstanding at December 31,82@DZ006, respective

Additional paic-in capital
Deferred compensatic

Accumulated defici

Accumulated other comprehensive i

Total stockholders' equi

Total liabilities and stockholders' equ

December 31,

2007 2006
$ 7,097,23" $ 7,909,77
22,621,74 32,410,68
45,00( —
5,731,69 7,698,55!
5,354,33 3,633,38!
710,15¢ 761,40(
464,06: 370,011
42,024,23 52,783,81
1,458,59i 1,458,59
2,973,711 1,115,43i
1,058,25! —
5,833,46- —
2,800,00! =
226,30¢ 348,43(
$ 56,374,57. $ 55,706,27

$ 2,627,88 $ 2,766,65!
2,127,541 2,460,32

2,308,56: 4,275,98

1,643,021 1,386,86

12,90( —

8,719,92. 10,889,82

891,95 1,335,13;

18,27t —

14,54¢ 72,72

9,644,70: 12,297,69

1,36¢ 1,26(

110,235,83 97,205,14
— (110,70}
(62,065,58) (53,687,11)
(1,441,74) —

46,729,87 43,408,58

$ 56,374,557 $ 55,706,27

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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NeuroMetrix, Inc.

Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Revenues
Diagnostic devict $ 4,254,01. $ 7,538,321 $ 4,221,31
Biosensol 39,413,26 47,711,39 30,076,82
Other 954,93! — —
Total revenue 44,622,21 55,249,71 34,298,13
Cost of revenue 12,061,79 13,558,05 8,858,009
Gross margir 32,560,41 41,691,66 25,440,03
Operating expense
Research and developmt 4,891,93 5,010,51. 3,820,62.
Sales and marketir 22,963,84 22,013,68 14,150,15
General and administrati\ 14,834,07 11,805,06 8,021,78.
Total operating expens: 42,689,85 38,829,25 25,992,56.
Income (loss) from operatiol (20,129,43) 2,862,40! (552,52
Interest incom: 1,750,96. 1,598,40: 838,82!
Interest expens — — (2,042
Income (loss) before provision for income ta (8,378,47) 4,460,801 284,25t
Provision for income taxe — 193,00( 35,00(
Net income (loss $ (8,378,47) $ 4,267,801 $ 249,25¢

I I I
Net income (loss) per common she
Basic $ (0.66) $ 032 % 0.0z
Diluted $ (0.66) $ 03: $ 0.0z
Weighted average shares used to compute net infloss per
common share

Basic 12,628,31 12,501,74 12,152,13
Diluted 12,628,31 13,097,89 12,986,36
Comprehensive income (los:
Net income (loss $ (8,378,47) $ 4,267,801 $ 249,25¢
Unrealized loss on availal-for-sale investmer (1,441,74) — —
Comprehensive income (los $ (9,820,21) $ 4,267,801 $ 249,25¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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Balance at December 31, 2C
Issuance of stock upon exercise of
stock options and warrar
Compensation expense associatec
with stock options

Adjustment to deferred compensati
associated with terminated employ:
Amortization of deferred
compensatiol

Issuance of common stock under
employee stock purchase pl
Income tax effect of the exercise of
stock options

Net income

Balance at December 31, 2C
Issuance of stock upon exercise of
stock options

Stocl-based compensation expel
Adjustment to deferred compensati
associated with terminated employ:
Amortization of deferred
compensatiol

Issuance of common stock under
employee stock purchase pl
Income tax effect of the exercise of
stock options

Net income

Balance at December 31, 2C
Issuance of stock upon exercise of
stock options

Stocl-based compensation expel
Adjustment to deferred compensati
associated with terminated employ:
Amortization of deferred
compensatiol

Issuance of common stock under
employee stock purchase pl
Issuance of common stock to
complete the acquisition of EyeT
Unrealized loss on long-term
investmen

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2C

NeuroMetrix, Inc.

Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity

Common Stock

Number Additional Paid-In Deferred Accumulated Accumulated Other

of Shares Amount Capital Compensation Deficit Comprehensive Loss Total
12,034,65 $ 1,20: $ 92,278,337 $ (745,08 $ (58,204,17) $ = 33,330,31
317,36: 32 512,82! — — — 512,85
— — 120,27: — — — 120,27:
- - (33,409 33,40t — _ _
— — — 286,05¢ — — 286,05¢
23,26t 3 299,29° — — — 299,30(
— — 35,000 — — — 35,00(
— — — — 249,25¢ — 249,25¢
12,375,27 1,23¢ 93,212,36 (425,62 (57,954,92) — 34,833,06
202,80t 20 1,180,63 — — — 1,180,65
— — 2,403,22 — — — 2,403,22.
- - (65,509 65,50: — _ _
— — — 249,41 — — 249,41!
23,14( 2 394,62: — — — 394,62:
— — 79,80( — — — 79,80(
— — — — 4,267,801 — 4,267,801
12,601,22 1,26( 97,205,14 (110,70Y) (53,687,11) — 43,408,58
5,951 1 24,09¢ — — — 24,10(
— — 2,976,05! — — — 2,976,05!
- - (15,679 15,67¢ — _ _
— — — 95,03: — — 95,03:
32,65¢ 3 261,76¢ — — — 261,76t
1,050,29 10t 9,784,44. — — — 9,784,54
— — — — — (1,441,74) (1,441,74)
— — — — (8,378,47) — (8,378,47)
13,690,13 $ 1,36¢ $ 110,235,83 $ — $ (62,065,58) $ (1,441,749 $ 46,729,87

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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NeuroMetrix, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows for operating activities:
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to meshcprovided b
(used in) operating activitie

Depreciation and amortizatic

Compensation expense associated with stock of

Provision for doubtful accoun

Amortization of premium on investmer

Income tax effect of the exercise of stock opti
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffett of
acquisition:

Accounts receivabl

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Accounts payabl

Accrued expenses and compensa

Other lon¢-term liabilities

Deferred revenue and deferred cc

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi
Cash flows for investing activities:

Purchases of fixed asst

Purchases of investmer

Maturities of investment

Purchase of Cyberkinetics common st
Acquisition of EyeTe

Release of restricted ca

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under eraplstock
purchase pla
Payments on lor-term debi

Net cash provided by financing activiti

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents, end of

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Equipment acquired under capital le

Fair value of EyeTel assets acqui

Fair value of common stock issued to Eye
EyeTel liabilities assume

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

$ (8,378,47) $ 4,267,801 249,25
422,93 380,65! 278,93
3,071,09 2,652,63 406,33(
358,14: 946,85 281,68
(41,81)) 184,16 439,73

— 79,80 35,00(
1,643,71; (4,102,06) (1,698,45)
(1,720,94) (949,98() (1,399,14)
267,24: (147,23) 58,80
(7,340) 1,068,06 799,29:
(3,386,53) 2,147,76; 1,925,92:
(58,18:) (58,187 (58,187)
(158,94 827,61 588,92
(7,989,11) 7,297,90: 1,908,091
(257,52 (620,54 (475,129
(27,959,95) (42,141,62) (15,290,12)
37,790,71 33,628,72 18,840,19
(2,500,00) — —
(175,00() _ —

— — 438,60:
6,898,23! (9,133,44) 3,513,54:
24,10( 1,180,65 512,85’
261,76t 394,62 299,30
(7,525) — —
278,34: 1,575,281 812,15’
(812,53 (260,25 6,233,79
7,909,77: 8,170,03 1,936,24:

$ 7,097,23  $ 7,909,77; 8,170,03

$ 38,70(
10,914,46

9,784,54

804,91¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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NeuroMetrix, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
1. Business and Summary of Significant Accountingdicies
Business

NeuroMetrix, Inc. (the "Company"), a Delaea@orporation, was founded in June 1996. The Compasigns, develops and markets
proprietary medical devices used to help physiciéiagnose and treat diseases of the nervous systelmas neuropathies, which are disorders
of the peripheral nerves and parts of the spiné r&urovascular disorders such as diabetic retthgpdhe Company also develops medical
devices designed to be used to provide regionathesia and pain control. Our focus to date has bagroducts that help physicians with the
diagnosis of neuropathies and neurovascular disartiée have two products lines cleared by the driiates Food and Drug Administration
("FDA") that are currently being marketed to phyesis, including the NC-stat System and the Digi®cop

In November 2007, the Company made an tmvest of $2.5 million for the purchase of approxiata 5.4 million shares of common
stock of Cyberkinetics Neurotechnology Systems, (t€yberkinetics"), representing approximately 18#€yberkinetics' issued and
outstanding shares at the time of the investmenmtpaice of $0.46 per share. The Company alsawedea warrant to purchase up to
approximately 2.7 million shares of Cyberkinetiosrenon stock. The warrant is exercisable at $0.4&lpare and has a term of five years, but
will be required to be exercised if Cyberkinetieseives FDA approval of a Humanitarian Device Exgomp("HDE") filing for the Andara™
OFS™ (Oscillating Frequency Stimulation) ("Andar&®) device for acute spinal cord injuries.

On December 26, 2007, the Company acquiubdtantially all of the assets of EyeTel Imaging,, ("EyeTel") for an aggregate purchase
price of 1,050,297 shares of the Company's comramk s$175,000 in cash and the assumption of cesg@écified liabilities totaling $804,9:
EyeTel was engaged in the design, developmentcamnercialization of proprietary medical devicesluding the DigiScope, a device that
helps physicians detect eye disorders such astiiabénopathy, the leading cause of blindnegsatients with diabetes. The DigiScope,
developed in collaboration with the Wilmer Eye Inde at Johns Hopkins University, is an FDA clebdéagnostic device that primary care
physicians and endocrinologists can use for thiy éatection of diabetic retinopathy. The Compaay Ipreviously entered into an exclusive
licensing agreement with EyeTel pursuant to whith@ompany had sales and marketing rights to thgSBope in the primary diabetes care
physician market. The acquisition is intended tdher diversify the Company's proprietary medicafide product offering and expand sales
into additional markets such as the optometry ntaiitee Company's balance sheet at December 31, BR@fJdes the acquired assets and
assumed liabilities of EyeTel (Note 3). There wagmaterial impact to the Company's statement ofagjmns for the year ended December 31,
2007 subsequent to the acquisition.

Significant Accounting Policies
Significant accounting policies appliedthg Company in the preparation of its financiatesteents are as follows:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquidestments with an original maturity of ninety daydess to be cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents are recorded at cost which approxinfaiesalue. The
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NeuroMetrix, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1. Business and Summary of Significant Accountingd?icies (Continued)

Company invests cash primarily in a money markebant and other investments which management lesliave subject to minimal credit €
market risk.

Held-to-Maturity | nvestments

The Company's investment portfolio is dféss as held-to-maturity, and such investmentssaaged at amortized cost. Interest earned on
investments held-to-maturity is included in intéiesome. The amortized cost of investments helth&turity is adjusted for amortization of
premiums and accretion of discounts to maturitichSamortization and accretion are included in ggemcome.

Long-Term Available-for-Sale | nvestment

In accordance with the provisions of Staatrof Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") M5, "Accounting for Certain Investmer
in Debt and Equity Securities ("SFAS No. 115"), the Company's investment irb€kinetics is classified as available-&ale and is carried
fair value, with any unrealized gains and losses ofitaxes, reported in accumulated other commstie income (loss), a separate component
of stockholders' equity.

Restricted Cash

At December 31, 2007, the Company heldtsteom restricted cash in the amount of $45,000 imeation with certain liabilities assum
with the acquisition of EyeTel on December 26, 200fe Company maintained long-term restricted @gashe amount of $1,458,598 at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, assdordth a facility lease. See Note 9 Commitments @odtingencies and Note 11
Subsequent Events.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially espdhe Company to concentrations of credit riskstprimarily of cash and cash equivalents in
bank deposit accounts, short-term investments,-terng investments and trade receivables. The Coyjpaests its funds in highly rated
institutions and limits its investment in any indival debtor. The Company has not experiencedfgignt losses related to cash and cash
equivalents or short-term investments and doebel@ve it is exposed to any significant crediksiselating to its cash and cash equivalents
and short-term investments.

The Company distributes its products thtoitg own regional sales managers, who had manadegendent sales agencies through the
end of 2007. At December 31, 2007 and 2006 anthioyears ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 26GHngle customer accounted for
more than 10% of accounts receivable or revenue.

The Company relies on two thipdsty manufacturers to manufacture all of its curpgroducts. The disruption or termination of thip@y
of these products or a significant increase incthet of these products from these sources could aaadverse effect on the Company's
business, financial position and results of opereti
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1. Business and Summary of Significant Accountingd?icies (Continued)
I nventories

Inventories, consisting primarily of pureled components, are stated at the lower of castdket. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out method. The Company writes down inventtaryts net realizable value for excess or obsadletentory.

Fair Value of Financial | nstruments

The carrying amounts of the Company's faferinstruments, which include cash and cash edeits, short-term investments, long-term
investments, accounts receivable, accounts pagall@ccrued expenses, approximate their fair \atlieecember 31, 2007 and 2006.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when th@sflg criteria have been met: persuasive eviderfi@n arrangement exists, delivery has
occurred and risk of loss has passed, the sghiec's to the buyer is fixed or determinable andemtion is reasonably assured. The Company
recorded revenue on a net basis for product saete to independent sales agencies or distribuiasged upon the amount billed to the
distributors, when the distributor accepts the oasfbility for invoicing the customer and the resgibility for the risk of collections and
product returns from the customer. During 2007 Gbenpany terminated its relationships with all ipdiedent sales agencies and focused
selling efforts exclusively through the direct salerce.

When multiple elements are contained imgls arrangement, the Company allocates reventreekea the elements based on their rele
fair value, provided that each element meets theriz for treatment as a separate unit of accagnthn element is considered a separate unit
of accounting if it has value to the customer aiaand-alone basis, there is objective, reliabldesvie of the fair value of the undelivered
elements and delivery or performance of the undedig elements is considered probable and substaimizhe control of the Company. Fair
value is determined based upon the price chargeshwie element is sold separately.

Diagnostic device revenues consist of salé¢C-stat monitors and NC-stat docking statidRsvenues associated with the sale of the NC-
stat monitors are recognized upon shipment providatithe fee is fixed or determinable, evidenca pérsuasive arrangement exists,
collection of receivables is reasonably assureatjyct returns are reasonably estimable and noragng obligations exist. The revenues from
the sale of a NC-stat docking station and accetsetonCall Information System are considered arieaf accounting and deferred and
recognized on a straight line basis over the estichperiod of time the Company provides the seragsociated with the onCall Information
System, which is the shorter of the estimated costaelationship period or the estimated usefel dif the docking station, currently three
years. The resulting deferred revenue and defewsts are presented as separate line items or¢benpanying balance she

Biosensor revenues consist of sales ofodisiple NC-stat biosensors and are recognized uppment provided that the fee is fixed or
determinable, persuasive evidence of an arrangeex#sis, collection of receivables is reasonabfuesd and product returns are reasonably
estimable.

The Company recognizes revenues assoaiatidnstallation and training services related\tG-stat Systems sales upon completion of
the service. The fair value of the installation araihing is based on hourly service billing rates.
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1. Business and Summary of Significant Accountingd?icies (Continued)

Certain product sales are made with a 30rdgt of return. Since the Company can reasoneabiimate future returns, the Company
recognizes revenues associated with product de¢sntain a right of return upon shipment anthatsame time reduces revenue by the
amount of estimated returns under the provisiorS8FAS No. 48, 'Revenue Recognition When Right of Return EXists

Other revenues consist entirely of revemaksging to the DigiScope sold under a licenseagrent with EyeTel. Revenue was recognized
on a gross basis and comprised of installationteziding fees, per patient fees for eye scans padd using the DigiScope and monthly rental
fees for the use of the DigiScope. Installation trathing fees are deferred and recognized onaggsir line basis over the non-cancelable term
of the customer contract, currently one year. Reesrirom fees charged for patient eye scans aogmered as the scans are performed. Fees
for the rental of the DigiScope are recognized omoathly basis. Under the terms of the exclusilessand marketing license to the DigiScope
from EyeTel, amounts due to EyeTel were recordezbasof revenues.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Trade accounts receivable are recorddukeaintvoiced amount and do not bear interest. Tlogvahce for doubtful accounts is the
Company's best estimate of the amount of probaklitdosses in its existing accounts receivablee Tompany reviews its allowance for
doubtful accounts and determines the allowancedbassan analysis of customer past payment hispsoduct usage activity, and recent
communications between the Company and the custdtast due balances over 90 days are reviewedduo@iNy for collectibility. Account
balances are charged off against the allowance We@ompany feels it is probable the receivablenei be recovered. The Company does
not have any off-balance sheet credit exposureéeetk® its customers.

Income Taxes

The Company records income taxes usingslset and liability method. Deferred income taxetssand liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to differebetween the financial statement carrying amouhéxisting assets and liabilities and their
respective income tax bases, and operating lostaaraedit carryforwards. The Company's finanstatements contain certain deferred tax
assets, which have arisen primarily as a resuwipefating losses, as well as other temporary diffees between financial and tax accounting.
SFAS No. 109 ‘Accounting for Income Taxgsrequires the Company to establish a valuatitowalnce if the likelihood of realization of the
deferred tax assets is reduced based on an evaludtobjective verifiable evidence. Significantmagement judgment is required in
determining the Company's provision for income saxke Company's deferred tax assets and liabiktie any valuation allowance recorded
against those net deferred tax assets. The Congehyates the weight of all available evidencedtednine whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the net deferred incaeneassets will not be realized.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting 8tads Board ("FASB") issued FASB Interpretation M8, "Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxe—an interpretation of SFAS No. 109'FIN 48"). FIN 48 requires management to perfariwo-step evaluation of all tax
positions, ensuring that these tax return positioast the "more-likely than not" recognition threlshand can be measured with sufficient
precision to determine the benefit recognized enfthancial statements. These evaluations provideagement with a comprehensive model
for how a company should recognize, measure,
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1. Business and Summary of Significant Accountingd?icies (Continued)

present, and disclose in its financial statemeat&imn tax positions that the Company has takezxpects to take on income tax returns.
Management estimated that as of December 31, 2080& was an uncertain tax position totaling apipnaxely $100,000 relating to the
Company's tax credit carryforwards. As a result, lompany reduced its deferred tax assets andssioeiated valuation allowance by
approximately $100,000 as of January 1, 2007, doption date of FIN 48. There have been no othévides impacting FIN 48 reserves
during the year ended December 31, 2007.

Research and Devel opment

Costs incurred in the research and devetopmf the Company's products are expensed ag@ttuncluded in research and development
costs are wages, benefits, product design congudtid other operating costs such as facilitiesplgegpand overhead directly related to the
Company's research and development efforts.

Product Warranty Costs

The Company accrues estimated product warieosts at the time of sale which are includeddst of revenues in the statements of
operations. The amount of the accrued warrantylitiais based on historical information such astpexperience, product failure rates, number
of units repaired and estimated cost of materidllahor.

The following is a rollforward of the Compgs accrued warranty liability for the years en@stember 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

Years Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Balance at beginning of peri $ 231,728 % 124,85 $ 116,77¢
Accrual for warrantie: 749,07¢ 688,23« 314,11°
Settlements mac (728,85Y) (581,36.) (306,049
Balance at end of peric $ 251,94¢ % 231,728 % 124,85

| | |

Fixed Assets and Long-Lived Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost and clafed using the straiglitte method over the estimated useful life of easbet. Expenditures 1
repairs and maintenance are charged to expensewasad. On disposal, the related assets and adatedwepreciation are eliminated from
accounts and any resulting gain or loss is includdede Company's statement of operations. Leadghgdrovements are amortized over the
shorter of the estimated useful life of the impnoeait or the remaining term of the lease.

The Company periodically evaluates the vecability of its fixed assets and other long-livesbets, including intangibles, when
circumstances indicate that an event of impairmeayg have occurred in accordance with the proviswdr&FAS No. 144, Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Lol-Lived Assets. This periodic review may result in an adjustmehéstimated depreciable lives or an asset
impairment. When indicators of impairment are pnésthe carrying values of the asset are evaluateglation to the assets operating
performance and future undiscounted cash flowh@iinderlying assets. If the future undiscountesth dlows are less than their book value, an
impairment
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1. Business and Summary of Significant Accountingd?icies (Continued)

exists. The impairment is measured as the differdmetween the book value and the fair value olitiderlying asset. Fair values are based on
estimates of the market prices and assumptionsecoimg the amount and timing of estimated futurghdéows and assumed discount rates,
reflecting varying degrees of perceived risk. N@@inments were identified in the years ended Deegr8h, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Goodwill and Other I ntangible Assets

As result of the acquisition of substamyiall of the assets of EyeTel on December 26, 280% Company identified approximately
$5.8 million of goodwill and $2.8 million of othémtangible assets on its balance sheet at Dece®ih@007. The Company will amortize
intangible assets using the straight-line methaat diveir estimated economic lives, which is estedab be 5 years, or using the economic use
method if that method results in significantly gereamortization than the straight-line method.dbmiining the economic lives of acquired
intangible assets requires us to make signifiaafiginent and estimates, and can materially impac€thmpany's operating results.

In accordance with the provisions of SFAG M2, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assét$'SFAS No. 142"), the Company will assess
the realizability of goodwill annually, as well afenever events or changes in circumstances sutiigéshe carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The Company's ability to realize thlei® of the goodwill will depend on the future céisiwvs of the business. If the Company is
not able to realize the value of goodwill, the Camp may be required to incur material chargesirgldb the impairment of goodwiill.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFASIR8(R), "Share Based Paymeh{'SFAS No. 123(R)"), which requires that the enpe
resulting from all share-based payment transactiengcognized in the financial statements. SFASI28(R) revises SFAS No. 123"
Accounting for Sto-Based Compensatidn"SFAS No. 123") and supersedes Accounting Ppiesi Board Opinion No. 25,Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employee§' APB No. 25") and SFAS No. 148,Accounting for Stock Based Compensation—Transéti@hDisclosure—an
amendment of Financial Accounting Standards BoaatkeBient No. 123("SFAS No. 148".) As a result, beginning Janudr006, the
Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R) using the modgedpective method and has begun reflecting thekdtased compensation expense
determined under fair value based methods in Htersient of operations rather than as pro formdadisee in the notes to the financial
statements. Under this transition method, the corsgiéon cost recognized beginning January 1, 20€6des compensation cost for (i) all
share-based payments granted prior to, but notgsted as of January 1, 2006, based on the gréafalevalue estimated in accordance with
the provisions of SFAS No. 123, and (ii) all shbased payments granted or modified subsequenht@dal, 2006 based on the graate fai
value estimated in accordance with the provisidrBFAS No. 123(R). Compensation cost is generaitpgnized ratably over the requisite
service period. Prior period amounts have not bestated. The Company uses the Black-Scholes optioimg model for determining the fair
value of its stock options and amortizes its stbaked compensation expense using the straightalatieod.
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Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(Rg Company accounted for stock options grantedtg@yees in accordance with APB No. 25
and provided the disclosures required under SFASIM® only in the notes to our financial statemeAtcordingly, compensation expense
recorded for options issued to employees to thengthat the fair market value of the Company'smom stock exceeded the exercise price of
the option at the date granted and all other @aitier fixed accounting were met. All stock-basedhads granted to non-employees were
accounted for at their fair value and the resultompensation expense was generally recognizedtlegreriod of service.

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

The Company accounts for and disclose#geme (loss) per common share in accordance VAtkSSNo. 128, 'Earnings Per Sharé
Basic net income (loss) per common share is cordpaeadividing net income (loss) by the weightedrage number of common shares
outstanding. Diluted net income (loss) per commtuare is computed by dividing net income (loss) iy weighted average number of comi
shares and dilutive potential common share equitsilhen outstanding. Potential common shares sioofsshares issuable upon the exercise
of stock options and warrants (using the treastagksmethod.)

Years Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Basic:

Net income (loss $ (8,378,47) $ 4,267,800 $ 249,25¢
Weighted average shar 12,628,311 12,501,74 12,152,13
Basic income (loss) per common sh $ (0.66) $ 034 % 0.0z
Diluted:

Net income (loss $ (8,378,47) $ 4,267,800 $ 249,25¢
Weighted average shar 12,628,31 12,501,74 12,152,13
Effect of stock option — 596,14¢ 821,25«
Effect of warrants — — 12,97:
Weighted average shares, as adju 12,628,31 13,097,89 12,986,36
Diluted income (loss) per common sh $ (0.66) $ 03: $ 0.02

The following potentially dilutive commohares were excluded from the calculation of dilutetlincome (loss) per common share
because their effect was antidilutive for eachhefperiods presented:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Options 1,661,42 366,61t 45,40(
Advertising and Promational Costs

Advertising and promotional costs are exgenas incurred. Advertising and promotion expevee$718,650, $547,441 and $280,034 in
the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 28§ieatively.

F-14




NeuroMetrix, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1. Business and Summary of Significant Accountingd?icies (Continued)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Incorhestablishes standards for reporting and disptapgomprehensive income and its
components in a full set of general-purpose finanstatements. In November 2007, the Company ehtete a strategic alliance with
Cyberkinetics, a medical device company focusedearrological conditions. The Company made an imrest of $2.5 million in shares of
Cyberkinetics common stock and is accounting fax ithvestment as an available-for-sale securityeuride provisions of SFAS No. 115.
Accordingly, at December 31, 2007, the Companyrbesrded the decrease in fair value of this investrwithin other comprehensive loss.
For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 200&,dimpany had no components of other comprehensoagrie or loss other than net
income (loss).

Segments

The Company is in the business of desigrdegeloping and selling proprietary medical desicehe Company evaluates its business
activities that are regularly reviewed by the CligEcutive Officer for which discrete financial amfnation is available. As a result of this
evaluation, the Company determined that it hasopegating segment with operations in two geograghdrations which are in the
United States.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assus it affect the reported amounts of assetsiabifities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effitancial statements and the reported amounesvehues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those esties.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Company is subject to risks commonoimganies in the medical device industry, includimgg, not limited to, development by the
Company or its competitors of new technologicabiwetions, dependence on key personnel, custoneardhursement from third-party payers,
protection of proprietary technology, and complemdth regulations of the FDA and other governmkaggncies.

Reclassification
Certain prior year amounts have been rsifiad to conform with the current year presentatio
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFASIMA. (Revised 2007), "Business Combinations" ("SF&ES 141R"). SFAS No. 141R will
significantly change the accounting for businesslzioations. Under SFAS No. 141R, an acquiring entitl be required to recognize all the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a tcéioseat the acquisition-date fair value with lisdtexceptions. SFAS No. 141R will change the
accounting treatment for certain specific acqwsitielated items including: (1) expensing acquisitielated costs as incurred; (2) valuing
noncontrolling interests at fair value at the asdigin date; and (3) expensing restructuring castociated with an acquired business. SFAS
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No. 141R also includes a substantial number of disalosure requirements. SFAS No. 141R is to bdiegpprospectively to busine
combinations for which the acquisition date is oafber January 1, 2009. The Company expects SFAS AILR will have an impact on
accounting for future business combinations onaptatl but the effect is dependent upon if any aitijoms are made in the future.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS™®, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fioal Liabilities, including an
amendment of FASB Statement No. II5SFAS No. 159") SFAS No. 159 permits entitieschoose to measure many financial instruments
and certain other items at fair value that arecootently required to be measured at fair valuergdlized gains and losses on items for which
the fair value option has been elected are repamtedrnings. SFAS No. 159 does not affect anytiejsaccounting literature that requires
certain assets and liabilities to be carried atJalue. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal yebheginning after November 15, 2007. The
Company does not believe that the adoption of SRAS159 will have a material impact on its finargiasition, results of operations or cash
flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFASING, "Fair Value Measurements("SFAS No. 157"). SFAS No. 157 defines fair valne
numerous accounting pronouncements, establishasnefork for measuring fair value in generally gted accounting principles ("GAAP")
and expands disclosures related to the use ofdhie measures in financial statements. SFAS Nb.dbes not expand the use of fair value
measures in financial statements, but standardzegfinition and guidance in GAAP. SFAS No. 1%idphasizes that fair value is a market-
based measurement and not an entity-specific memsmt based on an exchange transaction in whichrtity sells an asset or transfers a
liability (exit price). SFAS No. 157 establishefd value hierarchy from observable market datthashighest level to fair value based on an
entity's own fair value assumptions as the lowegtll SFAS No. 157 was to be effective for ourfiicial statements issued in 2008. In
February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Statement sitiBo, ("FSP") No. 157-2 Partial Deferral of the Effective Date of Statem#&¥,

" ("FSP No. 157-2"), which delays the effectiveedat SFAS No. 157 for all non-financial assets aod-financial liabilities, except those that
are recognized or disclosed at fair value in tharicials statements on a recurring basis (at éeemtally) to fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2008. The Company has not yet detetime impact that the adoption of SFAS No. 157 elze on its financial positiol
results of operations or its cash flows.

2. Stock Option Plans, Stock-Based Compensation aftbmmon Stock
Stock Option Plans

During 1996, the Company adopted the 1986KOption/Restricted Stock Plan (the "1996 StBtdn"). The 1996 Stock Plan provides
for the granting of incentive and non-qualifiedcit@ptions and stock bonus awards to officersctlims and employees of the Company. The
maximum number of shares that may be issued pursaigéime 1996 Stock Plan is 156,250. All of thestamding options under the 1996 Stock
Plan are fully vested and terminate 10 years #fieigrant date, or earlier if the option holdemdéslonger an executive officer, employee,
consultant, advisor or director, as applicablehefCompany. As of December 31, 2006, all shardsken issued under the 1996 Stock Plan.

During 1998, the Company adopted the 199&itlz Incentive Plan (the "1998 Stock Plan”). T8 Stock Plan also provides for gran
of incentive and nonqualified stock option and ktbonus awards to officers, employees and outsidswdtants. Outstanding options under
1998 Stock Plan generally vest over three or faary and terminate 10 years after the grant daggrber if the
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option holder is no longer an executive officer pbogee, consultant, advisor or director, as appleaof the Company. As of December 31,
2007, 1,250,000 shares of common stock were aatbfor issuance under the 1998 Stock Plan, oftwhdb,731 shares had been issued and
607,739 shares were subject to outstanding optibasveighted average exercise price of $7.17 lpames The 1998 Stock Plan was closed to
any future grants at the time of the Company'sdinRublic Offering ("IPO") and therefore the Compawill not make any additional grants
under the 1998 Stock Plan.

During 2004, the Company adopted the 2004KSOption and Incentive Plan, as amended andtezstn 2006 (the "2004 Stock Plan™).
The 2004 Stock Plan also provides for grantinghoéntive and nonqualified stock option and stockusoawards to officers, employees and
outside consultants. Outstanding options unde@®el Stock Plan generally vest over three or faary and terminate 10 years after the grant
date, or earlier if the option holder is no longarexecutive officer, employee, consultant, advisatirector, as applicable, of the Company
of December 31, 2007, 1,946,022 shares of comnumk stere authorized for issuance under the 200dk32tan, of which 92,963 shares had
been issued, 1,241,153 shares were subject taandiay options at a weighted average exercise pfig&4.25 per share and 611,906 shares
were available for future grant. In March 2006, @@mpany's Board of Directors voted to discontitheeprovision of the 2004 Stock Plan
which automatically increased the number of optiavailable for grant under the 2004 Stock Plan thasethe net increase in the total number
of outstanding shares of common stock during ttze.ye

The exercise price of each stock optiongdsunder the 1996 and 1998 Stock Plans was sgetifi the Board of Directors at the time of
grant. The exercise price of stock options awardeter the 2004 Stock Plan may not be less thafathmarket value of the common stock on
the date of the option grant. For holders of mbent10% of the Company's total combined voting paell classes of stock, incentive stock
options may not be granted at less than 110% diihenarket value of the Company's common stodkatdate of grant and for a term not to
exceed five years.

Certain stock options granted prior to Japu., 2006 covering a total of 15,480 shares waydified during 2006 to increase the exercise
price to the estimated fair market value as ofattiginal date of grant. These stock options wergially issued at a discount to fair market
value in the first half of 2004 prior to the CompanlPO. The grants have been revalued using thekBbcholes option pricing model and the
sum of the difference between fair value immedjabafore and after the modifications and the reimgiriginal intrinsic value is being
amortized to expense over the remaining vestinpger

In June 2004, the Company adopted the Edfgloyee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP"). All of ouplyees who have been employed by
the Company for at least 60 days and whose cusyoemployment is for more than 20 hours per weekfandhore than five months in any
calendar year are eligible to participate and anpleyee who owns 5% or more of the voting powevalue of our stock is not eligible to
participate. An employee may purchase no more $2&n000 worth of common stock, valued at the sthithe purchase period, in any calen
year. The ESPP authorizes the issuance of upambaf 375,000 shares of our common stock to gigetting employee:

Under the ESPP, participating employeesazdhorize the Company to withhold up to 10% ofrtkearnings during consecutive six-month
payment periods for the purchase of the sharethéAtonclusion of each period, participating empks/can purchase shares at 85% of the
lower of their fair market value at the beginningead of the period. The ESPP is regarded as a@asapory plan according to the provisions
of SFAS No. 123(R). Under this plan, the Company isaued 32,656,

F-17




NeuroMetrix, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Stock Option Plans, Stock-Based Compensation aftbmmon Stock (Continued)

23,140 and 23,265 shares of its common stock duh@gears ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and B&éjiectively.

A summary of activity under the Company@9@, 1998 and 2004 Stock Plans for the year endgeafber 31, 2007 is presented below:

Weighted Average

Number of Shares Exercise Price Range Exercise Price
Stock Option Awards
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,215,09. 0.4(-38.9¢ 14.6¢
Granted at fair valu 906, 70( 7.3€-14.91 9.62
Exercisec (12,207 0.4(-10.4C 2.0¢
Forfeited (260,69Y 1.35-38.9¢ 17.1¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,848,89. $ 0.4(-38.9¢ $ 11.9:

The aggregate intrinsic value of optionsreised during the years ended December 31, 2005, 2nd 2005 was $99,034, $5,304,033 and
$6,713,552, respectively.

The following table summarizes informatamout stock options outstanding at December 317:200

Weighted Average

Number of Options Remaining Contractual Weighted Average

Exercise Price Outstanding Life (Years) Exercise Price
$0.4(-7.36 93,98¢ 52 % 2.5¢4
$7.5.-8.00 528,25( 6.€ 7.9¢
$8.1-9.50 223,80¢ 9.1 9.0t
$9.52-9.52 514,30( 9.2 9.52
$9.61-30.10 405,62( 7.6 19.3¢
$30.2¢-38.96 82,92t 7.8 34.02

1,848,89: 7.6 $ 11.92

The following table summarizes informataout stock options exercisable at December 317:200

Number of Options Weighted Average

Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
$0.4(-7.36 81,73 $ 2.52
$7.5--8.00 446,81 8.0C
$8.1:-9.50 43,43: 9.17
$9.5.-9.52 — —
$9.61-30.10 153,33! 20.2¢
$30.2¢-38.96 37,98¢ 34.07

763,30, $ 11.2¢
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The weighted average remaining contradifeafor stock options exercisable at DecemberZZ)7 was 7.9 years. The aggregate intrinsic
value for stock options outstanding and exercisabecember 31, 2007 was $1,305,157 and $1,088c3p@ctively.

Stock-Based Compensation

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company actlfor stock-based compensation plans in accoedaith the provisions of APB No. 25, as
permitted by SFAS No. 123, and accordingly didmeabgnize compensation expense for the issuanggtioins with an exercise price equal to
or greater than the fair value at the date of greiné¢ following table illustrates the effect on metome (loss) and net income (loss) per com
share for the year ended December 31, 2005 ha@dhmpany applied the fair value based method asfioes by SFAS No. 123:

2005
Net income attributable to common stockholdersepsrtec $ 249,25¢
Add employee stoc-based compensation expense included in reportede@he 406,33(
Less employee sto-based compensation expense determined under fae neethoc (1,432,03)
Net los—pro forma $ (776,44))

I

Net income (loss) per common share (basic andediju
As reportec $ 0.0z
Pro forma $ (0.06)

The weighted average grant-date fair vakessd in the calculation of stock-based compensatpense in the accompanying statement of
operations for the years ended December 31, 2@WE &nd 2005 and the pro forma net income (losg)natincome (loss) per common share
information presented above is calculated using3ihek-Scholes option pricing model with the folloyg weighted average assumptions:

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Risk-free interest rat 3.3%-5.1% 4.3%-5.2% 3.5%-4.6%
Expected dividend yiel — — —
Expected option terr 5 year 5 year 5 year.
Volatility 60.0%-70.0% 50.0%-75.0% 52.6%
Weighted average fair value of options grantecgtvalue $5.7¢ $14.7¢ $7.28
Weighted average fair value of options granted\wedhir value $— $— $—

The risk-free interest rate assumptioraisdd on the United States Treasury's constant ityatate for a five year term (corresponding to
the expected option term) on the date the option gvanted. The expected dividend yield is zero beeshe Company does not currently pay
dividends nor expects to do so during the expegjidn term. The expected option term of five yaars
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estimated based on an analysis of actual optiorces and a review of comparable medical devicepamies. The volatility assumption is
based on weekly historical volatility during thené period that corresponds to the expected opdion,ta review of comparable medical device
companies and expected future stock price voatilihe prevesting forfeiture rate is based on the historéoad projected average turnover |
using four classifications of employees.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes optiming model for determining the fair value of sesiof common stock issued or to be issued
under the ESPP. The following assumptions are imsddtermining fair value: The risk-free interester assumption is based on the United
States Treasury's constant maturity rate for amgirth term (corresponding to the expected optiom)t®n the date the option was granted. In
2007 and 2006, the Company used a risk-free irttesis assumption that ranged from 3.5% to 5.1%5%h% to 5.2%, respectively. The
expected dividend yield is zero because the Comgaesg not currently pay dividends nor expects tsalduring the expected option term. An
expected term of six months is used based on tregidn of each plan offering period. The volatilgagsumption is based on stock price
volatility over the most recent period of time asponding to the expected term and is also baseapected future stock price volatility. In
2007 and 2006, the expected future stock pricetiliptaanged from 60.0% to 70.0% and 50.0% to 90,0espectively.

The Company recorded stock-based compensakpense of $3,071,090, $2,652,637 and $406(830¢ years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Included instioek-based compensation expense recorded by tng&ty for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 is (a) $2,902,662 ajab5$556, respectively, in compensation expensginglto stock options granted to
employees subsequent to the Company's July 2004H&G@re accounted for according to the provis@mSFAS No. 123(R); (b) $37,752 and
$53,471, respectively, in reductions of compensatixpense related to stock options granted to nyplayees that are accounted for according
to the provisions of Emerging Issues Task ForcéTFE) Issue No. 96-18 Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issue®ther Than
Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction withI®g), Goods or Service" ("EITF No. 96-18"); (c) $94,325 and $159,480 pestively, in
compensation expense related to the ESPP and deddon under the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R):%85,031 and $249,415, respectively
in compensation expense relating to stock optisastgd to employees prior to the Company's IPOdtabeing accounted for using the
intrinsic value method according to the provisiohSFAS No. 123(R) and (e) $16,824 and $31,65%a&svely in compensation expense
related to modifications to pre-IPO option gra@smpensation expense recorded by the Companydantdification of stock options for the
year ended December 31, 2005 was $35,

The additional costs incurred as a reduth® implementation of SFAS No. 123(R) reflectadricome before provision of income taxes
and net income attributable to common stockholéerthe years ended December 31, 2007 and 200628986,987 and $2,425,036,
respectively. The effect on basic and diluted egysiper share for the years ended December 31,&£002006 was $0.24 and $0.19,
respectively.

Stock options granted to non-employeesegerded at fair value and adjusted to market twervesting period according to the
provisions of EITF No. 96-18. The Company deterrifar value using the Black-Scholes option priangdel, an expected term equal to the
option term, a risk-free interest rate correspogdinthe expected term, an expected volatility @¥6-70% and a dividend yield of zero.
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Deferred compensation was recorded in oztiorewith stock option grants made prior to then@any's IPO. The deferred compensation
represents the difference between the estimatekletnaalue of common stock on the date of grantthedexercise price associated with the
stock options. All remaining deferred compensatias been amortized to expense over the vestingdoefithe related stock options.

Total unrecognized stock-based compensatists related to non-vested stock options wasoappately $8,211,907 which related to
approximately 1,085,591 shares with a per sharghted fair value of $7.56 as of December 31, 200i%s unrecognized cost is expected to be
recognized over a weighted average period of apmately 2.3 years.

As of December 31, 2007, there were 1,78 9ock options vested and expected to vest witkighted average exercise price of $11.92
per share, a weighted average contractual remaliféngf 7.9 years and an aggregate intrinsic vali$1,305,157. Expected to vest options
determined by applying the pre-vesting forfeituaerto the total outstanding options. Aggregatenisic value represents the total pre-tax
intrinsic value (the aggregate difference betwéendosing stock price of the Company's commonkséscof December 31, 2007, as
applicable, and the exercise price for the in-thaay options) that would have been received bygt®n holders if all the in-the-money
options had been exercised on December 31, 2007.

Common Stock

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had@0000 shares of common stock authorized an®03,82 shares issued and outstanding.
There were no treasury shares outstanding at Desre®ih 2007 and 2006, as all treasury shares resreibsued upon employee stock option
exercises.

Each share of common stock entitles thddrdio one vote on all matters submitted to a wbtee Company's stockholders. Common
stockholders are not entitled to receive dividemaess declared by the Board of Directors.

At December 31, 2007, the Company has veseaiuthorized shares of common stock for futisedace as follows:

Outstanding stock optior 1,848,89:
Possible future issuance under stock option [ 611,90t
Possible future issuance under employee stock paechlar 286,40°
Total 2,747,20!

On March 7, 2007, the Company's Board oé&iors adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan andréelcéadividend distribution of one
preferred stock purchase right for each outstanslirege of the Company's common stock to sharelotfeecord as of the close of business
on March 8, 2007.

3. Acquisition

On December 26, 2007, the Company acqsinbdtantially all of the assets of EyeTel for agragate purchase price of 1,050,297 shares
of the Company's common stock, $175,000 in cashfamdssumption of certain specified liabilitietatmg $804,916. EyeTel was engaged in
the design, development, and commercializatiorroppetary medical devices, including the DigiScopelevice
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that helps physicians detect eye disorders sudiabstic retinopathy, the leading cause of blindriegatients with diabetes. The Company
had previously entered into an exclusive licensiggeement with EyeTel pursuant to which the Compead/sales and marketing rights to the
DigiScope in the primary diabetes care physicianketa The acquisition is intended to further divigrthe Company's proprietary medical
device product offering and expand sales into &ithl markets such as the optometry market.

In accordance with the provisions of SFAG M1, "Business Combinatiorishe assets acquired and liabilities assumed heee
recorded at their estimated fair value. A tota$®f8 million was allocated to intangible assetpresenting the fair value of existing technolc
which is being amortized on a straight line basisrdhe estimated life of five years. The fair \&ahf the intangible assets was determined
primarily through assessments by the Company's gemant and the fair value of the tangible assejsised and liabilities assumed
approximated their carrying values. Goodwill tatgli$5.8 million was recorded in connection with #oguisition, representing the excess of
the purchase price over the estimated fair valub®hcquired tangible assets, intangible assetassumed liabilities.

The purchase price was allocated to theised| tangible assets, intangible assets and assliabdities based on their estimated fair
values at the date of acquisition as follows:

Cash $ 175,00(
Issuance of 1,050,297 shares of NeuroMetrix ComBtogk 9,784,54:
Acquisition costs 150,00t
Total consideratiol $ 10,109,54

Net tangible asset

Restricted cas $ 45,00(
Accounts receivabl 35,00(
Fixed asset 1,985,001
Other current asse 216,00(
Accounts payable and accrued expet (804,916
Net tangible asse 1,476,08
Other intangible asse 2,800,00!
Goodwill 5,833,46.
Total $ 10,109,54

Pro Forma Financial Summary (Unaudited)

The following unaudited pro forma financsalmmary is presented as if the acquisition of suthiglly all of the assets of EyeTel was
completed as of the beginning of each period ptesefhe pro forma combined results are not nedbsgadicative of the actual results that
would have
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occurred had the acquisition been consummatedatrd#ie, or of the future operations of the combiaetities.

Years Ended December 31,

2007

2006

Total revenue:

©“

44,814,86

©

Net loss (19,760,62)

&

Basic and diluted loss per common st (1.4

Basic and diluted weighted average shares useghipute net loss per commo

$ 56,455,84

$ (3,096,03)

&

(0.29)

share 13,678,60 13,552,03
4. Inventories
At December 31, 2007 and 2006, inventac@ssist of the following:
December 31
2007 2006

Purchased componer $ 1,216,75 $ 345,85:
Finished good 4,137,58 3,287,53

$ 5,354,331 % 3,633,38

5. Investments
Short-Term Held-to-Maturity

Held-to-maturity investments as of Decenter2007 and 2006 are as follows:

Gross Unrealized

Gross Unrealized

Amortized Cost Gains Losses Estimated Fair Value
2007
Commercial paper and bank no $ 964,90 $ 9,96( $ — $ 974,86(
Corporate bond 21,656,84 5,04¢ (25,80 21,636,08
$ 22,621,744 $ 15,00¢ $ (25,807 $ 22,610,94
] .| .| .|
2006
Commercial paper and bank no $ 3,895,71. $ 104,28 — $ 4,000,001
U.S. agency obligatior 997,75 99¢ — 998, 75(
Corporate bond 27,517,22 1,98: (17,65¢) 27,501,54
$ 32,410,68 $ 107,26¢ $ (17,656 $ 32,500,29
| | .|

The following table shows the gross unelilosses and fair value of the Company's helaatsrity investments with unrealized losses

that are not deemed to be other-than-temporarily
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impaired, aggregated by investment category argtheof time that individual securities have beea icontinuous unrealized loss position, at
December 31, 2007 and 2006:

12 Months or less Greater than 12 Months Total
Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
2007
Corporate bond $ 15,701,22 $ (25,807 $ — 3 — 3 15,701,22 $ (25,807
| | | | | |
2006
Corporate bond $ 24,47894 $ (17,656 $ — 3 — 3 24,478,994 $ (17,65¢)

Corporate bonds—At December 31, 2007, then@any held 13 corporate bonds in an unrealizesigosition which was primarily the
result of higher market interest rates since ttie dapurchase, rather than a decline in creditityuaf these investments. The contractual terms
of these investments do not permit the issuersttteghe securities at a price less than the yatee of the investment. Each of the bonds
maintains a Standard & Poor's rating of A or higlred has made each of their scheduled interest gratgmrherefore, it is not expected that
bonds would be settled at a price less than thet@ad cost of the investment. Because the Compasythe ability and intent to hold these
investments until maturity, the Company does noisater these investments to be other-than-temppiampaired at December 31, 2007.

The amortized cost and fair value of fixedturity securities at December 31, 2007 and 2B9@&ontractual maturity, are shown below:

December 31,

2007 2006

Amortized Cost Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value

Due in one year or le: $ 22,621,744 $ 22,610,94 $ 32,410,68 $ 32,500,29

Long-Term Available-for-Sale Investment

In November 2007, the Company made an tnvest of $2.5 million for the purchase of approxiata 5.4 million shares of common
stock of Cyberkinetics, representing approximafei¥ of the Cyberkinetics' issued and outstandirsgeshat the time of the investment, at a
price of $0.46 per share. The Company also receiwedrrant to purchase up to approximately 2.7ionilshares of Cyberkinetics common
stock. The warrant is exercisable at $0.46 pereshad has a term of five years, but will be requirebe exercised if Cyberkinetics receives
FDA approval of an HDE filing for the Andara OFSvie for acute spinal cord injuries.

In accordance with SFAS No. 115, the investt in Cyberkinetics common stock and warrankeisg accounted for as available-for-sale
and has been recorded at an estimated value oh$llidn as of December 31, 2007. The adjustmenhécarrying value of the investment in
Cyberkinetics to estimated value as of DecembeRBQ7 has been recorded in accumulated other chvepsere loss within stockholders'
equity. The Company will review the carrying vahfethis investment quarterly to
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determine whether an other than temporary dedimadrket value exists. The Company considers factoch as the length of time the valu
the investment has been below its original purclpaee, the financial condition of the investee ae@r-term prospects for the investee's

recovery to original purchase price and the Comisanyent with regard to the underlying investmé@&ased on the Company's assessment
December 31, 2007, and taking into consideratienvtiatility of Cyberkinetics' common stock and thee period the investment has been in
an unrealized loss position, the Company does @@\ that the decline in value of the investnmismther than temporary in nature.

In connection with the investment in Cyhireétics, the Company also received certain rightduding a right of first negotiation for the
acquisition of Cyberkinetics, or any other chanfeamtrol transaction, and a right of first negtita for the commercialization of the Andara
OFS device for the treatment of acute spinal cojaties. In addition, the Company received a seadhe Cyberkinetics Board of Directors.
Dr. Shai Gozani M.D. Ph.D., the Company's Chiefdttiwe Officer and President, has been named asitied designee.

In February 2008, The Company enteredan@ollaboration Agreement and Operating Agreemaétht @Gyberkinetics to develop and
commercialize products for the treatment of penipheerve injury and formed PNIR (Peripheral Nelnjeiry Repair) LLC, a joint venture wi
initial ownership of 50% held by the Company ané&@i@eld by Cyberkinetics. (See Note 11. Subsequeants)

6. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist of the following:

Estimated Useful Life

December 31,

Computer and laboratory equipmt
Furniture and equipmel
DigiScope equipmer

Production equipmet
Construction in progres
Leasehold improvemen

Les—accumulated depreciatic

(Years) 2007 2006
3 3 1,908,751 % 1,746,32.
3 411,11¢ 350,67¢
5 1,985,001 —
7 665,26° 665,26¢
— 288,82¢ 215,47¢
* 150,09° 150,09°
5,409,05! 3,127,83!
(2,435,34) (2,012,40)
$ 2,973,71 $ 1,115,43

* Lesser of life of lease or estimated useful |

Depreciation expense was $422,938, $380a6855278,932 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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DigiScope equipment acquired, in conjunttigth the Company's December 26, 2007 acquisdfosubstantially all of the assets of
EyeTel, consists of equipment and sub-assembléeetbto customers.

A capital lease is included as a compopéfurniture and equipment at December 31, 20070Airation of assets under this capital lease
was $7,525 and is included in depreciation expémsthe year ended December 31, 2007.

7. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist of the followiogthe years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006:

December 31,

2007 2006

Professional service $ 706,95: $ 401,18t
Sales taxe 489,55! 2,851,30
Other 1,112,051 1,023,49
$ 2,308,56. $ 4,275,98:

| .|

8. Income Taxes

The income tax provision consists of théofeing for the years ended December 31, 2007, 20462005:

Years Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005

Federal tax expen: $ — 3 193,000 $ 35,00¢
State tax expens — — —
Total $ — 3 193,000 $ 35,00(
I I I

The Company's effective income tax ratéediffrom the statutory federal income tax ratéoflews for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005.

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Federal tax provision (benefit) re 34.(% 34.(% 34.(%
State tax provision, net of federal provision (Hfaag 4.€ 7.€ 9.¢
Permanent item (1.2 11.1 56.8
Research and development tax cre 0.t (4.2 (54.5)
Alternative minimum ta: — 4.3 12.5
Alternative minimum tax cred — (2.7 —
Valuation allowanct (38.0 (45.9) (45.7)

Effective income tax rat —% 4.%% 12.2%
L] L] |
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The Company's net deferred tax assets stoofsihe following:

December 31

2007 2006
Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 11,79752 % 9,373,72.
Research and development credit carryforw. 957,22: 978,65:
Alternative minimum tax cred 120,49( 120,19
Accrued expense 1,713,22 2,808,02.
Other 1,650,10 522,82:
Total gross deferred tax ass 16,238,56 13,803,41
Valuation allowanct (16,238,56) (13,803,41)
Net deferred tax asse $ — 3 —

At December 31, 2007, the Company has &derd state net operating loss carryforwards ("N®E approximately $37.0 million and
$21.1 million, respectively, as well as federal atate tax credits of $598,000 and $544,000, réisede which may be available to reduce
future taxable income and the related taxes thefBlois amount includes tax benefits of $3.8 millaomd $71,000 attributable to NOL and tax
credit carryforwards, respectively, that resultifirthe exercise of employee stock options. The &efit of these items will be recorded as a
credit to additional paid-in capital upon realipatiof the deferred tax asset or reduction in inctames payable. The federal NOLs begin to
expire in 2019 and the state NOLs begin to expir2G08.

As required by SFAS No. 10%\tcounting for Income Taxé4"SFAS No. 109"), the Company has evaluated tisitive and negative
evidence bearing upon the realizability of its defd tax assets, which are comprised principallgeifoperating losses. Management has
determined that it is more likely than not that @@mpany will not recognize the benefits of fedenadl state deferred tax assets and, as at
a valuation allowance of approximately $16.2 milland $13.8 million has been established at DeceBhe2007 and 2006, respectively

Ownership changes, as defined in the latdRevenue Code, have limited the amount of netatipeg loss carryforwards that can be
utilized annually to offset future taxable incorfiae Company anticipates that these limitations haWe no material impact on their ability to
utilize the affected loss carryforwards in futuesays. Subsequent ownership changes could furthEdnthe limitation in future years.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48. F&Ndquires management to perform a two-step evatuaf all tax positions, ensuring that
these tax return positions meet the "more-likegnthot" recognition threshold and can be measurtdsufficient precision to determine the
benefit recognized in the financial statements.séhevaluations provide management with a comprérenwodel for how a company should
recognize, measure, present, and disclose imasdial statements certain tax positions that thi@g@any has taken or expects to take on
income tax returns. Management estimated that Beoémber 31, 2006, there was an uncertain tatiposotaling approximately $100,000
relating to the Company's tax credit carryforwaris a result, the Company reduced its deferrecssets and the associated valuation
allowance by approximately $100,000 as of
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January 1, 2007, the adoption date of FIN 48. Thake been no other activities impacting FIN 4&ress during the year ended Decembe
2007.

9. Commitments and Contingencies
Cyberkinetics

In connection with the Company's investrirr@yberkinetics, the Company received a warramiurchase up to approximately
2.7 million shares of Cyberkinetics common stodhke Tvarrant, exercisable at $0.46 per share, ooappately $1.25 million, has a term of
five years, and is required to be exercised if Clinetics receives FDA approval of an HDE filing the Andara OFS device for acute spinal
cord injuries.

In February 2008, the Company enteredanBollaboration Agreement and Operating Agreeméifit @yberkinetics to develop and
commercialize products for the treatment of penipheerve injury and formed PNIR (Peripheral Nelnjeiry Repair) LLC, a joint venture wi
50% ownership held by the Company and 50% ownetsligh by Cyberkinetics. Under the terms of thetj@inture, the Company has agreed
to fund the initial $2.0 million in product develmgnt costs and has agreed to share equally iosth @ excess of the initial $2.0 million.
Cyberkinetics has agreed to contribute technol&ggw-how and intellectual property, primarily refef to their Andara OFS technology, to
the joint venture.

Operating Leases

In September 2000, the Company enteredaimton-cancelable operating lease, commencing daaua001, for office and laboratory
space. The lease expires on March 31, 2009.

Future minimum lease payments under noredahke operating leases as of December 31, 200&sdi@lows:

2008 $ 930,00(
2009 232,50(
Total minimum lease paymer $ 1,162,501

Total recorded rent expense was $871,816&ch the years ended December 31, 2007, 200800t The Company records rent expt
on its facility lease on a straight line basis oty term. Accordingly, the Company has recordbatality for accrued rent expense at
December 31, 2007 and 2006 of $72,727 and $130r88pPectively on the accompanying balance sheetsN6te 11 Subsequent Events—
Lease Agreement.

Capital Lease

In June 2007, the Company entered intoraaamcelable capital lease for copiers locatediatorporate headquarters valued at $38,700.
The lease expires in May 2010.
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Future minimum lease payments under théaldpase as of December 31, 2007, are as follows:

2008 $ 12,90(
2009 12,90(
2010 5,37t
Total capital lease paymer $ 31,17t

Restricted Time Deposit

In connection with the Company's faciliéase, the Company is required to maintain, fobdreefit of the lessor, an irrevocable standby
letter of credit stating the lessor as the berafjcover the term of the lease, which is secured bgrtificate of deposit in an amount equal to
102% of the letter of credit, as security. The ¢ée@spires in March 2009. The certificate of depizsienewable annually. At December 31,
2007 and 2006, the Company has $1,458,598 recaslesktricted cash associated with this leaseeoadbompanying balance sheet. See
Note 11 Subsequent Eve—Lease Agreement.

Legal Matters

In the second quarter of 2006, the Compangived a subpoena from the Office of Inspectareda ("OIG"), of the Department of Hee
and Human Services requesting documents in commewith an investigation of potential violationstbe federal anti-kickback statute and
False Claims Act. In addition, on June 21, 200&,Gompany received a subpoena from the U.S. Atytsiigffice for the District of
Massachusetts requesting documents in connectitinariinvestigation by the United State Departnodidustice ("DOJ"). The DOJ is
investigating various aspects of the Company'stipescrelating to the NC-stat System, includingesalnd marketing practices. The Company
is cooperating with both investigations. During 20the Company formed a Special Committee of itarB@f Directors to provide oversight
an ongoing independent review of the Company'ssald marketing practices and of the Company'sragng cooperation with the DOJ and
OIG investigations. The Company cannot predictfienate outcome of these investigations. The Caomgpsa unable to determine when these
matters will be resolved, whether any additionabkarof inquiry will be opened, or any outcome @f thatter. Any negative findings in this
matter could result in fines, penalties, or progealusions, which could have a material advergeebn the Company's financial condition,
results of operations, and cash flows.

10. Retirement Plan

The Company established a 401(k) definedritaution savings plan for its employees who mestain service period and age
requirements. Contributions are permitted up tontlaimum allowed under the Internal Revenue Codeaoh covered employee's salary. The
savings plan permits the Company to contributésadiscretion. For the years ended December 317,206 and 2005 the Company made no
contributions to the plan.

11. Subsequent Events
Joint Venture with Cyberkinetics

In February 2008, the Company and Cybetkisdormed PNIR (Peripheral Nerve Injury Repaib)d, a joint venture incorporated in
Delaware, and entered into a Collaboration Agregmen
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and Operating Agreement to develop and commereiglizducts for the treatment of peripheral neryryn The joint venture is initially 50%
owned by the Company and 50% owned by Cyberkindtinsler the terms of the joint venture, the Complaay agreed to fund the initial
$2.0 million in product development costs and tlienPany and Cyberkinetics have agreed to sharelgdgualll costs in excess of the initial
$2.0 million. Cyberkinetics has agreed to contrbigichnology, know-how and intellectual propertymarily relating to their Andara OFS
technology, to the joint venture.

The Company obtained sales and marketgigsiand Cyberkinetics obtained commercial manufaxg rights to any products
commercialized under the joint venture. Each paiticharge the joint venture at cost for all expes incurred in connection with their
respective commercialization activities. Profitsldmsses realized from the joint venture will bétgmually between the Company and
Cyberkinetics based on the initial ownership petage.

Lease Agreement

In February 2008, the Company amended #asé Agreement dated October 18, 2000 betweenhFauenue LLC and the Company for
office and engineering laboratory space. The amemdmxtends the term of the lease, currently sdeddo expire on March 31, 2009, throt
March 31, 2013. Base rent for the period April 28®ugh March 2013 will be reduced from the curtemel of $930,000 annually to a range
of $675,000 to $765,000 annually.

In connection with the amendment of theségdhe amount of the irrevocable letter of cretjuired to be maintained by the Company for
the benefit of the lessor will be reduced from 80,800 to $400,000. The letter of credit must briged by a certificate of deposit in an
amount equal to 102% of the letter of credit asiggc
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Additions

Charged to other
Balance at Beginning Charged to costs anc  accounts (Describe)

Balance at End of

Description of Period expenses (1) Deductions (Describe) Period
December 31, 200

Allowance for Doubtful Account $ 900,00( $ 358,14. $ 195,87 $ (548,016(2)$% 906,00(

Deferred Tax Asset Valuatic

Allowance 13,803,411 2,642,02. — (206,871(3) 16,238,56
December 31, 200!

Allowance for Doubtful Account 400,00( 946,85( 74,53¢ (521,3897(2) 900,00(

Deferred Tax Asset Valuation

Allowance 16,081,53 2,226,51. — (4,504,636(3) 13,803,41
December 31, 200!

Allowance for Doubtful Account 300,00( 281,68 78,14: (259,8277(2) 400,00(

Deferred Tax Asset Valuatic

Allowance 14,235,36! 1,846,17. — — 16,081,53

(1) Recoveries

(2)  Write-offs.

3) Utilization and expiration of Federal and State Beerating Loss Carryforwards.
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporationdfgrence in the Registration Statements on Forn{/$e8. 333-118059 and 333-135242) of
NeuroMetrix, Inc. of our report dated March 14, 8@8lating to the financial statements, financiatament schedule and the effectivenes
internal control over financial reporting, whichpaars in this Form 10-K.

/s! PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
March 14, 2008
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Shai N. Gozani, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of NeuroMetrix, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessarn

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrami &ave:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduies ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahetporting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assereegarding the reliability of financial repogdiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantelasire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period cougyeddis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tleatturred during the registran
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigibal quarter in the case of an annual repod) lttas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anlblve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financii
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatanmmmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the itegig's ability to record, process, summarize apbrt financial information; ar

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 14, 2008 /s SHAI N. GOZANI, M.D., PH. D.

Shai N. Gozani, M.D., Ph. D.
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, W. Bradford Smith, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-KNefluroMetrix, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or ométéde a material fa

necessary to make the statements made, in lighedafircumstances under which such statements wade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement,atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in al
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented
in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls ar
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a)Hhd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))tf@ registrant and have:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduies ¢tesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiestipularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpg;, or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeregsurance regarding the reliability of finanecegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantelasire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport oul
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures, as of the end of tHegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting tlaturred during th
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the registrant's internal contrgko financial reporting; ar

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anave disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorternal control ove
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditongl #he audit committee of the registrant's boardikgctors (or persons performi
the equivalent functions):

@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofimancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaize report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a signifrodain the
registrant's internal control over financial rejagt

Date: March 14, 200 /s/ W. BRADFORD SMITH

W. Bradford Smith
Chief Financial Officel
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Exhibit 32
CERTIFICATION

Each of the undersigned officers of NeurtMelnc. (the "Company") hereby certifies that,His knowledge, the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K to which this certificationatached (the "Report"), as filed with the Secesitand Exchange Commission on the date
hereof, fully complies with the requirements of &t 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Seaesittxchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
"Exchange Act"), and that the information contaimethe Report fairly presents, in all materialpests, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Date: March 14, 2008 /sl SHAI N. GOZANI, M.[PH.D.

Shai N. Gozani, M.D., Ph.D.
Chief Executive Officer and Preside

/sl 'W. BRADFORD SMITH

W. Bradford Smith

Chief Financial Officel

This certification is being furnished arat filed, and shall not be incorporated into anguwaent for any purpose, under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 or the Securities Act of 1933.
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